
 
 

 

 
To: Councillor Milne, Convener; Councillor Finlayson; Vice Convener; and Councillors 

Boulton, Corall, Cormie, Crockett, Dickson, Greig, Jaffrey, Lawrence, Malik, 
Jean Morrison MBE, Jennifer Stewart, Stuart and Thomson. 
  

 

 
Town House, 

ABERDEEN, 08 July 2015 
 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

 The Members of the PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

are requested to meet in Committee Room 2 - Town House on THURSDAY, 16 JULY 

2015 at 10.00 am. 

 
 
 

 
RODERICK MACBEATH 

 SENIOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES MANAGER 
 

 

B U S I N E S S 

 

 MEMBERS PLEASE NOTE THAT ALL LETTERS OF REPRESENTATION, 

INCLUDING THOSE NOT IN THE REPORT PACK, ARE AVAILABLE TO VIEW 

IN THE MEMBERS' LIBRARY 

 

1 MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

 

 1.1  Minute of Meeting of the Planning Development Management Committee 
of 18 June 2015 - for approval  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 PLANNING APPLICATIONS WHICH ARE THE SUBJECT OF WRITTEN 

REPORTS 

 

2 WHERE THE RECOMMENDATION IS ONE OF APPROVAL 

 2.1  Engineering Science Facility,Queens Road, Aberdeen - Erection of Facility  
(Pages 7 - 24) 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

  Planning Reference – 150161 
 
The documents associated with this application can be found at - 
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=150161  
 
Planning Officer – Sepideh Hajisoltani 
 

 2.2  32 Rosebery Street - Change of use of existing residential property to form 
a House of Multiple Occupancy to accommodate six unrelated persons  
(Pages 25 - 46) 

  Planning Reference – 150742 
 
The documents associated with this application can be found at – 
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=150742  
 
Planning Officer – Sally Wood 
 

 2.3  13 Manor Place - Erection of Two Storey Extension to side of existing 
Dwelling House  (Pages 47 - 60) 

  Planning Reference – 150378 
 
The documents associated with this application can be found at- 
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=150378  
 
Planning Officer – Ross McMahon 
 

 2.4  7 St Machar Place - External alterations and formation of driveway to front 
of existing property  (Pages 61 - 78) 

  Planning Reference – 150785 
 
The documents associated with this application can be found at – 
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=150785  
 
Planning Officer – Ross McMahon 
 

3 WHERE THE RECOMMENDATION IS ONE OF REFUSAL 

 

 3.1  Jesmond Drive - Erection of 19 Affordable Housing Units with Associated 
Car Parking and Landscaping  (Pages 79 - 110) 

  Planning Reference – 150369 
 
The documents associated with this application can be found at:- 
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=150369  
 
Planning Officer – Dineke Brasier 
 



 
 
 

 3.2  Nether Anguston - Formation of Riding School with associated buildings, 
car parking and landscaping  (Pages 111 - 152) 

  Planning Reference – 150110 
 
The documents associated with this application can be found at- 
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=150110  
 
Planning Officer – Nicholas Lawrence 
 

4 OTHER REPORTS  
  

 4.1  Technical Advice Note - Student Accommodation  (Pages 153 - 180) 
 

 4.2  Technical Advice Note - Planning and Aberdeen Airport  (Pages 181 - 204) 
 

 4.3  Planning Performance Framework Report 2014-15  (Pages 205 - 254) 
 

 4.4  Confirmation with Modification of Tree Preservation Order Number 195  
(Pages 255 - 258) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Website Address:  www.aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 
 
Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Stephanie 
Dunsmuir on 01224 522503 or email sdunsmuir@aberdeencity.gov.uk   
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 
 

 
ABERDEEN, 18 June 2015.  Minute of Meeting of the PLANNING 
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE.  Present:-  Councillor Milne, 
Convener;  Councillor Finlayson, Vice Convener; and Councillors Boulton, 
Corall, Cormie, Dickson, Greig, Jaffrey, Lawrence, Jean Morrison MBE, 
Jennifer Stewart, Sandy Stuart and Thomson. 

 
 

The agenda and reports associated with this minute can be found at:- 
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=348&MId=3470&Ver=4 

 
Please note that if any changes are made to this minute at the point of 
approval, these will be outlined in the subsequent minute and this 
document will not be retrospectively altered. 
 

 
MINUTE OF MEETING OF PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE OF 28 MAY 2015 
 
1. The Committee had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 28 May 2015. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the minute subject to the correction of Article 1 to reflect that the Roads 
Project Team had withdrawn their objection not their application.  
 
 
PLOT 10, PRIME FOUR BUSINESS PARK, KINGSWELLS - 150113 
 
2. The Committee had before it a report by the Head of Planning and Sustainable 
Development which recommended:- 
 
That the Committee approve the application for the purification of conditions for 
planning permission in principle (120649) relating to Plot 10, namely condition 3, parts 
(i) - access; (ii) - siting and design of hard surfaces; (iii) - design and external 
appearance of the buildings; (iv) - waste arrangements; (v) - plot boundary treatment; 
(vi) - motor vehicle and cycle parking; (vii) - details of any low and zero carbon 
equipment; and (viii) - landscape; and condition 15 - plot specific landscaping 
treatment, subject to the following condition:- 

(1)   That no part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied unless 
the pro-rata financial contribution identified in the Prime Four Phase 3 Transport 
Assessment relative to the development and measures required to mitigate 
against the transport impact of further development of the Prime Four Business 
Park has been paid to the Council.  

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation.  
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 1.1

Page 1



2 

 
 

MAKRO, SITE 1, WELLINGTON CIRCLE, WELLINGTON ROAD INDUSTRIAL 
ESTATE - 140924 
 
3. The Committee had before it a report by the Head of Planning and Sustainable 
Development which recommended:- 
 
That the Committee express a willingness to approve the application for planning 
permission for the sub-division of the existing wholesale cash and carry (Class 6 - 
Storage and Distribution) of 10,252 square metres (inclusive of mezzanine level) to 
form two separate units with one of 4,502 square metres being retained for wholesale 
use, and the larger (southern) unit of 5,750 square metres being used for Class 1 retail 
purposes, but to withhold the issue of the consent document until the applicant had 
entered into a legal agreement with the Council regarding (1) developer contributions 
towards the Strategic Transport Fund; and (2) developer contributions towards 
mitigation on the local roads network together with the provision of infrastructure, and 
subject to the following conditions:- 

(1)  That no development shall take place unless a scheme detailing all external 
finishing materials to the roof and walls of the development hereby approved has 
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the planning authority and 
thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the details so 
agreed; (2) That no development shall take place unless a scheme of all 
drainage works designed to meet the requirements of Sustainable Urban 
Drainage Systems has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
planning authority and thereafter no part of the development shall be occupied 
unless the drainage has been installed in complete accordance with the said 
scheme; (3) That the use hereby granted planning permission shall not be 
occupied unless a scheme detailing cycle storage provision has been submitted 
to, and approved in writing by the planning authority, and thereafter implemented 
in full accordance with said scheme; (4) That no development pursuant to the 
planning permission hereby approved shall be carried out unless there has been 
submitted to and approved in writing for the purpose by the planning authority a 
further detailed scheme of landscaping for the site, which scheme shall include 
indications of all existing trees and landscaped areas on the land, and details of 
any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in the course of 
development, and the proposed areas of tree/shrub planting including details of 
numbers, densities, locations, species, sizes and stage of maturity at planting; 
(5)  That all planting, seeding and turfing comprised in the approved scheme of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting season following the 
completion of the development and any trees or plants which within a period of 5 
years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become 
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season 
with others of a size and species similar to those originally required to be 
planted, or in accordance with such other scheme as may be submitted to and 
approved in writing for the purpose by the planning authority; (6) That the 
development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless the car parking 
areas hereby granted planning permission have been constructed, drained, laid-
out and demarcated in accordance with drawing no. Proposed Site Plan 
A5128/P(--) 06 Rev D of the plans hereby approved or such other drawing as 
may subsequently be submitted and approved in writing by the planning 
authority. Such areas shall not thereafter be used for any other purpose other 
than the purpose of the parking of cars ancillary to the development and use 
thereby granted approval; (7)  That no other development in connection with the 
permission hereby approved shall take place and the access/egress hereby 

Page 2



3 

 
 

approved shall not be brought into use unless visibility of 60 metres in both 
directions along the public road has been provided from a point 4.5 metres 
measured at right angles from the existing carriageway surface along the centre 
line of the approved new access. Once formed, the visibility splays shall be 
permanently retained thereafter and no visual obstruction of any kind shall be 
permitted within the visibility splays so formed; (8) That the use hereby granted 
planning permission shall not take place unless the recycling facility has been 
provided in complete accordance with drawing no. Proposed Site Plan A5128/P(-
-) 06 Rev D of the plans hereby approved or such other drawing as may 
subsequently be submitted and approved in writing by the planning authority. 
Such areas shall not thereafter be used for any other purpose other than the 
purpose of recycling; and (9) The floorspace of the proposed development 
hereby permitted shall be restricted to 5,750 square metres (GFA) of Class 1 
retail for the sale of 70% convenience and 30% comparison goods, and shall be 
used for no other purpose. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the application.  
 
 
LOIRSTON, NIGG - 141754 
 
4. The Committee had before it a report by the Head of Planning and Sustainable 
Development which recommended:- 
 
That the Committee refuse the application for planning permission in principle for the 
erection of a retail development comprising a Class 1 supermarket of 5,800 square 
metres of floorspace with associated car parking, access and landscaping, on the 
following grounds:- 

(1) That, while the site lies within the OP77 Loirston Land Release within the 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2012), the scale of retail development 
sought far exceeds that granted through the planning permission in 
principle (planning reference 130892), and that identified within the Loirston 
Development Framework which is approved as Supplementary Guidance to 
the Local Development Plan.  Furthermore, the proposal does not comply 
with Policy RT2 Out of Centre Proposals, and Policy RT5 Retail 
Development Serving New Development Areas in that there is an allocated 
site for retail in the extant Local Development Plan, and one identified in the 
Proposed Local Development Plan, which would meet the identified need 
for retail provision to the south of Aberdeen, and there is therefore no 
additional need beyond the current allocations.  Any additional provision 
could therefore undermine the vitality or viability of other existing retail 
centres; 

(2) That the proposal would be contrary to the urban form, design and layout 
objectives anticipated through the Loirston Development Framework which 
is approved as Supplementary Guidance to the adopted Local 
Development Plan, due to (i) the lack of mixed-use residential and 
retail/commercial, and failure to integrate retail use with medium density 
residential; and (ii) the expanse of associated car parking and servicing 
space that would not minimise the impact of car parking; and 

(3) That the proposals would be contrary the to Policy NE1 Green Space 
Network of the adopted Local Development Plan due to the likely 

Page 3



4 

 
 

detrimental impact upon the wider connectivity and wildlife habitats 
associated with the Green Space Network. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation. 
 
 
66 TILLYDRONE AVENUE - 150402 
 
5. The Committee had before it a report by the Head of Planning and Sustainable 
Development which recommended:- 
 
That the Committee refuse the application for planning permission for the erection of a 
two storey side and rear extension, a single storey extension and a change of use of 
the property from a private dwelling (Class 9) to a House of Multiple Occupation (Sui 
Generis) with nine bedrooms, on the following grounds:- 

(1) The proposed use of the building as a House of Multiple Occupation for 
nine unrelated persons would intensify the existing use to an unacceptable 
level whereby there would be an adverse impact on the residential amenity 
of the area, mainly due to an increased level of noise and movements. The 
proposal is therefore contrary to Scottish Planning Series - Planning 
Circular 2/2012 (Houses in Multiple Occupation: Guidance on Planning 
Control and Licensing), Policy H1 (Residential Areas) of the Aberdeen 
Local Development Plan, Policy H1 (Residential Areas) of the proposed 
Local Development Plan and the Householder Development Guide; 

(2) The proposed car parking layout would result in inadequate provision of car 
parking spaces required for the size of the proposed development. 
Furthermore, the proposed layout would not allow cars to enter and exit 
Tillydrone Avenue in a forward gear as required due to the increased traffic 
levels following completion of the Third Don Crossing. The proposal is 
therefore contrary to Policy T2 (Managing the Transport Impact of 
Development) of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and Policy T2 
(Managing the Transport Impact of Development) of the proposed Local 
Development Plan; and 

(3) The proposal would result in a significant loss of light to the ground floor 
window of 68 Tillydrone Avenue to the detriment of their residential 
amenity. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy H1 (Residential Areas) 
of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan, Policy H1 (Residential Areas) of 
the Proposed Local Development Plan and the Householder Development 
Guide. 

 
Councillor Grant was in attendance as one of the local members, in terms of Standing 
Order 32(1), and indicated that he was willing to address the Committee if members 
were not in agreement with the recommendation contained within the report. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation. 
 
 
CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDERS - CHI/15/192 
 
6. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Communities, Housing 
and Infrastructure which sought confirmation of various provisional Tree Preservation 

Page 4



5 

 
 

Orders made under delegated powers to provide long term protection for the relevant 
trees. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee - 
(a) confirm the making of Tree Preservation Orders 106, 181, 183, 194, 225, 227, 

228 and 229 without modifications; and 
(b) instruct the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to attend to the requisite 

procedures. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations. 
- RAMSAY MILNE, Convener 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Development Management Committee  
 

ENGINEERING SCIENCE FACILITY, QUEEN'S 
ROAD, ABERDEEN 
 
ERECTION OF ENGINEERING SCIENCE 
FACILITY     
 
For: Albyn School 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Application Type : Detailed Planning Permission 
Application Ref.   :  P150161 
Application Date:       05/02/2015 
Officer :                     Sepideh Hajisoltani 
Ward : Hazlehead/Ashley/Queen's Cross(M 
Greig/J Stewart/R Thomson/J Corall) 

Advert  : Section 60/65 - Dev aff 
LB/CA 
Advertised on: 18/02/2015 
Committee Date: 16/07/2015 
Community Council :  
 

 

 

 

 RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approve Unconditionally 

Agenda Item 2.1

Page 7



DESCRIPTION 
The application site is located on the south side of Queen’s Road adjacent to the 
junction with Forest Avenue and comprises Albyn School; an independent, co-
educational school with approximately 740 pupils aged 2-18. The school grounds 
extend back to Queen’s Lane South and cover an area of approximately 1.1 
hectares with various associated buildings and external areas. Four of the granite 
buildings within the site are listed (dating from 1879 to 1884); the buildings at 19, 
21 and 23 Queen’s Road are ‘B’ listed, whilst 17 Queen’s Road is ‘C’ listed. The 
buildings are set back from Queen’s Road by 20-22 metres behind the staff and 
visitor car park.  The application refers specifically to the southern most section of 
the site and to the rear of No. 17 Queens Road, facing the rear lane.  
 
To the south and east of the site are residential properties while on the opposite 
side of Queen’s Road and Forest Avenue is a mix of residential and office 
buildings. The site is located within Albyn/ Rubislaw Conservation area and is 
identified as being within the west End Office Area, as designated in the 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2012).   
 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
Over the years there have been several planning applications relating to Albyn 
School. In particular, detailed planning permission (A5/1869) and Listed Building 
Consent (A5/1906) for proposed new primary school extension to rear of number 
23 Queen’s Road and internal alterations and proposed new access opening to 
boundary along Forest Avenue and Queen’s Road was approved conditionally in 
April 2006.  
 
PROPOSAL 
Detailed planning permission is sought for erection of a single storey facility to 
the rear of the application site (No.17 Queen’s Road). The proposed building 
would be attached to the existing building to the south of the site which also 
fronts onto Queen’s Lane.  
 
The building would measure approximately 17.2m x 11.6m and would have an 
overall footprint of 212.7sqm. The proposed pitched roof has an eaves height of 
4m and a ridge height of 6.3m. The linking section of the pitched roof on the 
western pitch would be used to house and screen ventilation equipment.  
 
The proposal would accommodate a new facility for teaching engineering and 
technology related subjects. The facility would be accessed through an entrance 
to the north elevation and would comprise of two classrooms and a storage 
space. The design incorporates a total of 5 windows to the north and east 
elevations. The finishing material would be pre-weathered zinc cladding for the 
roof and white render and matching zinc cladding for the external walls.  
 
The existing boundary wall would be taken down and materials would be 
reserved for rebuilding it at the completion of the project. Rubble wall and copes 
would be repointed using lime mortar.  
 

Page 8



It should be noted that the initial proposal has been amended and neighbours 
have been re-notified accordingly. The amendments include reducing the overall 
footprint of the proposal by approximately 15sqm and changing the orientation of 
the proposed building to reduce its impact on neighbouring properties.  
 
Supporting Documents 
All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this 
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at   
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=150161 

On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first 
page of this report. 
 
 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE 
 
The application has been referred to the Planning Development Management 
Committee because the proposal has attracted 11 letters of objection through the 
neighbour notification process. Submission of the amended drawings followed by 
the neighbour re-notification process has attracted 2 letters of objections.   
Accordingly, the application falls outwith the scope of the Council’s Scheme of 
Delegation. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Roads Development Management – No observations.  
Environmental Health – In order to protect the residents from any potential 
noise disturbance during the construction, the timing of construction works should 
be restricted.   
Communities, Housing and Infrastructure (Flooding) - No observations.  
Community Council – No comments received.  
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
Eleven letters of objection have been received. The objections raised relate to 
the following matters – 
 

1. The proposed design and materials are out keeping with the character of 
the Albyn/Rubislaw Conservation Area and the West End;  

2. The overall scale of the proposal and its impact on the residential 
character of the area;  

3. The proposal will result in over-development of the site;  
4. Overshadowing and daylight impact on the Coach House (No. 15 Queen’s 

Road) and 48 Gladstone Place;  
5. Lack of sufficient playground space at the school;  
6. The increase in class space would lead to an increase in student numbers 

and this would ultimately impact on traffic situation;  
7. The construction would result in deterioration and damage of the roads;  
8. Disruption and lack of access to Gladstone Place/ Queen’s Lane over the 

past years due to previous Albyn School Developments;  

Page 9



9. Lack of disruption and traffic management enforcement by the Council;  
10. Impact of the development on traffic arrangements in the area 
11. The opportunistic character of the proposed development and lack of an 

urgent need for an engineering facility while the school can use the 
existing engineering facilities at Robert Gordon University;  

12. The previous development created noise, substantial pounding and 
vibration as well as damage to some of the neighbouring properties.  

13. School’s lack of engagement with local residents;  
 

 
PLANNING POLICY 
 
National Policy and Guidance  
 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) 
Development should pay regard to the layout, design, materials, scale, siting and 
use of listed buildings, as well as their surrounding area’s character and 
appearance. It also states that development should either enhance or preserve 
the character or appearance of a conservation area.  
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan  
 
Policy D1- Architecture and Placemaking  
To ensure high standard of design, new development must be designed with due 
consideration for its context and make a positive contribution to its setting. 
Factors such as siting, scale, massing, colour, materials, orientation, details, the 
proportions of building elements, together with the spaces around buildings, 
including streets, squares, open space, landscaping and boundary treatments, 
will be considered in assessing that contribution.  
 
Policy BI3- West End Office Area  
In this area (shown on the Proposals Map), applications for change of use for 
office purposes will be given favourable consideration. Where there is scope to 
provide access to properties from rear lanes this will only be considered 
acceptable if satisfactory traffic management measures are in place, or can be 
provided by the developer, along the rear lanes. The development of associated 
front garden to car parks and driveways, and the subsequent erosion of 
associated landscaping, will not be permitted. The reinstatement and restoration 
of car parks to front gardens will be encouraged by the council.  
 
Policy H1- Residential Areas  
Within existing residential areas (H1 on the Proposals Map) and within new 
residential developments, proposals for new residential development and 
householder development will be approved in principle if it: 

1. Does not constitute overdevelopment;  
2. Does not have an unacceptable impact on the character or amenity of the 

surrounding area; and  
3. Complies with Supplementary Guidance contained in the Householder 

Development Guide  

Page 10



 
Policy D5- Built Heritage  
Proposals affecting Conservation Areas or Listed Buildings will only be permitted 
if they comply with Scottish Planning Policy. The legislation states “the overall 
integrity and character of the designated area will not be compromised and 
mitigation and appropriate measures shall be taken to conserve and enhance the 
essential characteristics, aesthetics, archaeological and historic value and setting 
of the site”.  
 
Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan  

   
The following policies substantively reiterate policies in the adopted local 
development plan as summarised above: 
 
D1- Quality Placemkaing by Design (D1- Architecture and Placemaking);  
B3- West End Office Area (BI3- West End Office Area)  
H1- Residential Properties (H1- Residential Properties) 
D5- Our Granite Heritage (D5- Built Heritage)  
 
EVALUATION 
 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning 
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that 
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the 
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) 
Act 1997 places a duty on planning authorities to preserve and enhance the 
character or appearance of conservation areas.  
 
Albyn School has a programme of continual improvement for maintaining a high 
record of academic achievement in Scotland. As stated in the associated design 
statement “ the school has identified that there is a need for as many pupils as 
possible to have education in engineering and technology related subjects”. The 
proposed development would accommodate the new Engineering Science 
Facility and would support the existing educational buildings on site.  
 
Design, Scale & Massing  
 
The proposed development would be located to the southern most section of the 
site and will be facing Queen’s Lane, which gives access to the rear of properties 
and garages on Queen’s Road and Gladstone Place. The proposed building 
would not be visible from Queen’s Road or Forest Avenue. The proposal would 
have a contemporary design appropriate for a new school building. It should be 
noted that over the years there has been an established development pattern 
within Albyn School for contemporary design and therefore approval of this 
application would be in-keeping with the evolving character of the school.  
 

Page 11



It is considered that the new building would have no significant impact on the 
appearance of the locality or on the character of the conservation area as there is 
already a variety of different properties (residential, educational and office 
buildings of various design) facing to Queen’s Lane. The Council’s Conservation 
officers have raised no concerns in regards to the proposed design and 
materials. The use of pre-weathered zinc is welcomed as the material would 
display a more monochromic appearance when installed versus unfinished zinc 
that would patina differently depending on the exposure to the environment.  
 
The overall height of the development would be higher than the existing building 
to the west, however it would still be subservient to the original buildings facing 
Queen’s Road and the coach house belonging to No.15 Queen’s Road.  
 
The proposal would result in an increase in site coverage from 46% to 
approximatley 48%, which is considered to be acceptable within the context of a 
school in an urban site.  
 
Residential Amenity Impact  
 
The school itself is not located within a ‘Residential Area’, however as the 
properties to the south of the proposed development are all residential, the 
development has been assessed against the relevant policy of H1- Residential 
Areas. It is considered that the revised proposal would not result in any impacts 
in terms of overshadowing or loss of daylight to the neighbouring properties, in 
compliance with Policy H1. The introduction of windows to the east and north 
elevation is deemed appropriate as it will not compromise the privacy of the 
neighbouring properties.  
 
West End Office Area  
This policy is not directly relevant to the assessment of this application as it is an 
enabling policy for change of use for office development. Also, the proposal 
relates to an existing and well established use in the West End. 
 
Matters Raised in Representations  
Objection points 1-4 relating to design, size, scale, materials, impact on 
surrounding conservation areas and impact on residential amenity have been 
addressed in the evaluation section of this report. All elements of the proposal 
have been found to comply with the relevant policies set out in the Aberdeen 
Local Development Plan.  
 
Objection point 5 relates to the loss of green space as a result of proposed 
development. The proposal will be replacing an amount of green space (grass) 
that was originally intended to serve the school as playground, however this area 
is mentioned to be largely underused. The applicant has advised that the the 
school is served by its playing field facility at Milltimber, which provides regular 
recreational and physical education opportunities for pupils of all ages. It is also 
considered that after development sufficient areas of open space and under-
cover play areas will remain on site. 
 

Page 12



Objection point 6-10 relates to the access, roads and traffic management. As 
stated in the submitted design statement, the number of students will not be 
increased and the new facility is intended to extend the education facilities for the 
current school role. As a result the proposal is not going to have any detrimental 
impact on traffic management. Other points raised regarding the lack of 
enforcement on illegal parking is not a relevant material consideration for 
assessment of this application. The roads officer has considered the application 
and has no objection to the proposal.  
 
Objection 11 is not a material planning consideration as the proposed use for the 
facility would serve the existing educational purpose of the school which is not 
considered to be an incompatible or unacceptable use.   
 
Objection 12 & 13 are refering to the previous developments, however it should 
be noted that problems arising from the construction period are not a material 
planning consideration and accordingly are not relevant to this decision.  
 
Full regard has been given to all concerns raised in representations, but neither 
do they outweigh the policy position as detailed above, nor they justify further 
amendments to the plans or refusal of the application.  
 
Conclusion 
The proposed development complies with the development plan and meets the 
requirements of SPP and SHEP. The location, scale, design and finishing 
material are acceptable. The proposal would not be detrimental to the character 
of the conservation area nor it would have a significant impact on the setting of 
the listed buildings that form the main part of the school. The proposal would not 
have a detrimental impact on residential amenity of the neighbouring properties. 
Accordingly, it is recommended that the application be approved.  
 
Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
 
The Proposed ALDP was approved at the meeting of the Communities, Housing 
and Infrastructure Committee of 28 October 2014. It constitutes the Council’s 
settled view as to what should be the content of the final adopted ALDP and is 
now a material consideration in the determination of planning applications, along 
with the adopted ALDP.  The exact weight to be given to matters contained in the 
Proposed ALDP (including individual policies) in relation to specific applications 
will depend on whether: 

- these matters have been subject to public consultation through the Main 
Issues Report; and 

- the level of objection raised in relation these matters as part of the Main 
Issues Report; and  

- the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration  
The foregoing can only be assessed on a case by case basis.  In relation to this 
particular application, Policies D1- Quality Placemaking by Design, BI3- West 
End Office Area, H1- Residential Areas and D5- Built Heritage substantively 
reiterate the guidance given from policies in the adopted Local Development 
Plan.  

Page 13



 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve Unconditionally 
 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The location, scale, design and finishing materials of the proposed development 
are acceptable. The proposal would not be detrimental to the character of the 
conservation area nor would it have a significant impact on the setting of the 
listed buildings that form the main part of the school. The proposal would not 
have a detrimental impact on residential amenity of the neighbouring properties. 
Therefore the application complies with the adopted Local Development Plan 
Policies D1- Architecture and Placemaking, H1- Residential Areas, BI3- West 
End Office Area and D5- Built Heritage and the equivalent policies in the 
Proposed Local Development Plan. The proposal also meets the requirements of 
Scottish Planning Policy and Scottish Historic Environment Policy. 
 
INFORMATIVE  
 
(1) In order to protect the residents of the surrounding/ adjacent properties from 

any potential noise nuisance arising from the proposed buildings works, no 
construction or demolition work shall take place: 
 

(a) Out with the hours of 0700 to1900 on Monday to Friday 
(b) Out with the hours of 0900 to 1600 on Saturdays, and 
(c) at any time on Sundays, except for works inaudible out with the 

application site boundary 
(d) If Pilling Operations are to be carried out, agreement should be 

reached with this Service regarding hours of operation. 
 

 
 

 

 

  

 

 

Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Development Management Committee  
 

32 ROSEBERY STREET, ABERDEEN 
 
PROPOSED APPLICATION FOR THE CHANGE 
OF USE OF EXISTING RESIDENTIAL 
PROPERTY, TO FORM A HOUSE OF 
MULTIPLE OCCUPANCY TO ACCOMMODATE 
6 UNRELATED PERSONS   
 
For: Grant Property 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Application Type : Detailed Planning Permission 
Application Ref.   :  P150742 
Application Date:       12/05/2015 
Officer :                     Sally Wood 
Ward : Midstocket/Rosemount (B Cormie/J 
Laing/F Forsyth) 

Advert  : n/a 
Advertised on: n/a 
Committee Date: 16th July 2015 
Community Council : Comments 
 

 
 

 

 

 RECOMMENDATION: Approve subject to conditions 
 

Agenda Item 2.2

Page 25



DESCRIPTION 
 

The application site relates to an upper floor flat which occupies the first and 
second floor within an established residential terrace.  The terrace consists of 
granite built dwellings with slate roof, two storeys in height with attic rooms.  
Rosebery Street is an established residential area, with a mix of terraced two 
storey dwellings with attic space, and single storey properties. 
 

To the front of the flat is a small garden beyond which is a public footpath. 
Rosebery Street operates a parking permit between the hours of 10:00-16:00 
Monday to Friday.  To the rear of the premises is a garden. 
 

RELEVANT HISTORY 
 

None relevant to the assessment of this application. 
 

PROPOSAL 
 

Planning permission is sought for a change of use from a single residential unit to 
a house in multiple occupation (HMO), with 6 bedrooms.  The plans 
accompanying the application show that the flat currently has four bedrooms a 
lounge, dining room, kitchen, a bathroom and store room.  The proposal shows 
six bedrooms, a lounge, kitchen, shower room and a bathroom.  Two rooflights 
are proposed on the front elevation, though it is considered that they would not 
require planning permission. 
 

Supporting Documents 
 

All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this 
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at   
 

http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=150742 
 

On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first 
page of this report. 
 

REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE 
 

The application has been referred to the Planning Development Management 
Committee because more than five objections have been received and an 
objection from the Community Council. Accordingly, the application falls outwith 
the scope of the Council’s Scheme of Delegation. 
 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

Roads Development Management – no objections.  No parking standard 
currently exists for HMO, parking assessment usually carried out on merit.  
Ideally seek 3 car parking spaces; therefore one additional parking space will be 
required.  Note that the HMO could apply for two permits.  Notes that the Traffic 

Page 26



Management Department advises that the shortfall of one space would not have 
any significant impact on parking.  Seeks four cycle spaces. 
Environmental Health – ‘no comments’ 
Communities, Housing and Infrastructure (Flooding) -  ‘no comments’ 
Waste and Recycling Services – no objections, comments on the provision 
required. 
Rosemount and Mile-End Community Council – objection, summarised as 
follows:- 

1. Not in-keeping; 
2. Over-development; 
3. Additional refuse; 
4. Noise; 
5. Parking; 
6. Questions in connection with parking permit allocation; 
7. The works are already completed. 

 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
27 letters of representation have been received objecting to the application. The 
objections raised relate to the following matters – 

1. Lack of car parking; 
2. Refuse bins being stored outside neighbouring properties; 
3. Rosebery Street is a ‘family street’; 
4. The use is not in-keeping; 
5. Increased noise/disturbance; 
6. Increase in traffic; 
7. Increased risk of anti-social behaviour; 
8. Tenant turnover leads to concerns; 
9. Devaluation; 
10. Maintenance of property/garden; 
11. How many more (HMO) licences to be granted in the area; 
12. Work has already commenced on site; 
13. Impact on existing services, e.g. schools, nurseries; 
14. Increased fire risk; 
15. Set a precedent for further House in Multiple Occupation applications;  
16. The House in Multiple Occupation licence has been refused; 
17. The application should be refused or limited to three people; 
18. Plenty of Houses in Multiple Occupation elsewhere within the city’ 
19. Depletion of family houses; 
20. Profit orientated; 
21. Proposal does not comply with statutory guidance for Scottish Local 

Authorities; 
22. Questions raised do not meet Building Warrant standards; 
23. The proposal may require multiple overhead telephone lines for internet 

access. 
 
PLANNING POLICY 
 
National Policy and Guidance  

Page 27



Scottish Planning Series – Planning Circular 2/2012 (Houses in Multiple 
Occupation: Guidance on Planning Control and Licensing): states that planning 
authorities should be mindful of the potential impact that concentration of HMO 
properties may have on the amenity of the area. Essentially, it encourages 
policies being put in place in order to ensure there are not an over-concentration 
of HMO properties in particular locations. 
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
 
Policy H1: Residential Areas: states that within existing residential areas, 
proposals for non-residential uses will be refused unless: they are considered 
complementary to residential use; or it can be demonstrated that the use would 
cause no conflict with, or nuisance to, the enjoyment of existing residential 
amenity. 
 
Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
 
Policy H1: Residential Areas: for non-residential uses within existing residential 
areas the same criteria applies as in the current plan (see above). 
 
Supplementary Guidance 
 
The Council’s supplementary guidance “Householder Development Guide” is a 
relevant material consideration. Page 24-26 of the Householder Development 
Guide gives specific guidance on how to assess proposals for HMO.  Where flats 
are concerned, planning legislation does not specify any number of residents 
above which premises will no longer be considered a ‘flat’ for planning purposes; 
however, the guidance continues to state it is considered that 6 or more 
unrelated people living together in a flat would be materially different from family 
use.  It should be noted that planning and HMO licence have different thresholds 
and should not be confused.  Furthermore, the granting of planning permission 
does not guarantee a successful licence application and vice versa. 
 
EVALUATION 
 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning 
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that 
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the 
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Principle of Development and impact on character of the area 
 
Whilst the intensity of the proposed use is such that it is not considered to be of a 
domestic scale, and is therefore neither a dwellinghouse (class 9) nor a flat (sui 
generis), the nature of the use is nevertheless pseudo-residential in nature.  In 
that respect it is considered there is no conflict with Aberdeen Local Development 
Plan Policy H1. 
 

Page 28



Intensive occupation for residential purposes generally increases pressure on 
shared facilities, such as gardens, car parking and refuse arrangements. 
Rosebery Street currently operates a parking permit between 10:00-16:00 
Monday to Friday.  The existing flat has access to two parking permits, and such 
a use would generate the need for two car parking spaces.  The proposed HMO 
use would also have access to two car parking permits, and whilst there is no 
specific guidance on car parking for a House in Multiple Occupation, the Roads 
Development Management Team have advised that three spaces would be 
required.  Whilst no car parking spaces can be provided within the confines of the 
application site, it is noted that the existing flat would generate in parking terms a 
requirement of two car parking spaces within the street, as is the case with many 
of the residential properties.  On the basis that the existing use would generate 
two car parking spaces and the proposed use three spaces, it is the ‘balance’ of 
one car parking space that is the shortfall.  There are no objections from the 
Roads Development Management Team, further noting that the Traffic 
Management Department do not consider that the shortfall of one space would 
have a significant impact on parking.  Therefore it is considered that there are no 
parking issues as a result of this proposal. 
 
Given the surrounding area is predominantly residential in nature, and contains a 
large number of flatted properties, the intensity of the proposed use is not 
considered to be fundamentally incompatible with the character and amenity 
thereof.  As noted above, if the scheme was for five unrelated persons planning 
permission would not be required.  Furthermore, it is noted that the dwelling is 
located within close proximity to bus stops.  On the basis of these considerations 
it is considered unreasonable to refuse the scheme on lack of car parking, 
particularly as the Council has no specific car parking standard for this use.  In 
turn, given the above considerations it would be unreasonable to refuse on the 
grounds of increased traffic, as raised in a number of the letters of 
representation.  The Roads Development Management Team has advised that it 
seeks four cycle parking spaces; this is to encourage other forms of transport and 
to provide secure facilities.  Cycle storage provision would be secured by 
Condition and can be accommodated within the garden to the rear, accessed off 
Hosefield Avenue; the Agent has advised that this is possible.  
 
The potential for direct disturbance from six individuals living in the property via 
noise nuisance is not considered to be significantly different from the five 
unrelated residents which could be living in the same property without the need 
for planning permission. It is therefore unlikely that there would be any significant 
adverse impact upon the adjoining properties or surrounding area as a result of 
the proposed change of use. It is also worth noting that if this property was 
mainstream residential, six or more related people could live at the address 
without the need for planning permission. Therefore it is considered that the 
application is not contrary to Policy H1 and would not be contrary to the defining 
principles of Circular 2/2012 or the Householder Development Guide. 
 
Planning records indicate that only a limited number of HMO’s have been granted 
planning permission (which is required for properties with more than 5 unrelated 

Page 29



occupants) in the area between Raeden Park Road and Argyll Place.  A search 
identifies the following properties: 

• P111509 Change of use from maisonette to HMO registered property (4 
unrelated persons), 27 Bonnymuir Place. 

Whilst there may be a number of HMO properties within the area, as planning is 
only required if it more than 5 unrelated persons, it is considered that in planning 
terms there is no clear evidence of an excessive concentration of HMO’s in the 
locality, such that the character of the area could be considered to have changed 
and which may warrant refusal of planning permission  On the basis of these 
considerations it is considered that the proposed use is not incompatible with the 
adjacent dwellings, and therefore not out of keeping.  In conclusion it would be 
inappropriate to refuse planning permission, particularly as there are no specific 
planning policies contained within the Local Development Plan.  Nevertheless, in 
considering the HMO licence, the issue of intensification, or rather overprovision, 
would be considered by the Council. 
 
Planning Circular 2/2012 states that the “The licensing of HMOs seeks to ensure 
high standards in terms of; the suitability of a property owner (and their agent) to 
be a HMO owner (or to act for the owner); the suitability of the living 
accommodation itself; and allows the local authority to consider overprovision. A 
licensing authority has discretion to set any reasonable conditions it thinks fit. 
These issues are matters properly dealt with through the HMO licensing regime 
and are therefore not matters for planning authorities to take into account in the 
granting of planning permission. A decision on the granting of planning 
permission must take account only of relevant planning issues, and should make 
no assumptions about the potential behaviour of tenants.” 
 
Therefore, it is clear that the following objections raised are not material 
considerations to the planning application (the numbered bullet points relate to 
the points referred to under ‘Representations’): 
 
7. Increased risk of anti-social behaviour 
8. Tenant turnover leads to concerns 
10. Maintenance of property/garden 

11. How many more licences to be granted in the area 
16. The House in Multiple Occupation licence has been refused 

17. The application should be refused or limited to three people 

18. Plenty of Houses in Multiple Occupation elsewhere within the city’ 
21. Proposal does not comply with statutory guidance for Scottish Local 

Authorities 

 
A number of representations made objected on the basis of refuse bins being 
stored outside neighbouring properties.  Given that the planning consideration 
relates to one additional person living at the property over what is permitted 
development, it is not considered that the proposal can be refused on this basis.  
Furthermore, it is noted that no objections to the scheme were made by Waste 
and Recycling Services. 
 

Page 30



In addition, the following are not material considerations for the reasons 
described: 
Point 9: Devaluation and, Point 20: Profit orientated 
The impact on value of land is not a material planning consideration, nor are 
profits or a perceived need or lack of need for a development. 
Point 12: Work has already commenced on site 
The application is for a change of use, and it is understood that the use has not 
been implemented.  In any case planning applications can be considered for 
retrospective works, which are carried out at the developers. 
Point13: Impact on existing services, e.g. schools, nurseries 
The nature of a House in Multiple Occupation is such that the impacts on schools 
and nurseries are minimal, as they tend to be for more transient people on short 
term leases.  It is therefore considered that there should be no burden placed on 
these facilities.  Indeed, occupation of the property as a family residence would 
be much more likely to place additional demand on local schools and nurseries.  
It is noted that the application is for six persons. 
Point 14: Increased fire risk. 
This is not a material planning consideration, and would be considered by 
licencing (in terms of fire doors, alarms, etc.) and Building Standards. 
Point 15: Set a precedent for further House in Multiple Occupation 
Each planning application is determined on its own merits, and therefore no 
precedent would be set. 
Point 19: Depletion of family houses 
The Local Development Plan does not have a policy relating to Houses in 
Multiple Occupation and this matter.  Furthermore, the approval of this 
application would not result in any notable change of the availability of family 
houses.  This is not a material planning consideration, but may be a 
consideration under the HMO licence application.  
Point 22: Questions are raised with regards to whether the proposal complies 
with Building Standards 
This would be assessed under any building warrant application. 
Point 23: The proposal may require multiple overhead telephone lines for internet 
access. 
This is not a material planning consideration. 
 
Matters Raised by the Community Council. 
 
Rosemount and Mile-End Community Council have made a number of points in 
their letter of representation, which have already been covered and assessed 
within this report. 
 
Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
 
The Proposed ALDP was approved at the meeting of the Communities, Housing 
and Infrastructure Committee of 28 October 2014. It constitutes the Council’s 
settled view as to what should be the content of the final adopted ALDP and is 
now a material consideration in the determination of planning applications, along 
with the adopted ALDP.  The exact weight to be given to matters contained in the 

Page 31



Proposed ALDP (including individual policies) in relation to specific applications 
will depend on whether: 

- these matters have been subject to public consultation through the Main 
Issues Report; and 

- the level of objection raised in relation these matters as part of the Main 
Issues Report; and  

- the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration  
The foregoing can only be assessed on a case by case basis.  In relation to this 
particular application there are no new issues raised. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve, subject to conditions 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
It is recommended that approval is given subject to the following 
condition:- 
 
(1.) Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved four cycle 
spaces shall be provided in accordance with details that shall be first submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. Thereafter the four cycle 
spaces shall be retained and made available for such use at all times. – To 
promote alternative modes of travel. 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the use of the premises as an House of Multiple Occupation (HMO) (being 
quasi-residential in nature) is consistent with the residential character of the 
surrounding area and would not result in any undue impact on the character and 
amenity of the property, or those in the locality. There would be a neutral impact 
on the character and appearance of the surrounding area. The proposal would 
have no adverse impact on pedestrian or road safety. The proposal is therefore 
considered to accord with Policy H1 (Residential Areas) of the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan, and the relevant content pertaining to HMOs in the Council's 
adopted Householder Development Guide. 
 
The proposal does not offend the principles of Policy H1 (Residential Areas) of 
the Proposed Local Development Plan. 
 
 
 

 

Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Planning Development Management Committee  
 

13 MANOR PLACE, CULTS 
 
ERECTION OF 2-STOREY EXTENSION TO 
SIDE OF EXISTING DWELLING HOUSE.    
 
For: Mr & Mrs McGeown 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Application Type : Detailed Planning Permission 
Application Ref.   :  P150378 
Application Date:       12/03/2015 
Officer :                     Ross McMahon 
Ward : Lower Deeside (M Boulton/A Malone/M 
Malik) 

Advert  :  
Advertised on:  
Committee Date: 16/07/2015 
Community Council : No response 
received 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approve subject to conditions 

13 

Agenda Item 2.3

Page 47



DESCRIPTION 
The application site located on the south-east side of Manor Place extends to 486sq.m 
and is occupied by a two storey semi-detached dwellinghouse. The footprint of the 
existing dwelling results in a site coverage of approx. 9%. The dwelling is of a traditional 
design finished in pink granite and natural slate. The site levels slope down gradually 
from Manor Place to the rear (south-east) and the site is demarcated by a c. 1.8m stone 
high timber fence shared with no. 11 Manor Place, and a c. 1.2m high stone wall to the 
south-east of the site. The site is identified as a Residential Area in the adopted 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
Planning permission (application ref. 141008) for the erection of a two storey side 
extension and roof terrace of a contemporary design was recommended for a 
conditional approval however was subsequently refused at planning committee in 
November 2014. The proposal was considered to be out of character with the original 
dwelling and the surrounding area. 
 
PROPOSAL 
Planning permission is sought to erect a two storey extension, extending along the 
entire width of the gable, 5m wide, and its roof ridge lining through with existing, to 
provide a lounge, utility room and WC at ground floor level and bedroom and en-suite at 
upper level. The roof would be fully hipped to match existing. To the front elevation, 
glazing would comprise a window at ground floor level and half-height dormer window to 
match existing at upper level. To the rear, there would be a set of patio doors leading to 
a small patio decked area and small window at upper level. Materials to include a pink 
granite frontage with grey concrete lintels and quoins, the remainder finished with 
render, and natural slate to the proposed roof. 
 
The proposal has been amended from the original submission in respect of proposed 
materials, overall size and footprint. 
 
Supporting Documents 
All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this application can 
be viewed on the Council’s website at   
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=150378 
On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first page of 
this report. 
 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE 
The application has been referred to the Planning Development Management 
Committee because the proposal has attracted 7 letters of objection through the 
neighbour notification process. Accordingly, the application falls outwith the scope of the 
Council’s Scheme of Delegation. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 

Page 48



Roads Development Management – No objections, providing informatives are added 
to the consent. 
Environmental Health – No observations. 
Communities, Housing and Infrastructure (Flooding) – No observations. 
Community Council – No comments received. 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
Seven letters of objection have been received. The objections raised relate to the 
following matters – 
 

1. Shared drainage issues; 
2. Absence of granite to principle elevation; 
3. Proposed extension wider than existing house; 
4. Proposed extension and roof not in line with existing house; 
5. Out of character with the existing dwelling and the streetscape; 
6. Existing granite to side elevation should be used to face the proposed extension. 
7. Amount of building work/construction taking place on Manor Place; 
8. Noise/disturbance associated with construction. 

 
It should be noted that the above matters relate to the original submission, and are not a 
reflection of the current, amended proposal. 
 
PLANNING POLICY 
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 

 
Policy D1 – Architecture and Placemaking  
To ensure high standards of design, new development must be designed with due 
consideration for its context and make a positive contribution to its setting. Factors such 
as siting, scale, massing, colour, materials, orientation, details, the proportions of 
building elements, together with the spaces around buildings, including streets, squares, 
open space, landscaping and boundary treatments, will be considered in assessing that 
contribution.  
 
Policy H1 – Residential Areas 
Within existing residential areas (H1 on the Proposals Map) and within new residential 
developments, proposals for new residential development and householder 
development will be approved in principle if it: 

1. does not constitute overdevelopment; 
2. does not have an unacceptable impact on the character or amenity of the 

surrounding area; and 
3. complies with Supplementary Guidance contained in the Householder 

Development Guide.  
 
Supplementary Guidance 
Householder Development Guide 

Page 49



 
Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan 

 
The following policies substantively reiterate policies in the adopted local development 
plan as summarised above: 
 
D1 – Quality Placemaking by Design (D1 – Architecture and Placemaking in adopted 
LDP); 
 
H1 – Residential Areas (H1 – Residential Areas in adopted LDP). 
 
 
EVALUATION 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning acts, 
regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that determination 
shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the application, unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Principle of Development 
The application site is located within an area zoned for residential use in the adopted 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012, and relates to an existing dwellinghouse. The 
proposed extension is therefore acceptable in principle subject to an acceptable form 
and appearance. In determining what constitutes an acceptable form of extension, the 
aforementioned national and local planning policies and associated supplementary 
guidance will be of relevance. 
 
Design, Scale & Massing 
The overall size, scale and projection of side extensions to the side of semi-detached 
properties are determined on a site specific basis where they do not project along a 
common boundary. General principles expect that they should be architecturally 
compatible in design and scale with the original house and surrounding area, materials 
should be complementary and any development should not overwhelm or dominate the 
original form or appearance of the dwelling house. 
 
The amended proposal would result in an increase in site coverage to 17%, which is 
considered to be acceptable within the context of the surrounding area. This is in line 
with the Council’s aforementioned supplementary guidance on householder 
development, in that the proposal would not double the existing footprint of the original 
dwelling, and at least half of the rear garden ground would remain. 
 
Amendments to the original proposal have sought to better relate the extension to the 
existing dwelling by bringing the front elevation of the proposal in line with that of the 
existing and by specifying granite to the public facing elevation of the extension as a 
continuation of the original property. While the proposed is significant, amendments to 
the proposal have successfully dealt with the visual dominance of such a large side 

Page 50



extension, by extending the original form, roof profile and through the repetition of 
similar architectural elements, detailing and materials. As such, the proposed extension 
is considered to integrate with and complement the existing building, and thus on 
balance is acceptable within the context of the surrounding properties. 
 
The proposed half-height dormer to the front of the property is predominantly glazed 
and would be appropriately positioned within the extended roof slope. Its design is 
considered to complement and reflect the existing dormers to the front elevation, and 
other dormer windows featured on adjacent and surrounding properties. The proposed 
dormer is therefore considered to comply with the aforementioned supplementary 
guidance. 
 
Residential Amenity Impact 
Additionally, no development should result in a situation where amenity is ‘borrowed’ 
from an adjacent property. Since daylight is ambient, the calculation is applied to the 
nearest window serving a habitable room. Using the “45 degree rule” as set out in the 
British Research Establishment’s Site Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight – A 
Guide to Good Practice’, calculations indicate that all neighbouring properties are 
located sufficiently distant from the proposed extension to ensure no significant 
detrimental impact in terms of loss of daylight to habitable windows.  
 
Turning to the impact to adjacent properties in terms of overshadowing, the orientation 
of the proposed extension and its distance are important factors. Calculations indicate 
that due to the size, form and orientation of the proposal, there would not be any 
additional impact relating to overshadowing of private rear garden ground to 
surrounding properties. 
 
Matters Raised in Representations 
With regard to objection point 1; there is no provision in planning legislation regarding 
issues relating to shared drainage. Furthermore, there is no statutory requirement for 
applicants to submit information to the Planning Authority relating to building services. 
Separate legislation dictates the manner in which services are accommodated within 
the site, such as via a building warrant etc.  Any consequential issues arising from such 
situations would be private, civil matters between concerned parties. Amendments have 
not been sought by the Planning Authority on the grounds that there would be no 
planning benefit in doing so, as stated above, however the applicant has been informed 
of the points raised in the representation.   
 
Objection points 2 to 6 relating to design, size, scale, materials and impact on the 
streetscape, have been addressed in the evaluation section of this report. The proposal 
has been amended in respect of these comments and as such has resulted in a 
development that makes due regard for its context, replicating similar extensions to 
surrounding properties. The amended proposal has been found to comply with the 
relevant policies set out in the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and associated 
Supplementary Guidance: Householder Development Guide. 
 

Page 51



Objection point 7 and 8 relates to the potential disruption associated with construction. It 
is inevitable that any development will result in an element of disruption; however this is 
a relatively short term impact and thus could not be considered a material planning 
consideration. An informative has been added to the consent highlighting that 
construction should not take place outwith agreed hours – in the interests of residential 
amenity. 
 
Full regard has been given to all concerns raised in representations, but neither do they 
outweigh the policy position as detailed above, nor do they justify further amendments 
to the plans or refusal of the application.  
 
Conclusion 
To summarise, all elements of the proposal are considered to be complementary to the 
existing property by way of their size, scale and overall height. While the majority of the 
proposal would be viewable from Manor Place, it is not considered that they would have 
a detrimental impact on the character of the streetscape or the wider area. For the 
aforementioned reasons, the proposal is considered to comply with the relevant policies 
and associated supplementary guidance contained within the adopted Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan 2012. On the basis of the above, and following on from the 
evaluation under policy and guidance, it is considered that there are no material 
planning considerations that would warrant refusal of the application. 
 
Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan 

 
The Proposed ALDP was approved at the meeting of the Communities, Housing and 
Infrastructure Committee of 28 October 2014. It constitutes the Council’s settled view as 
to what should be the content of the final adopted ALDP and is now a material 
consideration in the determination of planning applications, along with the adopted 
ALDP.  The exact weight to be given to matters contained in the Proposed ALDP 
(including individual policies) in relation to specific applications will depend on whether: 

- these matters have been subject to public consultation through the Main Issues 
Report; and 

- the level of objection raised in relation these matters as part of the Main Issues 
Report; and  

- the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration  
 
The foregoing can only be assessed on a case by case basis.  In relation to this 
particular application, the policies in the Proposed ALDP substantively reiterate those in 
the adopted local development plan and the proposal is acceptable in terms of both 
plans for the reasons already previously given.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve subject to conditions 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 

Page 52



The proposal complies with the relevant policies of the Aberdeen Local Development 
Plan 2012, namely Policies D1 (Architecture and Placemaking) and H1 (Residential 
Areas) and the associated Supplementary Guidance: Householder Development Guide 
and Proposed Local Development Plan Policies D1 (Quality Placemaking by Design) 
and H1 (Residential Areas) in that the proposal has been designed to respect the scale 
of the existing dwelling, and in addition there would be no detrimental impact on the 
existing visual or residential amenities of the area. Full consideration has been given to 
all concerns raised in representations, but neither do they outweigh the policy position 
as detailed above, nor do they justify further amendments to the plans or refusal of the 
application. 
 
CONDITIONS 
it is recommended that approval is given subject to the following conditions:- 
 
(1)  that no development shall take place unless details of the material, texture and 
coursing of the proposed granite to the front elevation of the development hereby 
approved has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the planning authority and 
thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the details so agreed 
- in the interests of visual amenity. 
 
INFORMATIVES 

· The driveway must be internally drained with no surface water discharging onto 
the public road; 

· Loose material (e.g. stone chippings) must not be used to surface any of the first 
2 metres length adjacent to the footway. 

 
No construction or demolition work should  take place:  

(a)  outwith the hours of 7.00 am to 7.00 pm Mondays to Fridays;  
(b)  outwith the hours of 9.00 am to 4.00 pm Saturdays; or  
(c)  at any time on Sundays, except (on all days) for works inaudible outwith the 
application site boundary.  [For the avoidance of doubt, this would generally allow 
internal finishing work, but not the use of machinery] - in the interests of 
residential amenity. 

 
 

Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Development Management Committee  
 

7 ST MACHAR PLACE, ABERDEEN 
 
EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS AND FORMATION 
OF DRIVEWAY TO FRONT OF EXISTING 
PROPERTY.    
 
For: Mr Warren Burgess 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Application Type : Detailed Planning Permission 
Application Ref.   :  P150785 
Application Date:       19/05/2015 
Officer :                     Ross McMahon 
Ward : Tillydrone/Seaton/Old Aberdeen (J 
Noble/R Milne/R Grant) 

Advert  : Section 60/65 - Dev aff 
LB/CA 
Advertised on: 03/06/2015 
Committee Date: 16/07/2015 
Community Council : Comments 
 

  

 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approve subject to conditions 

7 

Agenda Item 2.4

Page 61



 
 
DESCRIPTION 
The application site located on the north-east side of St Machar Place extends to 
725sq.m and is occupied by a one-and-half storey semi-detached dwellinghouse. The 
footprint of the existing dwelling results in a site coverage of approx. 12%. The site 
remains relatively level throughout and is demarcated by c. 1m high timber fencing to all 
front boundaries and a c. 1.5m high stone wall, mature trees and shrubs to the rear. The 
site is identified as a Residential Area in the adopted Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
2012 and is located within the recently extended Old Aberdeen Conservation Area (April 
2015). No.s 3-8 St Machar Place was included in the Old Aberdeen Conservation Area 
in April 2015. The six inter-war cottage style semi-detached houses are laid out in a 
semi-circle and were included in the Conservation Area as they are typical examples of 
development associated with the building of the new inner ring road of St Machar in the 
1920s. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY  
None. 
 
PROPOSAL 
Planning permission is sought to form a driveway area to the front of the property to 
provide a parking space for 1no. vehicle. The driveway area would measure 2.5m by 
6.1m and would be formed in concrete slabs (for the first 2m of driveway) and stone 
chips. 
 
A number of external alterations are proposed to the property including: 
 

· Installation of a new rooflight in place of an existing conservation rooflight to the 
north-west elevation; 

· Installation of 11no. slate vents to the existing roof (all elevations); 

· Removal and replacement of existing v-shaped window to rear with PVCu framed 
windows; 

· Replace all existing rear timber windows (dormers, kitchen, utility and family 
room) with PVCu framed windows; 

· External alterations to existing rear kitchen (removing existing windows and 
doors; install new door and PVCu window; build up and re-harl external walls in 
wetdash render painted to match the existing dwelling); 

· Removal of rear chimney stack and re-slate roof in natural slate to match 
existing. 

 
It should be noted that the existing original front windows and door are to remain as 
existing and have subsequently been omitted from the original submission. 
 
Supporting Documents 
 

Page 62



All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this application can 
be viewed on the Council’s website at   
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=150785 
On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first page of 
this report. 
 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE 
The application has been referred to the Planning Development Management 
Committee as a formal objection to the proposal from the Old Aberdeen Community 
Council has been received. Accordingly, the application falls outwith the scope of the 
Council’s Scheme of Delegation. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
Roads Development Management – No objections, providing a number of 
informatives are added to the consent. 
Environmental Health – No observations. 
Communities, Housing and Infrastructure (Flooding) – No observations 
Community Council – The Old Aberdeen Community Council has formally objected to 
the proposal on the following grounds: 
 

1. Proposed alterations would not give due regard to the preservation or 
enhancement of a residential premise; 

2. The development would not be in keeping with the character and amenity of the 
property or the remainder of the street and would have a negative visual impact 
on the area contrary to Policy H1 (Residential Areas); 

3. Proposed replacement windows and loss of original V-shaped window to the rear 
is contrary to SHEP and the Council’s Technical Advice Note: The Repair and 
Replacement of Windows and Doors; 

4. Proposed construction notes do not clarify the proposed replacement window 
material; 

5. All proposed replacement windows should be specified as timber; 
6. Existing front door should be refurbished instead of replaced. If replacement is 

sought then the specified material should be timber; 
7. The formation of parking to the front of the property is contrary to the Council’s 

stated policies for Conservation Areas; 
8. Mature trees would be impacted by the proposed front drive; 
9. The site is incapable of providing sufficient off-street parking for a a 5 resident 

HMO; 
10. The proposed alterations would mean that the property could only be used for 

intensive commercial occupation, contrary to Policy H1 (Residential Areas); 
11. The proposed alterations would result in a more intensive occupancy and 

associated activity leading to increased noise and disturbance to long-term 
residents. 

12. Proposed downstairs bathroom has no natural light or ventilation and would 
exacerbate existing existing damp issues. 

 

Page 63



REPRESENTATIONS 
Two letters of objection – in addition to the Community Council objection – have been 
received. The objections raised relate to the following matters – 

1. The proposal would detract from the character and appearance of the property 
and of the Old Aberdeen Conservation Area; 

2. The formation of parking to the front of the property is contrary to the Council’s 
stated policies for Conservation Areas; 

3. Parking to the front of the property would obscure original features of the existing 
dwelling; 

4. Loss of integral central path would distort the symmetry of the front garden, to the 
detriment of the dwelling and remainder of St Machar Place; 

5. Off street parking provision relating to HMO requirements; 
6. Front driveway would set an undesirable precedent for Conservation Areas 

throughout the City; 
7. Proposed hardstanding and parking use would have a detrimental impact on 

existing trees; 
8. Replacement windows and door is contrary to the Council’s Technical Advice 

Note: The Repair and Replacement of Windows and Doors. 
 
PLANNING POLICY 
 
National Policy and Guidance 

 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) 
Paragraph 143 – Conservation Areas: Proposals for development within conservation 
areas and proposals outwith which will impact on its appearance, character or setting, 
should preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the conservation area. 
Proposals that do not harm the character or appearance of the conservation area 
should be treated as preserving its character or appearance. 
 
Scottish Historic Environment Policy (SHEP) 
Development should not adversely affect the special interest and character of Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas. 
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 

 
Policy D1 – Architecture and Placemaking  
To ensure high standards of design, new development must be designed with due 
consideration for its context and make a positive contribution to its setting. Factors such 
as siting, scale, massing, colour, materials, orientation, details, the proportions of 
building elements, together with the spaces around buildings, including streets, squares, 
open space, landscaping and boundary treatments, will be considered in assessing that 
contribution.  
 
Policy D5 – Built Heritage 

Page 64



Proposals affecting Conservation Areas or Listed Buildings will only be permitted if they 
comply with Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
Policy H1 – Residential Areas 
Within existing residential areas (H1 on the Proposals Map) and within new residential 
developments, proposals for new residential development and householder 
development will be approved in principle if it: 
 

1. does not have an unacceptable impact on the character or amenity of the 
surrounding area. 

 
Conservation Area Character Appraisals & Management Plan 

· Strategic Overview and Management Plan (July 2013) 

· Approved Draft Old Aberdeen Conservation Area Character Appraisal (Jan 2015) 
 
Supplementary Guidance 

· Transport and Accessibility 

· Trees and Woodland 
 
Technical Advice Note 
The Repair and Replacement of Windows and Doors 
 
Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan 

 
The following policies substantively reiterate policies in the adopted local development 
plan as summarised above: 
 
D1 – Quality Placemaking by Design (D1 – Architecture and Placemaking in adopted 
LDP); 
 
D4 – Historic Environment (D5 – Built Heritage in adopted LDP); 
 
H1 – Residential Areas (H1 – Residential Areas in adopted LDP). 
 
EVALUATION 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning acts, 
regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that determination 
shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the application, unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 places a duty on planning authorities to preserve and enhance the character or 
appearance of conservation areas. 
 
Front Driveway 

Page 65



The Council’s Supplementary Guidance: Transport and Accessibility sets out specific 
criteria for proposed driveways generally and those proposed to the front of properties 
within conservation areas specifically. The planning criteria considered – relevant to this 
particular application – when assessing whether consent may be granted for parking in 
front gardens of listed buildings or buildings in conservation areas is set out below: 
 

1. Driveways must be at least 5m in length; 
2. The gradient of driveway must not normally exceed 1:20; 
3. The first two metres of driveway adjacent to the footpath must not be surfaced in 

loose material such as gravel; 
4. The driveway must be drained internally, with no surface water discharging into 

the roadway; 
5. No more than 35% of the front garden area may be given over for the combined 

parking area, driveway and turning area, or 50% if footpaths and other hard 
surfaced are included.  

6. At least 50% of the garden area should be left in topsoil to permit soft 
landscaping; 

7. The formation of the access driveway must not result in the loss of any street 
trees or significant garden trees; 

8. Consent will not be granted where the property has a rear garden area, suitable 
for parking, which is accessible from a rear lane or side street. 

 
The proposed front driveway is considered to meet all of the above planning criteria for 
the following reasons: 
 

1. The driveway would exceed the minimum 5m requirement for overall length; 
2. The gradient of the proposed drive would not exceed 1:20; 
3. The first two metres of driveway adjacent to the footpath would be surfaced in 

concrete slabs; 
4. The driveway would be internally drained, with no surface water discharging into 

the roadway; 
5. The proposed combined parking and footpath area would not exceed 50% of the 

front garden area; 
6. 71% of the front garden area would remain in soft landscaping  
7. No front garden trees would be removed from the site; 
8. The layout of the site boundary relative to the existing dwelling is such that rear 

garden parking is not an option. 
 
Notwithstanding the above planning considerations, it should be noted that Roads 
Development Management has not objected on the basis that current standards in 
relation to loose material and internal drainage are met. 
 
Conservation Area Impact 
The Council’s Conservation Area Character Appraisal: Strategic Overview and 
Management Plan discusses parking in front gardens and makes reference to the 
potential negative impact caused by parking to the front of properties in all but the 

Page 66



largest front gardens, potentially obscuring important features. However, it should be 
noted that the majority of properties within St Machar Place have driveways which form 
part of the character of the street at the time of inclusion within the Old Aberdeen 
Conservation Area. While it is noted that these properties have driveways leading to 
detached garages – located to the side of the existing dwelling – it is not considered that 
the introduction of an additional single driveway to the front garden of 7 St Machar 
Place would have a detrimental impact on the existing dwelling, streetscape or Old 
Aberdeen Conservation Area. Given the layout of St Machar Drive and the position of 
the property relative to the road i.e. partially screened by existing trees and foliage, the 
proposed front drive would not significantly block or obscure important building features 
or impact on the character of the street generally.  
 
The proposed driveway is considered to be modest in nature and has been found to 
comply with the Council’s Supplementary Guidance: Transport and Accessibility and the 
Conservation Area Character Appraisal: Strategic Overview and Management Plan. 
Additionally, Roads Development Management has not objected to the proposal. 
  
External Alterations 
All proposed external alterations – including the proposed slate vents, roof light and 
external kitchen alterations – are considered to be acceptable in relation to the existing 
property and surrounding area and would not have a significant detrimental impact on 
the character or appearance of the existing dwelling or conservation area given that 
they are relatively minor in nature. The loss of an existing V-shaped window and 
replacement PVCu windows to the rear can only be considered in relation to its impact 
on the character and appearance of the Old Aberdeen Conservation Area, and it is 
considered that their removal would have a negligible impact given the their position to 
the rear of the property, not readily viewable from a public vantage point. 
 
It should be noted that the existing rear chimney was removed after the application had 
been validated and is therefore retrospective. A site visit and photographs show that 
only a very small section of the rear chimney stack was viewable from St Machar Place 
and as such, its removal is not considered to detriment the existing dwelling or 
Conservation Area generally.  
 
The proposed replacement windows to the rear are considered to comply with the 
Council’s Supplementary Guidance: The Repair and Replacement of Windows and 
Doors in that they would not be viewable from any public vantage point and as such the 
use of PVCu frames is considered acceptable in this instance. 
 
Other Material Considerations 
Local Planning Authorities have a statutory duty to have regard for the preservation of 
existing trees. New developments must include measures to ensure the long term 
retention of existing trees.  
 

Page 67



It is therefore deemed necessary to apply a condition to the consent to ensure the 
protection of trees in and around the application site that may be affected during the 
construction of the development, specifically the formation of the driveway. 
 
Matters Raised by the Community Council 
Objection points 1 to 7 relating to the proposed replacement windows, front drive, 
impact on existing dwelling and the potential impact on the Conservation Area, have 
been addressed in the evaluation section of this report. Consent is no longer sought to 
replace the existing front bay windows and door. The amended proposal has been 
found to comply with the relevant policies set out in the Aberdeen Local Development 
Plan and associated Supplementary Guidance: Householder Development Guide. 
 
Objection point 8 relates to the potential impact on existing trees as a result of the 
proposed driveway. It is not considered that the proposed area of hardstanding (a 2m 
deep section from the pavement into the site) in addition to the ground pressure 
associated with parking vehicles within the site would significantly detriment the existing 
trees on the site. However, it has been considered necessary to add condition to the 
consent to ensure the protection of trees in and around the application site that may be 
affected during the construction of the development. 
 
Objections 9 to 11 relate to activity associated with the property’s use as a HMO. It 
should be noted that there is no requirement – in planning terms – for the applicant to 
submit an application for change of use as the number of occupants would be less than 
6. In this respect, the application can only be assessed as a householder application; 
therefore any objections/concerns relating to the property’s use as a HMO are irrelevant 
and cannot form part of the evaluation of the proposal. 
 
With regard to objection point 12; there is no provision in planning legislation regarding 
issues relating to internal works associated with natural light and ventilation. Separate 
legislation dictates the manner in which such provisions are addressed within the 
dwelling, such as via a building warrant etc. Amendments have not been sought by the 
Planning Authority on the grounds that there would be no planning benefit in doing so, 
as stated above. 
 
Matters Raised in Representations 
Objection points 1 to 6 relating to the proposed replacement windows, front drive, 
impact on existing dwelling and the potential impact on the Conservation Area, have 
been addressed in the evaluation section of this report. Consent is no longer sought to 
replace the existing front bay windows and door. The amended proposal has been 
found to comply with the relevant policies set out in the Aberdeen Local Development 
Plan and associated Supplementary Guidance: Householder Development Guide. 
 
Objection point 7 relating to the potential impact on existing trees has been addressed 
within the previous section. 
 

Page 68



Objection point 8 specifically relates to off street parking concerns associated with the 
property’s use as a HMO. It should be noted that there is no requirement – in planning 
terms – for the applicant to submit an application for change of use as the number of 
occupants would be less than 6. In this respect, the application can only be assessed as 
a householder application; therefore any objections/concerns relating to the property’s 
use as a HMO are irrelevant and cannot form part of the evaluation of the proposal. It 
should be noted that Roads Development Management has not raised any objections 
with regard to the proposed drive, which additionally complies with the Council’s 
Supplementary Guidance: Transport and Accessibility. 
 
Full regard has been given to all concerns raised in representations, but neither do they 
outweigh the policy position as detailed above, nor do they justify further amendments 
to the plans or refusal of the application. 
 
Conclusion 
To summarise, all elements of the proposal are considered to be acceptable in relation 
to the existing property. It is not considered that the proposed front drive would have a 
significant detrimental impact on the character of the existing property, the streetscape 
or the wider area. The proposal is considered to comply with the relevant policies and 
associated supplementary guidance contained within the adopted Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan 2012. On the basis of the above, and following on from the 
evaluation under policy and guidance, it is considered that there are no material 
planning considerations that would warrant refusal of the application. 
 
Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan 

 
The Proposed ALDP was approved at the meeting of the Communities, Housing and 
Infrastructure Committee of 28 October 2014. It constitutes the Council’s settled view as 
to what should be the content of the final adopted ALDP and is now a material 
consideration in the determination of planning applications, along with the adopted 
ALDP.  The exact weight to be given to matters contained in the Proposed ALDP 
(including individual policies) in relation to specific applications will depend on whether: 

- these matters have been subject to public consultation through the Main Issues 
Report; and 

- the level of objection raised in relation these matters as part of the Main Issues 
Report; and  

- the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration  
 
The foregoing can only be assessed on a case by case basis.  In relation to this 
particular application, the policies in the Proposed ALDP substantively reiterate those in 
the adopted local development plan and the proposal is acceptable in terms of both 
plans for the reasons already previously given.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve subject to conditions 

Page 69



 
The proposal is modest in nature and would have a neutral imapct on the residential 
amenity of the locality and the character of the Old Aberdeen Conservation Area. The 
proposal complies with the relevant policies of Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012, 
namely Policies D1 (Architecture and Placemaking), D5 (Built Heritage) and H1 
(Residential Areas) and the Proposed Local Development Plan policies H1 (Residential 
Areas), D1 (Quality Placemaking by Design) and D4 (Historic Environment). The 
proposal complies with the Council's Suplementary Guidance: Transport and 
Accesibility and Technical Advice Note: The Repair and Replacment of Windows and 
Doors; and would preserve the character and amenity of the Conservation Area in line 
with the principles of Historic Scotland's SHEP and the Council’s Conservation 
Character Appraisal: Strategic Overview & Management Plan. On the basis of the 
above, and following on from the evaluation under policy and guidance, it is considered 
that there are no material planning considerations that would warrant refusal of the 
application. 
 
CONDITIONS 
it is recommended that approval is given subject to the following conditions:- 
 
(1) that no development pursuant to the proposed front driveway shall take place unless 
a plan showing those trees to be retained and a scheme for the protection of all trees to 
be retained on the site during construction works has been submitted to, and approved 
in writing by, the Planning Authority and any such scheme as may have been approved 
has been implemented - in order to ensure adequate protection for the trees on site 
during the construction of the development. 
 
INFORMATIVES 
 

- The proposed driveway will require a 3 metre dropped kerb and footway crossing 
permit. The vehicular footway crossing required for the access should be 
constructed by Aberdeen City Council. The applicant is responsible for all costs 
involved and should be advised to contact the Road Network Maintenance Unit 
at least 6 weeks prior to any works starting on site and arrange for an estimate 
for the cost of works. The Road Network Maintenance Unit can be contacted on 
the following details: tel. 01224 241500, RoElrick@aberdeencity.gov.uk, 
DanMackay@aberdeencity.gov.uk. The ACC contact will advise on the footway 
crossing permit. 

 
- The driveway should not use loose chippings for the first 2 metres from the rear 

of the footway. 
 

- The driveway must be internally drained to prevent water discharging onto the 
footway and roadway. 

 

Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Development Management Committee

JESMOND DRIVE, ABERDEEN

ERECTION OF 19 AFFORDABLE HOUSING
UNITS WITH ASSOCIATED CAR PARKING
AND LANDSCAPING

For: Carlton Rock

Application Type : Planning Permission in
Principle
Application Ref. : P150369
Application Date: 16/03/2015
Officer: Dineke Brasier
Ward : Bridge of Don (M Jaffrey/J Reynolds/S
Stuart/W Young)

Advert : Can't notify neighbour(s)
Advertised on: 01/04/2015
Committee Date: 16/07/15
Community Council : Comments

RECOMMENDATION:

Refuse

Agenda Item 3.1

Page 79



DESCRIPTION

DESCRIPTION

The application site is an area of urban green space located on the east side of
Jesmond Drive. The site is predominantly rough grassland with a number of
young trees and scattered shrubs. The grassland is wetter in some places and
tends to be dominated by marshy grassland patches. It appears un-maintained
and naturally regenerating. A small section within the western part is closely
mown grass.

off Jesmond Drive. Immediately to the north is the Carrot Belt , a mature mixed
woodland shelterbelt providing important connections towards the Scotstown
Moor Local Nature Conservation Site (LNCS) further to the east. In the larger

The site extends to some 0.25 hectares and sees a footpath running east-west
across its southern width, providing pedestrian and cycle routes/ links between
the bus shelter and residential areas to the east.

RELEVANT HISTORY
Development Management:
This specific site and the larger Jesmond Grange site have a long and
complicated planning history. The main applications will be summarised below.

A0/0624: In 2000 conditional outline planning permission was granted (as a
justified departure from the development plan) for the erection of 32 very
sheltered housing units, ten special needs houses, a medical centre, a nursery
school and a shopping centre with ancillary car parking, as well as the provision
of public open space, footpaths and cycle paths. At the time, this larger site

informal basis. An important element was proposed open space measuring up to
approximately 11,200m², and included the area of the current application site,
which was to be landscaped and incorporate improved pedestrian and cycle links
to East Woodcroft and Scotstown Moor. This open space provision and
improved pedestrian and cycle links were considered such a significant benefit to
the, then, informal use of agricultural land, that it was listed as one of the two
main justifications for departing from the then provisions of the development plan.

These two justifications were as follows:
1. The development would allow a meaningful area of land to be brought into

use for public open space purposes linking housing to the west with
proposed public open space to the east; and

2. The development would provide socially desirable facilities for which
evidence of a local need exists.

Page 80



A4/0409: In 2004 outline permission was granted for a renewal of the above
application. This permission has an associated S75 legal agreement, which sets
out that an area of 11,200m² was to be maintained as public open space in
perpetuity. A plan forming part of this S75 agreement shows that the main
component was the area subject of this current application, with a further strip to
the north and east.

An application for a partial discharge of this existing S75 agreement in relation to
clause 2 (open space) has now been registered and validated (151068).

05/1169: In 2005 a reserved matters application granted conditional consent for
the formation and landscaping of the area of open space included in the S75
agreement. This permission was part implemented in as far as the pedestrian
links through the site have been constructed It is however noted that no formal
landscaping has been carried out or undertaken, and this is reflected in the poor
condition of the site.

Following these initial consents, further conditional permissions have been
granted and implemented to the south of the current application site for the
construction of a shopping centre (Ref: 051720), 65 bed care home (Refs:
061129 and 072372) and 82 dwellings at Jesmond Grange (Ref: 100030).

Given this planning history and the evidence on the ground, it is clear that of the
uses initially approved through the 2000 and 2004 outline planning consents only
the open space and the shopping centre have been (part) implemented. All other
(more social elements - which entailed the second justification for the initial
departure from the development plan) proposals within that original scheme have
been replaced over time by a much denser residential development. There are
only 4 elements remaining: a suburban housing development/ shopping centre/
care home and an area of public open space.

Local Plan history

paragraphs.

The larger (3.5ha) site, subject of outline planning permissions A0/0624 and
A4/0409, was shown as an opportunity site (OP104) for community facilities at

Plan 2008 in 2005. This was in recognition of planning approval A0/0624 that had
osed

changes' stage of the plan, the entire area was covered by the Urban Green
Space Zoning, with the area set out as open space within the aforementioned
S75 (the application site), also proposed to be allocated as Green Space
Network (GSN).Following a Public Local Inquiry (PLI) the reporter recommended
that the entire area (including the open space area) be shown as an opportunity
site for Mixed Use development suitable for: local shops, a nursing home,
amenity open space and paths complementary to adjacent amenity open space,
and housing (approximate capacity 40 units, of which about one third are

Page 81



expected to be provided by a housing association). The reporter recommended
that the Green Space Network designation should be retained over the northern
and eastern fringes of the site, to reflect open space in the relevant planning
permissions and the legal agreement affecting the land. This recommendation
was accepted by the Council.

However, the Opportunity Site boundary on the proposals map associated to the
finalised and subsequently adopted Local Plan was not amended in full
accordance with this change, in as far as the northern and eastern boundaries of
the site (including the current application site) were designated as both Green
Space Network (in accordance with the reporters recommendation) and as Urban
Green Space (contrary to the reporters recommendation) There is no record of
why the Urban Green Space designation was retained over this area in addition
to the Green Space Network designation. However, these modifications were
publicised and all objectors were notified of them. An objection period ran from
18 January 2008 to 29 February 2008 and no objections were received on this
issue. The 2008 Local Plan was therefore adopted on this basis.

Since that time, an entire Local Plan cycle has been completed without objection
to the allocation boundaries, resulting in the same boundaries and allocations
being included in the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012. Again, the wider
site was identified as an opportunity site for mixed use development, excluding
the area of open space subject to the current application, which is again
designated as Urban Green Space.

Upon close examination of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012
Proposals Map, it transpires that the area of open space is not allocated as part
of the Green Space Network. However, all Urban Green Spaces in the City are
part of the Green Space Network. This is clearly stated in the policy preamble to

been marked on the map or not. However, for the purpose of clarity, this is mainly
due to technical reasons. The Geographical Information System (GIS) then in
place required manual input of all polygons that were to be included in the Green
Space Network. As such, the large areas were included first, and there was
insufficient time to record all the smaller pieces of land, including many parcels of
land such as this one which lie on the edge of larger areas of green space
network. However, the entire strip of land surrounding the Jesmond Grange
development (including the care home and the shopping centre) should have
been included in the Green Space Network as it is an integral part of this larger
area and has an important role in creating linkages between larger areas of
green space.

Furthermore, within the current proposed Local Development Plan, the same
boundaries have been repeated, showing the application site as Urban Green

has been removed as the site was considered to be built out.

Page 82



PROPOSAL

Planning in principle permission is sought to construct 19 affordable housing
units.

The indicative layout shows two blocks of flats positioned close to the south and
east boundaries of the site, each block two storeys high.

The block 1 (southernmost) would face north-west, with a gable fronting Jesmond
Drive, and would contain 13 one bed flats spread over two floors, and across the
northern part of the ground floor a plant/ storage/ combined heat and power (chp)
room, and cycle store.

The block 2 (northern) would face west, and contain 6 one bed units across the
two floors.

sloping flat roof; and external staircases leading to the first floors. Both blocks
include semi-private front gardens, facing onto 15 associated car parking bays
(1x disabled)/ kids play area/ green space/ bin store, the bus turning circle and

also indicated.

A pedestrian footpath would separate the two buildings, running from Jesmond
Drive/ the existing bus stop linking to a path serving the residential areas to the
east and beyond.

Vehicular access to the car park and bin store would be taken from the bus
turning circle.

The site layout was revised following comments from Road Development
Management Team, as the vehicular access was initially shown from the access
road to the north, and the number of proposed units has been reduced from 21 to
19.

Supporting Documents

All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this

http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=150369

On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first
page of this report.

Supporting Statement;

Ecological Survey;

Letter from Grampian Housing Association setting out that they would be
interested in being the preferred social landlord purchaser to provide mid

Page 83



market rent for key workers or social rented properties for people with high

Housing Investment Plan (SHIP); and

Letter of support submitted by Burness Paull representing the applicant
(summarised below).

REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE

The application has been referred to the Planning Development Management
Committee as 17 timeous letters of representation have been received.
Accordingly, the application falls outwith t
Delegation.

CONSULTATIONS

Roads Development Management

Initial comments:
Observed that significant alterations to the site layout were required to provide
satisfactory vehicular access from the access road to the north of the site.

Further concerns expressed that the lower parking standard of 0.8 spaces per flat
were only acceptable if evidence had been provided that a Registered Social
Landlord (RSL) was on board, and that, even if this lower figure was accepted,
15 parking spaces would be insufficient for 21 residential units.

Further comments that cycle and motorcycle parking should be integrated in the
proposed development.

Amended comments following discussion and revision of site plan:
Alterations incorporated an alternative means of access and a reduction in the
number of flats from 21 to 19.

A Strategic Transport Fund (STF) contribution is required.

Proposed Development Access:
Vehicular access from the bus turning area would require the promotion of a
Traffic Regulation Order (TRO). Adequate turning space for refuse collection
vehicles would be required adjacent to the proposed bin store. Again refuse
vehicle access would be via the bus turning area.

Walking and cycling:
The paths proposed within the site would be acceptable. A pedestrian link
between the new shared use path and the northbound bus stop would be
required.

Bus Services:
The southbound bus services would continue to operate unaffected, although the
shelter in the turning area is dilapidated and should be replaced at the

Page 84



For northbound services, the bus stop on the west side of Jesmond Drive may
require relocation, if affected by works.

Parking provision:
Adequate evidence of RSL involvement means that the lower parking standards
of 0.8 space per affordable dwelling can be applied. The 15 spaces proposed
would thus be sufficient for 19 units.

Secure and sheltered cycle parking should be provided at a rate of 1 per flat plus
a minimum of 2 short stay cycle stands or four cycle parking spaces within 50m
of the building entrances. Two secure motorcycle parking spaces should be
provided in convenient locations within 50m of the proposed building entrances.

Residential Travel Packs:
To assist with reducing the demand for car parking, Residential Travel Packs
should be provided to advise and encourage residents to use alternative means
of transport to the private car.

Conclusion:
No objection, subject to conditions relating to above matters.

Developer Contributions Team Contributions would be required for: Core

Paths and Open Space.

Environmental Health No observations

Communities, Housing and Infrastructure (Flooding) - No observations

Education, Culture and Sport (Educational Provision) where 5 or more
new residential units One bed units are assumed not to generate a school

requirement. No mitigation is required in this instance.

Housing Jesmond Drive is currently not in the Strategic Housing Investment
Plan 2015 2020 (SHIP). However, the SHIP can be amended and new projects
added with Council and Scottish Government approval. The proposal is for 19
one bedroom flatted properties. However, the space standards at 35m² are very

be in the region of 45-50m². The Scottish Government does not have any floor

proposed could be incorporated into the SHIP and they could quality for Scottish
Government grant if they comply to the HfVNS.

Community Council (Bridge of Don Community Council) has submitted a

letter of representation reporting on a meeting of the Community Council at which
various views and opinions were expressed but the overall feeling was that of
acceptance of the need for affordable housing and that there was no real reason

Page 85



to the wood cladding. It was agreed that finishes should blend in more with the
other buildings in the neighbourhood.

REPRESENTATIONS

17 letters of objection have been received. The objections raised relate to the
following matters

Loss of green space. Development will close off the natural open aspect of
the area and build on a precious green space full of biodiversity. The area
should be developed to serve the current community more appropriately,
for instance a park, play area and/or pond to encourage wildlife;

Proposal would result in the loss of a well used footpath;

Schools in the area cannot accommodate any additional children as they
are already full;

Road infrastructure is not up to the required standard and would be in a
worse condition if it had to deal with potentially 20-30 extra cars per day;

Development would result in a more dangerous route to walk to school
and would add more traffic in a place where children cross to go to school;

Overdevelopment of this site with insufficient parking;

Development would be very close to schools and would it be guaranteed
that the flats would not be occupied by drug or alcohol users;

Design of the proposed flats does not fit in with the surrounding area;

The development would result in overshadowing of the neighbouring
nursing home;

Plans already exist for another 55 dwellings in the vicinity, and this
proposal would stretch local facilities even further;

Development would devalue property prices;

Development would block views of care home; and

Proposal would result in a loss of privacy and views from 8 Lee Crescent
North.

Letter of Support submitted by applicant, raising the following issues:

affordable housing in the City.

Summary of the Local Plan history of the site, setting out that the site is
currently not covered by the Green Space Network allocation, and that the
reporter in 2005 recommended that the Urban Green Space allocation
should be deleted from the site. As such the site should be considered
under policy H1 (Residential Areas) or H2 (Mixed Use Areas);

A large amount of open space will be retained on the site, even with the
construction of 19 affordable housing units;

Bridge of Don is the ward with the second highest provision of open
space. Emphasis is placed on the provision of quality rather than quantity
of open space;

Page 86



The Ecological Survey submitted as part of the application shows that the
site has a low ecological value. The report provides mitigation measures
which would enhance the ecological value;

All remaining open space will be laid out and actively maintained.

The Community Council is supportive of the construction of affordable
units on this site;

The legal agreement covering the land should not be considered a barrier
to approval of this application. An application under Section 75A has been
submitted seeking the discharge of the existing agreement.

PLANNING POLICY

Aberdeen Local Development Plan
NE3: Urban Green Space:
Permission will not be granted to use or redevelop any area of urban green
space (including smaller spaces not identified on the Proposals Map) for any use
other than recreation or sport, unless an equivalent and equally convenient and
accessible area of land for public access is laid out and made available in the
locality by the Applicant for urban green space purposes.

In all cases, development will only be acceptable provided that:
1. There is no significant loss to the landscape character and amenity of the

site and adjoining areas;
2. Public access is either maintained or enhanced;
3. The site is of no significant wildlife or heritage value;
4. There is no loss of established or mature trees;
5. Replacement green space of similar or better quality is located in or

immediately adjacent to the same community, providing similar or
improved benefits to the replaced areas and is as accessible to that
community, taking into account public transport, walking and cycling
networks and barriers such as major roads.

NE1: Green Space Network:
Development which has any impact on existing wildlife habitats, or connections
between or other features of value to natural heritage, open space, landscape
and recreation must be mitigated through enhancement of Green Space
Network.

As set out in detail above, even though the site is not covered by Green Space
Network on the allocations map, as explained later in this report this omission is
purely a drafting error, and in any case it is considered related and associated to
these nearby sections of the Green Space Network, under the criteria set out in
the preamble of this policy, and thus the policy is considered relevant in the
determination of the application.

NE8: Natural Heritage:

Page 87



Development that, taking into account any proposed mitigation measures, has
an adverse effect on a protected species will only be permitted where it satisfies
the relevant criteria in Scottish Planning Policy.

D1: Architecture and Placemaking:
New development must be designed with due consideration for its context and
make a positive contribution to its setting.

D2: Design and Amenity:
In order to ensure the provision of appropriate levels of amenity, the following
principles will be applied:

1. Privacy shall be designed into higher density housing;
2. Residential development shall have a public face to a street and a private

face to an enclosed garden or court;
3. All residents shall have access to sitting-out areas.
4. Parking must not dominate a space. No more than 50% of any court

should be taken up by parking spaces and access roads.
5. Individual flats shall be designed to make the most of opportunities offered

by the site for views and sunlight;
6. Development proposals shall include measures to design out crime and

design in safety;
7. External lighting shall take into account residential amenity and minimise

light spillage into adjoining areas and the sky.

T2: Managing the Transport Impact of Development:
New developments will need to demonstrate that sufficient measures have been
taken to minimise the traffic generated. Maximum car parking standards are set
out in Supplementary Guidance on Transport and Accessibility.

I1 Infrastructure Delivery and Developer Contributions:
Development must be accompanied by the infrastructure, services and facilities
required to support new or expanded community and the scale and type of
developments proposed. The level of provision required will relate to the
development proposed either directly or to the cumulative impact of development
in the area and be commensurate to its scale and impact.

H5 Affordable Housing:
Housing developments of five units or more are required to contribute no less
than 25% of the total number of units as affordable housing.

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan
The following policies substantively reiterate policies in the adopted local
development plan as summarised above:

NE1 Green Space Network (NE1 Green Space Network)
NE3 Urban Green Space (NE3 Urban Green Space)
NE8 Natural Heritage (NE8 Natural Heritage)

Page 88



D1 Quality Placemaking by Design (D1 Architecture and Placemaking and D2
Design and Amenity)

T2 Managing the Transport Impact of Development (T2 Managing the
Transport Impact of Development)
I1 Infrastructure Delivery and Planning Obligations (I1 Infrastructure Delivery
and Developer Contributions)
H5 Affordable Housing (H5 Affordable Housing)

Supplementary Guidance

Affordable Housing Supplementary Guidance Provides guidance on the
delivery of affordable housing

Bats and Development Supplementary Guidance Provides guidance on
legislation and mitigation measures in relation to development and its impact on
protected species.

Infrastructure and Developer Contributions Manual Provides guidance on levels
and types of developer contributions required.

Transport and Accessibility Supplementary Guidance Provides guidance on
maximum parking standards for new development.

EVALUATION

Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Principle of Development:
The site is allocated as an urban green space in the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan and policy NE3 (Urban Green Space) applies. This policy
clearly sets out that permission will not be granted to redevelop any areas of
urban green space unless an equivalent and equally convenient and accessible
area for public access is laid out and made available in the locality by the
applicant for urban green space purposes.

In this case, this area of urban green space was proposed as an integral part of
the overall Jesmond Grange development, as per outline planning permissions
granted in 2000 and 2004. Prior to this and subsequent detailed planning
approvals/ development, the site formed part of a larger 3.5ha agricultural area
comprising what is now: this application site; the Jesmond Care Home; a
shopping centre; and the residential area of Jesmond Grange.

The original outline planning permission was granted for a mixed use
development of the site, inclusive of and subject to the retention of a significant
proportion of the land as open space. This improved and formalised open space

Page 89



was listed as one of two justifications for departing from the then development
plan.

This open space was intended to largely relate to a residential development of
approximately 42 dwellings and would provide enhanced amenity and formalised
access for walkers and cyclists. Subsequently the amount of open space has
been reduced, as a result of planning approvals/ development, with the site
subject of this application being the majority of the remaining usable open space,

development has been increased significantly to more than 80 dwellings plus the
65-bed care home as opposed to the original 42 dwellings. As such, it is
considered that any open space would serve a larger number of residents than
initially intended, and that it would be of even more importance now than when
the overall outline permission was first approved.

It is noted that the applicant has included areas of the site to be set aside as a

head and to the east part of the site straddling a path), with the remainder
retained as private and semi-private gardens that are not for public use.

-
wide questionnaire asking residents their opinions on open space within
Aberdeen. Results showed th
the wider Bridge of Don area. However, this small play area, plus the remaining
small parcels of open space on the edges of the site would not compensate for
the loss of the entire Urban Green Space allocation in this location, and as policy
NE3 clearly states - an equivalent and equally convenient and accessible area
should be laid out within the immediate vicinity. There are no such proposals of

Taking the foregoing into account
the open space/ play area provision proposed on the site is considered not to

an equivalent and equally convenient and accessible area of land for
Urban

Green Space policy.

The letter of support submitted by Burness Paul representing the applicant sets
out that, due to the drafting error in the Adopted Local Plan, as discussed
previously, the site should be considered under planning policies H1 (Residential
Areas) or H2 (Mixed Use Areas) both having a presumption in favour of
development. However, the site is currently sits apart as Urban Green Space,
and, even if it would be accepted that the overall site (including the care home,
shopping centre and Jesmond Grange) were part of the larger surrounding mixed
use allocation, then the comments from the reporter clarified that the site would
be suitable for a mix of uses comprising local shops, nursing home, amenity open
space and paths complementary to adjacent amenity open space and housing.
This part of the overall site would be the last significant parcel of open space
within this larger site, and as such should be retained as such to ensure there is
a balance of development and public amenity space within the immediate
surrounding area.

Page 90



Furthermore, notwithstanding this drafting error, policy NE3 clearly states that the

is clearly and unambiguously one such site more so because of its immediate
juxtaposition with an a larger area of green space of which it forms an integral
part. As such the Urban Green Space policy applies and as such the matter as to
whether or not the site might have been incorrectly allocated as Urban Green
Space is irrelevant to the assessment of the the site in terms of the Urban Green
Space Policy as a whole.
As such, the principle of the proposed development is unacceptable and would
be contrary to the requirements of policy NE3 (Urban Green Space).

Impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area:
The open space, together with the tree belt to the north, provides a clear natural
green buffer between the Jesmond Grange residential area to the south and the
Ashwood Grange residential area to the north. It forms a natural boundary
between these two distinct residential areas and further emphasises the overall
green character and relative low density of the immediate surrounding area.
Establishing a development of 19 flats with associated hardstanding for access
and parking, would significantly increase the developed appearance of the
locality, and is considered to be out of context with the surroundings.

It is further considered that this would have an adverse impact on the character
of this wider area, and would be contrary to the requirements of policies NE3
(Urban Green Space) and D1 (Architecture and Placemaking) of the Aberdeen
Local Development Plan.

Whilst the indicative design of the blocks and proposed use of materials is
considered be out of context with the palette of materials and general design
principles within the wider area. It should be noted that the design is indicative
and that this could be addressed at Matters Specified in Conditions stage should
the application be approved.

Wildlife and Ecological Impacts and Green Space Network:
An ecological survey has been submitted determining the type and variety of
habitats on the site and its use by and suitability for protected species. It
indicates that the habitats on the site are species poor, widespread and common
in the surrounding area. There is little evidence of protected species on the site.
A number of species are worth noting, which are the presence of Wych Elm (a
North East Local Biodiversity Action Plan (NELBAP) species) and the potential
use of the site by foraging badgers. The Wych Elm should be retained in any
potential site layout. In addition, the site might be used by nesting birds.

The survey also provided suggestions for mitigation measures that could
enhance the ecological values of the site, including: the use of nesting boxes for
various species of birds, bat boxes and the retention of trees. This could be dealt
with through conditions.

However, notwithstanding the quality of habitats on the site, the site is part of the
larger area of open space marked as BD43 in the Open Space Audit Quality Map

Page 91



and part of the Green Space Network. This overall site scores high in terms of its:
biodiversity, health and place; and community value. It has a low score in terms
of accessibility, which brings the overall score down.

The Burness Paull letter of support and the supporting statement initially
submitted with the application both set out that the open space is a poor amenity
space, with low ecological value. However, the Open Space Audit stresses the
need to improve the quality of the open space by making it more attractive.
Furthermore, biodiversity could be increased through a more natural
management as opposed to mown grass.

Furthermore, it is considered that from a functional point of view the site is related
to and forms part of Green Space Network Sites 11 and 4, providing strong
linkages and connections towards Scotstown Moor to the benefit of biodiversity
and the health of previously isolated habitats and ecosystems. Reduction of the
size of this link could have a detrimental impact on these connections and wildlife
corridors. As such, the proposal would be contrary to the criteria contained within
policy NE3 (Green Space Network).

Affordable Housing:
The proposal is for the construction of 19 affordable housing units. All are shown
as one bed flats ranging between 35m² to 45m², with the majority being the

out that over the entire Aberdeen Housing Market Area, a figure of 624 additional
affordable housing units would be required over the ten year period ending in
2020. 415 affordable units would be required for the Aberdeen City area alone.
There is no break down of these figures for individual wards. As such, it can only
be considered that there is a clear demand for affordable housing units within the
overall Aberdeen City area, and the current proposal would make a contribution
to this figure. However, affordable housing would only be considered acceptable
on sites where the principle of residential development would be compliant with
all other Local Development Plan policies. In this case, the proposal would be
contrary to the requirements of policy NE3, and as such the construction of
affordable housing would not be appropriate on this site.

A supporting letter from Grampian Housing Association has been received,
setting out that they would be interested in being the preferred social landlord
purchaser of the site, if
Investment Plan 2015-2020 (SHIP). At present, the site is not within the SHIP,
which is updated on a two yearly basis. Compared to standards for Council new
builds, the proposed one bed units are very small. However whether or not they
would qualify for Scottish Government grants would be dependant on their layout,
design and circulation space contained within the unit. The site would only be
considered for inclusion in the SHIP if these standards would be complied with.

Impact on residential amenity:
The proposed development is sufficiently far removed from any neighbouring
private residential dwellings, so as not to result in any unacceptable levels of
overlooking or loss of light, including 8 Lee Crescent North.

Page 92



However, the block nearest the care home would have an inverted U-shape, with
two projections turning towards the boundary. There would be separation of
between 12m and 13m between the projections and the north facing side
elevation of the care home. The care home elevation includes windows on both
the ground and first floor and due to its nature/ use, a number of these are
principal windows serving a bedroom or communal living areas. As such, the
indicative flats would restrict the outlook and privacy/ amenity of residents
therein. However, again, as this is an application for planning permission in
principle, the buildings could be repositioned to mitigate the impact on the care
home, although possibly requiring a reduction in numbers and repositioning
within the site. As such, given the type of application, this would not warrant a
reason for refusal.

Impact on local transport conditions, especially in relation to parking and access:
The site would be accessed off a bus turning circle and would provide 15 car

Development Management Team are happy with the parking arrangements,

are also accessible and would leave sufficient space for turning on site.

The ground floor of the south block contains a secure and covered area for cycle
parking. The floorplan indicates ten cycle stands, with two bikes per stand, this
would be more than sufficient, but would require a condition to ensure provision.

There are further requirements for short stay/ visitor cycle parking and motorcycle
parking near the entrances to the buildings. These are not indicated on the site
plan, but it is acknowledged that this could be dealt with through condition.

The site is on a regular bus route from and towards the city centre with bus stops
immediately nearby. The southbound bus stop, that uses the bus turning circle,
could continue to be used as such, although the bus shelter (in the turning area)
is in a poor state of repair, and this would need to be improved. Due to the
increased amount of traffic arising from the development, and works required for
crossings, the north bound bus stop might need to be relocated. These works
can be dealt with as part of a condition or legal agreement.

The development could continue to have good pedestrian connectivity, with the
existing footpath indicated to be replaced in a similar location providing a direct
link from Jesmond Drive and the bus stops towards the properties on Jesmond
Grange. Again a condition would be required to cover this issue.

Developer contributions and affordable housing:
The delivery of the units as affordable housing would require to be controlled
through a legal agreement. This would include the requirement to provide one
bed units as otherwise a contribution in terms of education and a more detailed
assessment of the capacity of nearby schools would need to be undertaken.

Page 93



Otherwise, developer contributions are required towards the Strategic Transport
Fund, Core Paths and Open Space.

Other matters arising from Community Council and letters of objection:
Various other issues were raised within the letters of objection. Not all of these
were valid planning matters. These shall be dealt with in turn:

Schools in the area are already full and cannot accommodate any more children

advise that as the flats are one bed, that they would not be counted towards
making a contribution to the future school rolls. As such, the proposal would not
have an adverse impact on the capacity of local schools. A condition could be
added setting out that the flats would be one bed units, although Education have
confirmed that there is capacity available at both primary and secondary schools
covering the catchment area.

Development would result in a more dangerous walk to school
The development retains the existing pedestrian link between Jesmond Grange
and the bus stop. The nearest primary school is located at roughly 50m south of
the site. There is an existing signalised pedestrian crossing in front of the school
entrance between the care home and the shopping centre. Roads Development
Management have not raised any concerns regarding the impact of the additional
traffic on this pedestrian crossing. As such, it is considered that the existing
crossing would be sufficient, and the proposal would not have an adverse impact
on pedestrian safety.

Guarantees on suitability of users of the flats:
This is not a planning matter.

Proposal would stretch local facilities even further, especially in connection with
an existing proposal for 55 dwellings nearby:
The impact of the proposal on local facilities, such as schools and community
centres, have been assessed through the developer contributions procedures. In
this instance, contributions would only be required for the Strategic Transport
Fund, Core Paths and Open Space.

Proposal would result in a devaluation of property prices:
This is not a planning matter.

Proposal would result in a loss of views from the care home and 8 Lee Crescent
North:
The loss of views is not a planning matter. The impact of the proposed
development in relation to 8 Lee Crescent and on the outlook of the residents of
the care home has been discussed above.

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan

The Proposed ALDP was approved at the meeting of the Communities, Housing
and Infrastructure Committee of 28 October 2014. It constitutes the

Page 94



settled view as to what should be the content of the final adopted ALDP and is
now a material consideration in the determination of planning applications, along
with the adopted ALDP. The exact weight to be given to matters contained in the
Proposed ALDP (including individual policies) in relation to specific applications
will depend on whether:

- these matters have been subject to public consultation through the Main
Issues Report; and

- the level of objection raised in relation these matters as part of the Main
Issues Report; and

- the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration
The foregoing can only be assessed on a case by case basis. In relation to this
particular application no new issues were raised.

SUMMARY/CONCLUSION:

Planning permission in principle is sought for the construction of 19
affordable units on Jesmond Drive. The site is considered an Urban Green
Space and an integral part of the wider Green Space Network serving this
part of Aberdeen.

Policy NE3 (Urban Green Space) clearly sets out that the principle of
development on these sites is not acceptable unless an equivalent and
equally convenient and accessible area for public access is laid out and
made available in the locality by the developer, for urban green space
purposes. In this case, no such area has been provided.

Policy NE1 (Green Space Network) sets out that proposals for
development that are likely to erode the character or function of the Green
Space Network will not be permitted. In this case, the proposed
development would result in an erosion of the green space network in this
area as it would significantly reduce the size of the potential wildlife
corridor and would have an adverse impact on the character and
appearance of the surrounding area.

Even though there is a recognised need for affordable housing throughout
the city, this would need to be provided on sites suitable for development.
In this case, the benefit of additional affordable housing units would not
outweigh the detrimental impacts of losing this piece of Urban Green
Space.

There are no significant issues, subject to suitable conditions, in relation to
residential amenity or access and local highway conditions.

SUGGESTED LEGAL AGREEMENT AND CONDITIONS

The application is recommended for refusal based on the reasons discussed
above and set out below. However, if Councillors were minded to approve the
application, it is recommended this would be subject to a legal agreement
covering developer contributions towards the Strategic Transport Fund, open
space and core paths, securing the units as affordable units, securing the

Jesmond Grange.

Page 95



It is also suggested this would be subject to conditions covering reserved matters
applications for siting, design and materials, number of bedrooms per unit,
boundary treatments, storage areas for refuse and cycle parking, vehicular
access and parking, drainage, landscaping, footpaths, and introduction of
mitigation measures for the loss of wildlife and habitats.

RECOMMENDATION

Refuse

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The proposal would be contrary to the Policies NE3 (Urban Green Space)
and NE1 (Green Space Network) of the adopted Local Development Plan
and policies NE3 (Urban Green Space) and NE1 (Green Space Network)
of the Proposed Local Development Plan, in that:

1. it results in the loss of urban green space without laying out or making
available an equivalent and equally convenient and accessible area for
public access;

2. it would have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the
surrounding area, as it would significantly increase the built-up
appearance of the site to the detriment of its current open and natural
nature and its role as a natural buffer between various residential areas. It
would set an undesirable precedent in policy interpretation for the
consideration of similar applications on Urban Green Space that could
lead to the incremental erosion of open space areas throughout the City;

3. and it would result in an erosion of this part of the Green Space Network to
the detriment of existing wildlife corridors between habitats and the
character and appearance of the surrounding area.

Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Planning Development Management Committee  
 

NETHER ANGUSTON, PETERCULTER 
 
FORMATION OF RIDING SCHOOL WITH 
ASSOCIATED BUILDINGS, CAR PARKING AND 
LANDSCAPING.    
 
For: Aberdeen Riding Club 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Application Type : Detailed Planning Permission 
Application Ref.   :  P150110 
Application Date:       24/02/2015 
Officer :                     Nicholas Lawrence 
Ward : Lower Deeside (M Boulton/A Malone/M 
Malik) 
 
 

Advert  : Section 34 -Proj. Pub. 
Concern 
Advertised on:  
Committee Date16.07.2015 
Community Council : No Response 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Refuse  
 
  

Agenda Item 3.2

Page 111



 
DESCRIPTION OF THE APPLICATION SITE 
 
The application site is undeveloped farmland located to the north east of Nether 
Anguston Farmhouse at the junction of the farmhouse access lane and the C149 
and is a roughly rectangular shaped parcel of land on a north south axis totalling 
some 1.99 ha in area.  The application site is immediately bounded by open 
fields and to the south by a stand of beech trees lining the access lane. 
 
In locational terms the Application Site is some 180 metres to the south of a 
cluster of 27 dwellings at Quarryhill and is some 5.5 kilometres (3.4 miles) from 
the settlement of Peterculter.  In sustainability terms the Application Site is not 
served by public transport and there are no footpaths or cycle routes on the 
narrow local C149 that form the route to the proposed development. 
 
The Application Site is designated as Green Belt within the adopted and 
emerging Aberdeen Local Development Plan and this part of the Green Belt is 
characterised by slightly undulating open landscape with limited field boundaries, 
pockets of woodland and restricted tree lined roads. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
 
Not Applicable 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
In brief, planning permission is sought for the creation of a new riding and livery 
centre that comprises the following elements: 
 

• Erection of indoor riding arena (incorporating stabling for 26 horses, 
viewing gallery, office and welfare facilities) that adopts a pitched roof form 
fashioned from trapezoidal metal sheeting and finished in a combination of 
light and green pantones.  The roofing finish is carried through to the walls 
of the proposed building as well as the doors and fenestration.  In terms of 
size, the building is some 91.16 metres in length (i.e. equal to some 18 
double decker buses placed end to end) with a height of 9.70 metres (2 
double decker buses stacked on top of each other) and with a maximum 
width of 40.00 metres.  This equates to a gross floor area of 3,434m2. 

 

• Stable building providing accommodation for 63 horses together with 
toilets and areas to accommodate the tack, farriers area, horse wash 
down zone and feed store.  This building is 74.94 metres in length, with a 
height of 6.70 metres and width of 20.88 metres (i.e. 1,565m2 gross floor 
area).  In terms of materials and finishes the stables will adopt that 
proposed for the indoor arena building. 

 

• Flood lit menage/outdoor riding area measuring 30.00 metres by 50.00 
metres. 

 

Page 112



• Muck heap area measuring some 30.00 metres by 15.00 metres 
 

• Parking is provided in an area that immediately abuts the access point and 
encompasses parking for 55 cars, including 5 disabled spaces, horse box 
turning area and a rack for 7 bicycles.  A secondary area is marked as 
“Hard Standing Area”.  No area within the proposed development as a 
whole is shown to accommodate either horse box or horse transporter 
parking.  

 
To facilitate the scale and quantum of development it is proposed to construct a 
retaining wall that forms the northern boundary to the Application Site that has a 
height of 5.00 metres and extends to some 100.00 metres in length. 
 
Access to the proposed development is via the private lane servicing Nether 
Anguston Farmhouse and that part of the access land between the proposed 
access point to service the development and the C149 will be upgraded to an 
adoptable standard and will incorporate two passing places and improvements to 
the existing junction. 
 
It is proposed that the area surrounding the Application Site that totals some 
42.00 ha will be utilised for the grazing and exercising of horses, together with 
the grazing of sheep and the creation of silage.  The level of this activity is 
dependent upon the number of horses accommodated at the proposed 
development. 
 
The disposition of each of the above described elements is shown on submitted 
Drawing No.P05 Rev4 dated 4th of June 2015, entitled Drainage Design / Road 
Design. 
 
Basis of Application and Proposed Operation 
 
The Applicant in the supporting “Report of Justification” document sets out the 
key points to support the proposed development, which can be distilled as: 
 

• Aberdeen Riding Centre (ARC) is being forced to relocate to 
accommodate new housing through the Local Development Plan. 
 

• ARC must move premises by 2016, due to the scheduled build of 550 
homes on their current site 

 

• Nether Anguston is the only available site within the Aberdeen City 
boundaries which meets the requirements for the relocation of the ARC 
due to size, location and transport links. 

 

• ARC would have no option but to cease operating should planning 
permission be declined 

 

Page 113



• ARC is an important facility providing riding, training and livery for the 
community of Aberdeen and surrounding areas. 

 

• ARC is the largest riding school and livery yard in Scotland and has over 
400 riding members and a waiting list. 

 

• ARC is a provider of horse, equipment and facilities for Aberdeen Riding 
for the Disabled (ARD). 

 

• ARC is a work experience and education provider. 
 
In terms of the operation of the proposed facility it is envisaged that the site will 
accommodate the level of activity as the current site (362 members and circa 80 
horses) with headroom to accommodate further horses and members (i.e. 90-100 
and 499 respectively).  It is proposed that the facility will operate for the 
public/members from 10 am to 9 pm Mondays to Thursdays and between 9 am 
and 6 pm on Saturdays and Sundays.  On Tuesdays the RDA run the centre 
(excluding livery) between 9 am and 3 pm.  The riding school will not operate on 
a Friday to “allow the horses a day off”. 
 
Whilst it is the intention that the Applicant will not undertake riding on a Fridays, 
this cannot be controlled by a lawful planning condition.  The Applicant 
recognises the proposal would permit the use of the facilities by the owners who 
have horses at livery within the proposed development on a Friday. 
 
Supporting Documents 
 
All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this 
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at   
 

http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=150110 

 
On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first 
page of this report. 
 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE 
 
The application is referred to the Planning Development Management Committee 
as more than 5 objections have been received.  Accordingly, the application falls 
outwith the scope of the Council’s Scheme of Delegation. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Roads Development Management No objections subject to junction 

improvements, access lane made up to 
an adoptable standard and creation of 
passing places 

Page 114



Environmental Health No objection subject to imposition of 
conditions 

Developer Contributions Team Clarification is being sought by the 
Roads Project team regarding a STF 
contribution 

Flooding Drainage Impact Assessment 
requirements could be addressed by 
way of a condition 

Community Council   No response received 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
A total of 43 representations have been received, of which 26 object to the 
proposed development, 14 are in support whilst 3 respondents have concerns 
with the proposed development.  The matters raised are summarised below 
against the form of representation. 
 
Objections  
 

• Buildings appear visually dominant in the landscape due to the large 
expanse of metal sheeting 

• Contrary to green belt policy 

• Road not adequate for increased traffic 

• Road not suitable for pedestrians and horses – people walk along the road 
from Lyndholme School with families and people with learning difficulties 

• Road is barely larger than single track with deep ditches at the roadside 

• Poor exit point would be at a blind summit of the road, on a carriageway 
section which would seriously impact upon the safety of the road users 

• Huge impact upon the surroundings 

• Unrelated to the existing settlement 

• Viability, suitability and size of proposal 
 
Support 
 

• Allow facility to remain within the city boundaries and sporting resource to 
the City 

• Will prevent this sport from being lost to this area 

• Encourages volunteering for charities 

• Work closely with riding for the disabled 

• Great advantage to have horses stabled next to the indoor arena 

• Design makes good use of the landform and design sympathetic to area 

• Will safeguard a valuable serviced provided locally 
 
Concerns 
 

• Community involvement – no residents have been informed 

• Length of building – blot on the landscape 

• No site accommodation shown on the plans 

Page 115



• Sound and light pollution 

• Road is narrow 

• Unsightly caravans / horse boxes on the site 
 
In terms of spread of representations against the proposed development, of the 
26 objections received, 20 of these came from the AB14 0PP or 0PN post codes 
that are in the immediate vicinity of the Application Site. 
 
PLANNING POLICY 
 
National Policy and Guidance 
 

• National Planning Policy Framework No.3  

• Scottish Planning Policy  

• Planning Advice Note 73 – Rural Diversification   
 
Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan  
 

• Quality of the Environment 
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan (ADLP) 
 

• NE2  Green Belt 

• D1 Architecture and Placemaking 

• D3 Sustainable and Active Travel 

• D6 Landscape 

• NE5 Trees and Woodland 

• NE6 Flooding and Drainage 

• T2 Managing the Transport Impact of Development 
 
Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan (PADLP) 
 

• D1 Quality Placemaking by Design 

• D2 Landscape 

• T2 Managing the Transport Impact of Development 

• T3 Sustainable and Active Travel 

• NE2 Green Belt 

• NE5 Trees and Woodland 

• NE6 Flooding, Drainage and Water Quality 
 
EVALUATION 
 
Main Issues 
 
The main issues at hand in this case are firstly; whether the proposed 
development would harm the character and appearance of the landscape / Green 
Belt; and secondly, if harm is caused whether that harm is clearly outweighed by 

Page 116



other considerations so to amount to circumstances needed to justify the 
development; and thirdly, the highway implications of the development.  All 
issues have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan and other material 
considerations. 
 
The Planning Policy Framework and Materiality 
 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 
(the Act), as amended, requires that where, in making any determination under 
the planning acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the Development Plan 
and that determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as 
material to the application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.   
 
The Development Plan for the purposes of this application comprises the 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan (the ALDP) that was adopted by the 
Aberdeen City Council (the Council) on the 29th of February 2012, together with 
the Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan (the Strategic 
Development Plan) that came into force on the 28th of March 2014.  The ALDP 
also contains a suite of Supplementary Guidance documents that underpin its 
policies. 
 
Aside from the ADLP the Council issued the Proposed Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan (the PALDP), together with Supplementary Guidance for 
public consultation between the 20th of March and the 1st of June 2015.  Whilst 
the PALDP is not a statutory part of the Development Plan it does provide an 
indication of a direction of policy travel and was adopted by the Council on the 
28th of October 2014 as constituting a material consideration in the decision-
taking process. 
 
Materiality is set by a number of documents and Ministerial pronouncements that 
include, albeit not limited to, the National Planning Policy Framework No.3 
(NPF3), Scottish Planning Policy of the 23rd of June 2014 (the SPP) and Planning 
Advice Note 73 – “Rural Diversification” issued on the 7th of February 2005 (PAN 
73). 
 
Planning Policy and Materiality Background 
 
ADLP policy NE2 addresses the matter of Green Belt development and notes 
that appropriate development within the Green Belt includes recreational uses 
compatible with an agricultural or natural setting.  The preamble to policy NE2 
under the heading of “Protecting and Enhancing the Natural Environment” at 
paragraph 3.60 notes that: 
 

“The natural environment and open spaces are important for landscape, 
natural heritage and wider social, health, economic and environmental 
reasons, such as adapting to climate change and helping to improve air 
quality.” 

 

Page 117



With regard to the Green Belt designation the ALDP sets out the aims of such 
areas as to maintain the identity of Aberdeen and the communities within and 
around the City by defining their physical boundaries clearly, avoiding 
coalescence and urban sprawl, maintaining the landscape setting and providing 
access to open space.   In broad terms the Green Belt directs development to the 
most relevant locations to protect such areas. 
 
Policy D1 of the ALDP “Architecture and Placemaking” looks to ensure high 
standards of design and development must be designed with due consideration 
for its context and make a positive contribution to its setting.  Policy D1 is non-
prescriptive in terms of a ‘required’ design form and presence.  However, the 
preamble does look for the design of new development to be based on an 
understanding of its context and respond to its location, both in terms of 
landscape fit and design quality. 
 
ALDP policy D6 considers “Landscape” and will not allow development that 
adversely affects the landscape character and elements which contribute to, or 
provide a ‘distinct’ sense of place.  Linked with the protection of the City’s 
landscape is the presumption against all activities that would result in the loss or 
damage to established trees that contribute to landscape character as contained 
in ADLP policy NE5. 
 
Managing the transport impact of development is covered by policy T2 of the 
ADLP, which looks to ensure that sufficient information is available to take a 
reasoned decision in assessing the transport impact, including highway safety, of 
new development.   
 
Policy D3 of the ADLP is applicable to all proposed development within the 
governance of the City Council and has at its heart the aim of locating 
development that will minimise travel by private car and thereby encouraging the 
use of other modes of transport (e.g. public transport, cycling and walking). 
 
The PALDP in broad terms replicates the aforementioned policies of the ALDP 
and in relation to policy NE2, which is carried over, adds an overarching 
paragraph that reads: 
 

“All proposals for development in the Green Belt must be of the highest 
quality in terms of siting, scale, design and materials.  All developments in 
the Green Belt should have regard to other policies of the Local 
Development Plan in respect of landscape, trees and woodland, natural 
heritage and pipelines and control of major accident hazards”. 

 
The Strategic Development Plan under the heading of “Quality of the 
Environment” has a common objective and target in ensuring that new 
development maintains, improves, and does not lead to the loss of, or damage to 
built, natural or cultural heritage assets.  At the same juncture the Strategic 
Development Plan sees the Green Belt as providing a vital role in protecting the 
character and landscape setting of Aberdeen, whilst acknowledging it will need to 
change. In essence, it guides development to the appropriate location. 

Page 118



 
At the national level the SPP sets out national planning policies for the 
development and use of land and includes a number planning outcomes together 
with a series of policy principles.  The SPP as with NPF3 is an overarching policy 
document and critically introduces a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development with the aim of achieving the right development in the right place 
whilst crystallising the position that the presumption is not to allow development 
at any cost. 
 
The SPP in considering “Promoting Rural Development” notes that the planning 
system should, to paraphrase, in rural areas promote a pattern of development 
that is appropriate to the character of the particular rural area and the challenges 
it faces.  The SPP goes on to critically comment that plans should set out a 
strategy which promotes economic activity and diversification including, where 
appropriate, sustainable development linked to tourism and leisure whilst 
ensuring that the distinctive character of the area is protected and enhanced. 
 
PAN 73 sets out in its simplest form that rural diversification means the 
establishment of new enterprises in rural locations that in turn helps broaden the 
economic activity of rural areas, providing opportunity and creating a more 
balanced and stable economy.  Paragraph 25 states: 
 

“However, rural diversification can also raise fundamental questions.  The 
siting of businesses in rural areas, particularly in the open countryside, can 
encourage unsustainable traffic generation or commuting patterns.  There 
may be impacts on an area’s natural or cultural heritage or other 
environmental factors to consider.” 

 
Assessment of Main Issues 
 
Affect upon character and appearance of the landscape / Green Belt 
 
Small scale stables and outdoor riding areas are not uncommon within the 
countryside around the edge of settlements and are compatible within a natural 
and agricultural setting.  Whilst a recreational use may be deemed to be 
appropriate that is not to say that any development associated with that use is 
appropriate.  The question at issue here is the quantum and appropriateness of 
the proposed development and the harm that it creates to the open countryside. 
 
Whilst small scale stable and outdoor riding areas may be considered 
appropriate in the open countryside it is considered that the proposed stables, 
indoor arena and car parking are not appropriate.  The proposed indoor arena, 
stables and car parking, excluding the paths and internal road network, would 
occupy an area totalling 9,400m2 (i.e. equivalent to 2½ football pitches).  Indeed, 
the Applicants in their “Report of Justification” acknowledge that the proposed 
development is of a scale unprecedented in Scotland by stating that it will be “the 
largest riding school and livery yard in Scotland”. 
 

Page 119



The adopted policies of the Council together with guidance set by the Sottish 
Government is clear that the proposed development must have regard to context 
in terms of landscape fit and design and any development should not harm the 
areas distinctive character.  
 
In this case the character of the area is one of gently undulating countryside with 
limited field boundaries, small pockets of woodland and tree lined areas.  Whilst 
the area does have agricultural buildings, these again are dispersed and are of a 
significant lesser scale that the proposed buildings.  The Applicant is aware that 
the scale and location of the development would harm the countryside and this is 
witnessed by the Applicant seeking to ‘dig the development into the ground’ by 
the creation of a false shelf.  Consequently, when viewed from the north the 
current aspect will be transformed from that of open countryside to one of a 
plateau of roofs.  This clearly does not have regard to context or landscape fit 
and will in turn harm the character of the countryside. 
 
The formation of a 100m long and some 5.00 high retaining wall is a engineered, 
utilitarian artificial feature, of a scale alien to the countryside and in turn will harm 
the character of the area. 
 
The creation of a shelf is a poor attempt to mitigate the development’s harm, from 
the north.  However, this will not be achieved and it will not diminish its impact 
when viewed from public views, from the eastern aspect, or when arriving at the 
location by road.  The scale and overall mass of the buildings will be appear as a 
striking imperious feature that harms the distinctive character of the area and 
indeed the creation of the shelf has no regard to landscape form. 
 
The Applicant has indicated that there will be landscaping, albeit outside the red 
line boundary.  This is not part of the application and would take time to mature.  
There is also a question of highway safety, as no landscaping can occur to the 
eastern aspect of the Application Site as this would affect the visibility required 
for the new junction arrangement. 
 
As noted above the openness is an intrinsic part of the character of the area and 
the fact that a development may be screened does not diminish its harm to the 
character of the area.  Planting will draw attention to the development, act as a 
green wall, and remove the aspect of openness and will therefore harm the 
character of the countryside. 
 
The scale of the buildings and quantum of development would have an 
industrialising/urbanising effect, it is akin to a modest industrial park, on the 
immediate and wider area to the Application Site and therefore fails to maintain 
the distinctive character of the area and the Green Belt.   
 
Aside from the physical, qualitative and aesthetic harm of the proposed 
development there is a broader environmental harm to the quality of enjoyment of 
the landscape.  PAN 73 recognises that businesses in the open countryside can 
encourage unsustainable traffic generating or commuting trips.  The justification 
point of the Applicant stated that the site was chosen, in part, due to its “transport 

Page 120



links”.  However, the proposed site does not have the attributes of the existing 
site that is accessible by public transport, cycling and walking.  The proposed 
development will be dominated by the use of the car with or without horse box 
and does not represent a form of sustainable development.  Such activity will 
harm the environmental quality of the area in terms of its enjoyment. 
 
The SPP considers rural development against the challenges such areas face 
and PAN 73 talks about creating a more balanced sustainable economy.  There 
is no evidence that this area is suffering from rural challenges or that the 
proposed development will create a more balanced and stable community. 
 
For the reasons evidenced above, the proposed development harms the 
distinctive character of the landscape and as such it is contrary to advice 
contained within NPF3, SPP, PAN73, together with policies NE2, D1, D3, D6 and 
T2 of the ALDP and policies NE2, D1, D2, D6, T2 and T3 of the PALDP. 
 
Are there considerations that outweigh the harm 
 
The key points set out within the “Report of Justification” document are deemed 
to constitute the material considerations in this matter. 
 
It is accepted that ARC does provide riding, training and livery for “the community 
of Aberdeen and surrounding areas”.  That is not to say that other locations either 
within the governance of Aberdeen City or in surrounding areas could not also 
provide the same facilities. 
 
With regard to location, the Applicant noted that “Nether Anguston is the only 
available site within the Aberdeen City boundaries which meets the requirements 
for the relocation of the ARC due to size, location and transport links”. The 
general matter of transport links has been considered above and it is evident that 
the Application Site is not a sustainable location and does not have a range of 
transport links.  Therefore this does not constitute a justification to outweigh the 
harm that the development would cause. 
 
The Applicant has submitted clarification on the exercise undertaken to find a 
suitable location that covered 7 sites, 1 of which was outside the City boundaries, 
up to the period of November 2014, although between September 2013 and 
November 2014 there appeared to be lapse of activity.  The site was chosen, 
outwith location and size, on the basis that it was in the Green Belt and such land 
was cheaper as it was not going to be built upon; whereas all non-green belt land 
would be the subject of development.  This in itself is not a planning justification 
for allowing the development.   
 
It is clear that the ARC services both the City and its hinterland, and the majority 
of its users are from the City and subject to where they live will have to negotiate 
traffic.  Therefore any location within the City or just outside would meet the 
current draw of the ARC and the desire of the ARC to be remain in the City at this 
location has not been adequately demonstrated. 
 

Page 121



On the matter of size, from the information supplied the acreage is dependant 
upon the number of horses (i.e. 1-1½  acres per horse) and allowing for the 
aspiration of the ARC to develop its business the size of the site would meets its 
aims.  That is not to say other sites of a comparable size may not be available. 
 
Associated with location is the matter of accommodating the “pre-requisite” of 
Aberdeen RDA to be within Aberdeen City.  It is accepted by the Applicant that 
Riding for the Disabled is not geographically restricted.  In this case it is the 
understanding of the Author that Aberdeen RDA are of the view that if the ARC 
would to re-locate outwith the City boundaries then it may be more difficult to 
secure volunteers, which is understandable.  This pre-requisite has to be 
balanced against that other facilities could provide Riding for the Disabled and 
secondly, that the RDA accounts for less than 10% of the available hours for 
riding lessons if the arena alone was used. 
 
Considering the matter of viability the Applicant has forwarded an amount of 
information and based upon the documentation the proposed development would 
make a small profit.  It is recognised that the Applicant has successfully operated 
the current venture and should be able to transfer those attributes to this or any 
other site.  In terms of funding the development, this is dependant upon lottery 
funding from Sport Scotland and the Landlords contribution.  It is fair to reflect 
that all lottery funding is a variable. 
 
With regard of the need to vacate the site by 2016, it is understood that the 
current site will not be required by the developers until 2017 at the earliest. 
 
It is the view that the Applicant has not demonstrated that sufficient material 
considerations exist to clearly outweigh the harm that the development will cause 
to the landscape and green belt. 
 
Highway Matters 
 
The Roads Development Management team are in principle are content that the 
proposal in terms of access arrangement and junction improvements will not 
have a highway safety impact.  However, Members are aware that the C149 road 
servicing the Application Site is narrow, is subject to a national speed limit, blind 
summit and right angled bend at the access point.  Whilst it is the intention of the 
Applicant not to lead horses by reigns on the highway, hacking out could still 
occur, and restricting horse movements onto the road cannot be controlled by 
way of a planning condition as it could be deemed to be onerous on a business.  
In addition, the use of the public highway is controlled by the Rods Authority, not 
the Local Planning Authority 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Refuse the proposed development the benefit of planning permission 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 

Page 122



1. The proposed development by reason of its scale, form, mass and 
attendant works would demonstrably harm the distinctive character 
and appearance of the landscape and the Green Belt, together with 
its unsustainable location and as such it is contrary to contrary to 
advice contained within NPF3, SPP and PAN73, together with 
policies NE2 (Green Belt), D1 (Architecture and Placemaking), D3 
(Sustainable and Active Travel), D6 (Landscape) and T2 (Managing 
the Transport Impact of Development) of the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan and policies NE2 (Green Belt), D1 (Quality 
Placemaking by Design), D2 (Landscape), T2 (Managaing the 
Transport Impact of Development) and T3 (Sustainable and Active 
Travel) of the Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan. 

 
 
 

 

 

  

 

 

Page 123



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 

 
COMMITTEE  Planning Development Management 
 
DATE  16 July 2015 
 
DIRECTOR  Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Technical Advice Note: Student 

Accommodation 
 
REPORT NUMBER CHI/15/214 
 
CHECKLIST COMPLETED     Yes 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
The purpose of this report is to obtain Committee approval for a draft 
Technical Advice Note (TAN) on Student Accommodation to be issued 
for a six week period of public consultation.  A copy of the draft is 
available as Appendix 1 to this Report. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
It is recommended that the Committee: 

 
(a) Approve the Student Accommodation TAN document for a six 

week public consultation period. 
 
(b) Agree that, following completion of the public consultation, any 

comments received and subsequent amendments to the draft 
advice be presented to a future meeting of the Committee. 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

3.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report with 
the exception of costs which may be incurred through the consultation 
and publicity of the proposed advice. Any such expenses can be met 
through existing budgets.  
 

3.2 The implication for the Priority Based Budgeting is positive. Detailed 
topic-based advice has value in reducing officer time spent on pre-
application discussions, and will therefore prove beneficial in reducing 
cost.  
 

Agenda Item 4.1

Page 153



 

2 
 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

 
4.1 There are no known legal or equipment implications arising from this 

report. 
 

4.2 As a major landowner in the city, proposals for the development of land 
and assets owned by Aberdeen City Council will, where this is 
applicable, be subject to assessment in line with the principles and 
standards set out in the Technical Advice Note. 
 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

5.1 The TAN has been prepared in support of the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan (ALDP) (2012).  It provides a means for Officers to 
assess applications for student accommodation in Aberdeen.  
Technical Advice Notes do not carry the same weight as 
Supplementary Guidance but are still treated as material 
considerations in the decision making process. The TAN also provides 
general guidance and best practice advice for members of the public.   

 
5.2 At present, there is no local planning guidance on this subject. This 

TAN forms the first comprehensive Technical Advice Note on ‘Student 
Accommodation’.  
 

5.3 The purpose of the TAN is to provide advice on new purpose built 
student accommodation and change of use to student accommodation. 
It outlines issues that need to be considered in the decision making 
process when it comes to student accommodation. The TAN provides 
clarity to developers, agents, universities and other stakeholders on 
how Aberdeen City Council will manage the development of student 
accommodation.  

 
5.4 Where any application(s) are made, the TAN provides clear information 

on criteria that will be considered when assessing purpose-built student 
accommodation. It gives clear advice on what is deemed acceptable 
through text.  

 
5.5 The progression of the TAN will provide a clear framework for decision 

making and allow comprehensive guidance for both applicants and 
officers. Implementation and enforcement of the TAN will ensure that 
there is a consistent approach relating student accommodation in 
Aberdeen.  
 

6.  IMPACT 

 
6.1 The TAN contributes to “Aberdeen – The Smarter City” Vision by 

promoting Aberdeen as a great place to live and visit.  It contributes to 

Page 154



 

3 
 

the Smarter Environment priorities by promoting energy efficiency 
measures and attractive street and townscapes.  

 
6.2 The proposal also contributes to the following Single Outcome 

Agreement priorities:  
 

• We live in Scotland that is the most attractive place for doing 
business in Europe 

• We live in well-designed, sustainable places where we are 
able to access the amenities and services we need; 

•  We value and enjoy our built and natural environment and 
protect and enhance it for future generations. 

•  We reduce the local and global environmental impact of our 
consumption and production. 

• Our public services are high quality, continually improving, 
efficient and responsive to local people’s needs. 

 
 
6.3 The proposal is consistent with the Council’s Corporate Plan in 

particular delivering high levels of design from all development and 
maintaining an up-to-date planning framework. The TAN also meets 
the vision of the Community Plan in promoting a strong image of the 
City and a sense of civic pride. 
 

6.4 The proposal supports the Council’s 5 year Business Plan in terms of 
protecting and enhancing our high quality natural and built 
environment. 

 
6.5 The proposal is consistent with the Planning and Sustainable 

Development Service Plan, in particular promoting a customer focused 
service by engaging the community in the planning process. 

 
6.6 An equalities and human rights impact assessment (EHRIA) has been 

carried out in relation to the proposed Technical Advice Note, with the 
results included as Appendix 2 to this report. 

 
6.7 This document will have to go through the Strategic Environmental 

Assessment Process. Given the scope of the document, there would 
be no likely significant effect as a result of the Technical Advice. To 
ensure that this is properly documented a Screening Report has been 
prepared and submitted to the SEA Gateway and the Consultation 
Authorities. In the case that any unforeseen issues are raised this will 
be reported back to Committee. 
 

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

It is not considered that there are any risks associated with the 
recommendations made in this report. The TAN provides additional 
detail on the implementation of existing policies included in the Local 
Development Plan, bringing information together from disparate 
sources into one easy to reference document. This will enable 

Page 155



 

4 
 

applicants to be more informed and will make the evaluation process 
more efficient for officers but it does not introduce any new policy 
points or procedures that are not currently followed. 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

• Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lI
D=42278&sID=9484  

 

• Appendix 1 – Technical Advice Note: Student Accommodation  
 

• Appendix 2 – Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessment 
 

 
 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
Sandra Ng'ambwa 
Planning Trainee 
T: 01224 523328 
E: sngambwa@aberdeencity.gov.uk   
 

Page 156



 

    

D
ra

ft
 T

e
c
h
n

ic
a

l 
A

d
v
ic

e
 N

o
te

 
 

S
tu

d
e

n
t 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a

ti
o

n
 

 

D
a

te
: 
J
u

ly
 2

0
1
5

 

  

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n

 L
o
c
a

l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 T

e
a
m

 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 H

u
b
 4

 

G
ro

u
n
d
 F

lo
o
r 

N
o
rt

h
 

M
a
ri
s
c
h
a

l 
C

o
lle

g
e

 

B
ro

a
d

 S
tr

e
e
t 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n

 

A
B

1
0
 1

A
B

  

T
e
l:
 0

1
2
2

4
 5

2
3
4

7
0

  

E
m

a
il:

 l
d
p

@
a
b

e
rd

e
e

n
c
it
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

Page 157



 

2
 

 C
o

n
te

n
ts

 
1
: 
IN

T
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
 .

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

. 
3

 

B
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d

 .
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

. 
3

 

2
: 

P
O

L
IC

Y
 C

O
N

T
E

X
T

 .
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
. 
5

 

3
: 

C
R

IT
E

R
IA

 F
O

R
 P

U
R

P
O

S
E

 B
U

IL
T

 S
T

U
D

E
N

T
 A

C
C

O
M

M
O

D
A

T
IO

N
 ..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

. 
6

 

5
: 

F
U

R
T

H
E

R
 I

N
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 .
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

 1
0

 

  

 
 

 
 

Page 158



 

3
 

 1
: 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

  

1
.1

 T
h
is

 T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 

A
d

v
ic

e
 N

o
te

 (
T

A
N

) 
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 n

e
w

 p
u
rp

o
s
e

 b
u
ilt

 s
tu

d
e

n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
u
s
e
 t

o
 s

tu
d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

It
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 b

y
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 o

u
tl
in

e
s
 i

s
s
u
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

n
e
e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 

m
a
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

h
e
n
 i

t 
c
o
m

e
s
 t

o
 s

tu
d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
is

 T
A

N
 a

ls
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 c

la
ri
ty

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

, 
a
g
e
n
ts

, 
u
n
iv

e
rs

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 

o
th

e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 o
n
 h

o
w

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 m
a
n
a
g
e
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

 1
.2

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
im

s
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
a

c
ti
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 n

e
w

 s
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 a

re
 i

n
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 
lo

c
a
ti
o

n
 
in

 
te

rm
s
 
o
f 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 
a
n

d
 
a
m

e
n
it
y
 
im

p
a
c
ts

 
o
n
 
th

e
 
s
u
rr

o
u
n
d

in
g
 
a
re

a
; 

th
a
t 

th
e
y
 
a
re

 
w

e
ll 

m
a
n
a
g

e
d
 
a
n

d
 
a
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 i
n
 s

iz
e
 a

n
d
 s

c
a
le

; 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 u

n
iv

e
rs

it
ie

s
; 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 o

ff
e
r 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

 

N
o

n
-P

la
n

n
in

g
 I

s
s
u

e
s
 

1
.3

 T
h
e
re

 
a
re

 
a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

is
s
u
e
s
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

in
g
 

th
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
f 

s
tu

d
e
n
t 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 

(b
o
th

 
s
h
a
re

d
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n

d
 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 

b
u
ilt

 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
) 

w
h
ic

h
 

c
a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 

d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d
 

b
y
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

p
o
lic

y
 

o
r 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 

e
.g

. 
p
o
lic

in
g
 

m
a
tt
e
rs

 
a
n
d
 

e
n

v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 

n
u
is

a
n
c
e
. 

T
h
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 t

h
re

e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 i

n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n

s
, 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 b

u
ilt

 s
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 
s
h

a
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 l
a

n
d
lo

rd
s
, 

lo
c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

, 
th

e
 P

o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
rs

 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
c
o
n
fl
ic

ts
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 s

tu
d

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
c
to

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

F
o
r 

n
o
n
-p

la
n

n
in

g
 e

n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 p

le
a
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

A
b
e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h

 t
e
a
m

 o
n
 0

1
2
2

4
 

5
2
3
7

3
7
. 

  

B
a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

 

1
.4

 A
c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 a

n
d
 S

h
ir
e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 N

e
e
d
 a

n
d
 D

e
m

a
n
d
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t  

(2
0
1
1
),

 A
b
e
rd

e
e

n
 h

a
s
 a

 h
ig

h
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
1
6
-2

4
 

y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
. 

S
tu

d
e
n
ts

 a
re

 a
 v

it
a
l 

c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 C

it
y
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
o

u
n
t 

fo
r 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

3
.5

%
 o

f 
it
s
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 (

H
o

u
s
in

g
 N

e
e
d
 a

n
d

 

D
e
m

a
n
d
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t)

. 
A

b
e
rd

e
e

n
 i
s
 h

o
m

e
 t

o
 t

w
o
 m

a
jo

r 
u
n
iv

e
rs

it
ie

s
: 

th
e

 U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
A

b
e
rd

e
e

n
 a

n
d

 R
o

b
e
rt

 G
o
rd

o
n
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 (

R
G

U
),

 

a
s
 
w

e
ll 

a
s
 
th

e
 
N

o
rt

h
 
E

a
s
t 

S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
 
C

o
lle

g
e
. 

T
h
e
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e

d
 
s
u
c
c
e

s
s
 
o
f 

th
e
s
e
 
h
ig

h
e
r 

e
d

u
c
a
ti
o
n
 
in

s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
 
a
re

 
a
 
k
e
y
 
d
ri

v
e
r 

o
f 

A
b
e
rd

e
e

n
’s

 e
c
o
n

o
m

y
. 

 

 

Page 159



 

4
 

 1
.5

 O
v
e
r 

th
e

 p
a
s
t 

1
0
 y

e
a
rs

, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 i
n
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
n
d
 h

ig
h

e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 s
te

a
d
ily

 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
. 

L
a
te

s
t 

fi
g
u
re

s
 f

ro
m

 

A
b
e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 B

e
h
in

d
 t

h
e
 G

ra
n
it
e
 (

2
0
1
5
) 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 t
h
a
t 

in
 2

0
1
3
/2

0
1

4
, 

th
e
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 h

a
d
 1

5
,2

6
7
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 

(1
2
,0

2
2

 f
u
ll 

ti
m

e
),

 R
G

U
 1

7
,2

7
6
 (

1
0
,4

2
8

 f
u
ll 

ti
m

e
) 

a
n

d
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t 

S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
 C

o
lle

g
e

 2
8
,6

5
4
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 (
7
,0

5
6
 f

u
ll 

ti
m

e
).

 T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 a
tt

e
n
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 t

h
re

e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 i

n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
 h

a
s
 s

e
e
n
 a

n
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
3
0
%

 i
n
 t

h
e
 l

a
s
t 

te
n
 y

e
a
rs

 (
H

o
u

s
in

g
 N

e
e

d
 a

n
d

 

D
e
m

a
n
d
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t)

. 
T

h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 s

tu
d
e
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 h
o

w
e

v
e
r,

 h
a
s
 n

o
t 

ju
s
t 

o
c
c
u
rr

e
d
 a

m
o
n
g
 1

6
-2

4
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
; 

th
is

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
re

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e

n
 a

 g
ro

w
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
m

a
tu

re
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 a
tt

e
n
d
in

g
 u

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 a

n
d
 c

o
lle

g
e
 i
n
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

y
e

a
rs

. 
 

 

1
.6

 M
o
s
t 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 e

it
h
e
r 

liv
e
 i

n
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 b

u
ilt

 s
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 

s
h
a
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 o

r 
in

 t
h
e

ir
 p

a
re

n
ta

l 
h
o
m

e
. 

F
o
r 

th
e
 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
A

b
e
rd

e
e

n
, 

s
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

lly
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 i
n

 o
r 

a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 O

ld
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

a
m

p
u
s
, 

H
ill

h
e
a
d

 S
tu

d
e
n
t 

V
ill

a
g
e

 

a
n
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e
. 

R
G

U
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i

s
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 f

o
c
u
s
e
d
 i

n
 a

n
d

 a
ro

u
n
d
 i

ts
 G

a
rt

h
d
e
e
 C

a
m

p
u
s
. 

N
o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t 

S
c
o
tl
a
n

d
 

C
o
lle

g
e
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

h
a

v
e
 i
ts

 o
w

n
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

. 
In

s
te

a
d
, 

it
 e

x
p
e
c
ts

 s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 t
o

 f
in

d
 t

h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 e

it
h
e
r 

fr
o
m

 

s
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 o
r 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 m

a
rk

e
t.

  

 

1
.7

 T
ra

d
it
io

n
a
lly

, 
u
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 
is

 
g
u

a
ra

n
te

e
d
 
o

n
ly

 
to

 
fi
rs

t 
y
e

a
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
re

a
ft

e
r,

 
s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 
a
re

 
re

q
u
ir

e
d
 
to

 
lo

o
k
 
fo

r 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

. 
M

o
s
t 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 r
e
n
t 

fr
o
m

 p
ri
v
a
te

 l
a

n
d
lo

rd
s
, 

o
th

e
rs

 r
e

n
t 

fr
o
m

 s
o
c
ia

l 
la

n
d
lo

rd
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
rs

 l
iv

e
 i

n
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

ir
 (

o
r 

fr
ie

n
d
s
) 

p
a
re

n
ts

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
le

tt
in

g
s
 a

t 
th

e
 l
o

w
e

r 
e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ri
v
a

te
 r

e
n
ta

l 
m

a
rk

e
t 

in
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 p

re
s
e
n
ts

 a
 

m
a
jo

r 
p
ro

b
le

m
 f

o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 a
s
 m

o
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
m

 a
re

 u
n

a
b
le

 t
o
 a

ff
o
rd

 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
 r

e
n
ts

. 
E

v
id

e
n
c
e

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
le

ts
 R

e
n
ta

l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 (
2
0

1
5
) 

in
d
ic

a
te

s
 r

e
n
ts

 i
n
 a

n
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 r

e
m

a
in

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 i
n
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

d
in

b
u
rg

h
 a

n
d
 G

la
s
g
o

w
. 

 

 

1
.8

 In
 t

h
e
 p

a
s
t 

fe
w

 y
e
a
rs

 t
h

e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 b

u
ilt

 s
tu

d
e

n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

h
a

v
e
 b

o
th

 b
e
e

n
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 T
h
e
s
e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 r

a
n
g
e
 i
n
 s

iz
e
 f

ro
m

 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 1

0
 b

e
d
s
p
a

c
e
s
 t

o
 o

v
e
r 

3
5

0
 

b
e
d
s
p
a
c
e
s
. 

 

 

    

Page 160



 

5
 

 2
: 

P
O

L
IC

Y
 C

O
N

T
E

X
T

 
 2
.1

 S
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i

s
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a

l 
in

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

re
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i

n
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 a

s
 t

h
e

y
 o

ff
e
r 

c
h
o
ic

e
 t

o
 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
. 

T
h
e

y
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 r

e
lie

v
e
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 o
n
 t

h
e
 l

o
c
a
l 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 a

n
d
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 o

n
 H

o
u
s
e
s
 i

n
 M

u
lt
ip

le
 O

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o

n
 

(H
M

O
s
),

 
w

h
ic

h
 
a
c
c
o
u
n

t 
fo

r 
a
 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 
o
f 

th
e
 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
re

n
ta

l 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 
in

 
th

e
 
C

it
y
 
a
n
d
 
s
u
p

p
o
rt

 
th

e
 
s
tu

d
e
n
t 

p
o
p
u

la
ti
o
n
. 

 

 

2
.2

 S
c
o
tt

is
h
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 P

o
lic

y
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
s
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

b
ro

w
n
fi
e
ld

 l
a
n
d
 b

e
fo

re
 a

n
y
 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

ta
k
e
s
 p

la
c
e
 o

n
 g

re
e
n
fi
e
ld

 s
it
e
s
. 

It
 p

ro
m

o
te

s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

th
a
t 

is
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t

o
 a

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

lit
y
, 

e
m

p
h
a
s
is

in
g

 s
ix

 q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 o

f 

a
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
p
la

c
e
: 

d
is

ti
n
c
ti
v
e
; 

s
a
fe

 a
n
d
 p

le
a
s
a

n
t;

 w
e
lc

o
m

in
g
; 

a
d
a
p
ta

b
le

; 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t;

 a
n
d
 e

a
s
y
 t

o
 m

o
v
e
 a

ro
u

n
d
 a

n
d
 b

e
y
o

n
d
. 

 

 

2
.3

 T
h
e
 A

b
e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y
 a

n
d

 S
h
ir
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 D
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 (

2
0
1
4
, 

p
a
ra

 3
.5

0
) 

a
ls

o
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

e
s
 i
ts

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

b
ro

w
n
fi
e
ld

 l
a
n

d
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 d

e
s
ig

n
. 

T
h
e
 A

b
e
rd

e
e

n
 L

o
c
a
l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n
t 

P
la

n
 (

2
0

1
2
) 

h
a
s
 n

o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 p
o

lic
y
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

o
f 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 b

u
ilt

 s
tu

d
e

n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 h
o

w
e

v
e
r 

o
th

e
r 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 L

o
c
a
l 

D
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

to
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

in
 p

re
p
a
ri
n

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
, 

b
u
t 

a
re

 n
o
t 

lim
it
e
d
 t

o
: 
 

 

 
P

o
lic

y
 D

1
 –

 A
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 P

la
c
e
m

a
k
in

g
; 
 

 
P

o
lic

y
 D

2
 –

 D
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 A

m
e
n
it
y
; 

 
P

o
lic

y
 D

3
 –

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 a
n
d
 A

c
ti
v
e
 T

ra
v
e
l;
 

 
P

o
lic

y
 H

1
 –

 R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a

l 
A

re
a
s
; 

 

 
P

o
lic

y
 H

2
 –

 M
ix

e
d
 U

s
e
 A

re
a
s
; 

 
P

o
lic

y
 H

3
 –

 D
e
n
s
it
y
; 

 
P

o
lic

y
 N

E
6
 –

 F
lo

o
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 D

ra
in

a
g
e
 a

n
d
; 

 
P

o
lic

y
 R

7
 –

 L
o

w
 a

n
d
 Z

e
ro

 C
a
rb

o
n
 B

u
ild

in
g
s
. 

 

 

2
.4

 It
 i
s
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
th

a
t 

a
ll 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 g

iv
e
 d

u
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 t
o
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 c

o
n
ta

in
e

d
 w

it
h
in

 

th
e
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 L

o
c
a
l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
. 
T

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 S

u
p

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 m
u
s
t 
a
ls

o
 b

e
 d

u
ly

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
: 

 

 
S

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e
: 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

; 
 

Page 161



 

6
 

 

 
S

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e
: 

O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
; 

 
S

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e
: 

L
o

w
 a

n
d
 Z

e
ro

 C
a
rb

o
n
 B

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
; 

 
S

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e
: 

H
a
rm

o
n
y
 o

f 
U

s
e
s
. 
 

 

3
: 

C
R

IT
E

R
IA

 F
O

R
 P

U
R

P
O

S
E

 B
U

IL
T

 S
T

U
D

E
N

T
 A

C
C

O
M

M
O

D
A

T
IO

N
 

 

3
.1

 T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 w

h
e
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 b

u
ilt

 s
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 (

n
e

w
 a

n
d
 c

h
a

n
g
e
 o

f 
u
s
e
):

 

A
: 

 T
h

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
m

e
e
ts

 a
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 n
e
e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 t

y
p

e
 o

f 
a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 

3
.2

 A
ll 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 b

u
ilt

 s
tu

d
e

n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 g
iv

e
 a

d
e
q
u

a
te

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 a

n
 i

d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

ty
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
. 

 D
e

v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 s
h

o
u
ld

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r:

 

 

 
W

h
a
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 n
e
e
d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

l 
is

 a
im

e
d
 a

t 
a
n
d
 w

h
y
 t

h
is

 n
e

e
d
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
m

e
t;
  

 
If

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

a
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 s
tu

d
e
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

. 
 

B
: 

T
h

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 i
n

 a
 l
o

c
a
ti

o
n

 t
h

a
t 

is
 e

a
s
il

y
 a

c
c
e
s

s
ib

le
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

e
r 

e
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 c
a
m

p
u

s
e
s
 b

y
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 

m
o

d
e
s
 

3
.3

 T
h
is

 a
llo

w
s
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
 e

a
s
e
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 c

a
m

p
u
s
 f

o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 p

ro
m

o
te

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 m
e
a
n
s
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l,
 t

h
u
s
 m

in
im

is
in

g
 c

a
r 

u
s
e
. 
W

e
 

w
o

u
ld

 
e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 
n
e

w
 
s
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 
to

 
h
a

v
e
 
d
ir

e
c
t,

 
a
tt

ra
c
ti
v
e
, 

s
a
fe

 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
u
re

 
p
e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n
 
lin

k
s
 
to

 
h
ig

h
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

 

c
a
m

p
u
s
e
s
. 

T
h
e
y
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 i

d
e
a
lly

 l
o
c
a
te

d
 n

e
x
t 

to
 h

ig
h
 f

re
q
u
e
n
c
y
 p

u
b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 r
o
u
te

s
 (

1
0
/1

5
 m

in
u
te

s
 p

e
a
k
/o

ff
-p

e
a
k
) 

a
n

d
 c

y
c
le

 

ro
u
te

s
. 

 

C
: 

T
h

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 i
n

 a
 w

a
y
 t

h
a
t 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
fl

ic
t 

w
it

h
 a

d
ja

c
e
n

t 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 o

r 
th

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
a
m

e
n

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
 a

re
a
  

3
.4

  S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
b
u
ilt

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 m
u
s
t 

a
ls

o
 b

e
 i

n
 l

o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
 t

o
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
y
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 l

o
c
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 

m
in

im
is

e
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
ir
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
s
. 

S
u
c
h
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 o
v
e
rl

o
o
k
in

g
, 

o
v
e
rs

h
a
d

o
w

in
g
 o

r 
o

v
e
rd

o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
. 

 

 

Page 162



 

7
 

 3
.5

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

ri
n
c
ip

a
l 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 o

n
 d

e
s
ig

n
in

g
 h

ig
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 p

la
c
e
s
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
 P

o
lic

y
 D

1
 –

 A
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 P

la
c
e
m

a
k
in

g
, 

a
n
d
 P

o
lic

y
 D

2
 –

 

D
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 A

m
e
n
it
y
. 

A
ll 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

n
e

w
 s

tu
d

e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
d
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
s
e
 P

o
lic

ie
s
. 

 

3
.6

 T
a
lle

r,
 h

ig
h

e
r 

d
e
n
s
it
y
 s

tu
d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

it
e
d
 i

n
 l

o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
is

 i
s
 c

o
m

p
a
ti
b
le

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 b
u
ilt

 a
re

a
. 

T
h
e
 

m
o
s
t 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

s
u
c
h
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 a

re
a
. 

T
h
e
y
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 s

it
u
a
te

d
 i
n
 c

lo
s
e

 

p
ro

x
im

it
y
 t

o
 g

o
o
d
 p

u
b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 l
in

k
s
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 f
o
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n
t.
 P

e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 p

e
rm

e
a
b
ili

ty
 i
n
 l
a
rg

e
, 

h
ig

h
 d

e
n
s
it
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
to

 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 s

u
rr

o
u
n

d
in

g
 a

re
a
s
. 

 

 

3
.7

 W
h
e
re

 n
e

w
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 i

n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a

l 
a
re

a
s
 o

u
tw

it
h

 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
, 

th
e
s
e

 m
u
s
t 

h
a

v
e

 r
e
g
a
rd

 t
o

 t
h
e
 l

o
c
a
l 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

e
n

v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 
re

s
p
e
c
ti
n
g
 
th

e
 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 
c
h
a
ra

c
te

r,
 m

a
s
s
in

g
 
a
n
d
 
h

e
ig

h
t 

o
f 

th
e
 
a
re

a
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 
d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 m
u
s
t 

a
ls

o
 
re

s
p
e
c
t 

a
n
d

 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

fo
rm

, 
la

n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 a

n
d
 t

o
p

o
g
ra

p
h

y
, 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 s

tr
e
e
t 

p
a
tt

e
rn

 a
n
d

 p
e
rm

e
a
b
ili

ty
, 

n
o

is
e
, 

s
c
a
le

, 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

, 
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 u

rb
a

n
 

g
ra

in
. 

 

D
: 

T
h

e
 l

a
y
o

u
t,

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 f
a
c
il

it
ie

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a
re

 o
f 

h
ig

h
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 

O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

 

3
.8

 A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 g

o
o
d
, 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 i

s
 i

m
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

fo
r 

b
o
th

 s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 l

o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

n
e

w
 

s
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 m
a
k
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 f
o
r 

h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
. 

T
h
is

 c
o
u

ld
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 

a
n
d
 g

re
e
n
 c

o
rr

id
o
rs

, 
a
llo

tm
e
n
ts

 o
r 

o
u
td

o
o
r 

s
p
o
rt

s
 a

re
a
s
. 

O
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 a
lw

a
y
s
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 o

n
-s

it
e
 u

n
le

s
s
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g

 

ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

th
e
rw

is
e
, 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
s
e
 a

n
 o

ff
-s

it
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

o
u

g
h
t.

  

In
c
lu

s
iv

e
 D

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

  

3
.9

 N
e

w
 
s
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

 
s
h
o

u
ld

 
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 
h
ig

h
 
q
u
a
lit

y
 
d
e
s
ig

n
 
th

a
t 

is
 
in

c
lu

s
iv

e
 
a
n

d
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
. 

T
h
is

 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 
w

it
h

in
 
th

e
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
re

a
s
, 

a
lo

n
g
 k

e
y
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 r

o
u
te

s
 t

o
 a

n
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 s

it
e
 (

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 P

o
lic

y
 D

3
).

 F
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 i

n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 p
le

a
s
e
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 t
h
e
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 a
n

d
 A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 S
G

, 
a
n
d
 P

A
N

 7
8
: 

In
c
lu

s
iv

e
 D

e
s
ig

n
. 

M
in

im
u
m

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 (

n
e

w
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
u
s
e
) 

th
a
t 

a
llo

w
 f

o
r 

fl
e
x
ib

ili
ty

 i
n
to

 a
 d

w
e

lli
n
g
 i

n
 t

h
e
 f

u
tu

re
 c

a
n
 

b
e
 f

o
u
n
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 B

u
ild

in
g

 S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 R

e
g
u

la
ti
o
n
s
: 

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
H

a
n

d
b
o
o
k
 -

 D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
. 
 

 

Page 163



 

8
 

 P
a
rk

in
g
  

3
.1

0
 

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 f

o
r 

n
e
w

 s
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 T
h
a
t 

is
; 

1
 p

a
rk

in
g
 s

p
a
c
e
 p

e
r 

re
s
id

e
n
t 

s
ta

ff
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

p
lu

s
 1

 p
e
r 

1
0
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
, 

th
e
 i

n
n
e
r 

c
it
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 o

u
te

r 
c
it
y
 a

re
a
s
 (

s
e
e

 

A
b
e
rd

e
e

n
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 a
n

d
 A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 S
G

).
 D

is
a
b
le

d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

n
h
a

n
c
e
d
 c

y
c
le

 p
a
rk

in
g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 S

G
. 
 

T
ra

v
e
l 
P

la
n
s
 a

n
d
 C

a
r 

C
lu

b
s
  

3
.1

1
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
d
 t

o
 p

re
p
a
re

 T
ra

v
e
l 
P

la
n
s
 i
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e
r 

fo
r 

d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 e

x
c
e
e

d
 

th
e
 t

h
re

s
h
o
ld

s
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 S
G

, 
T

ra
v
e
l 
P

la
n
s
 a

re
 m

a
n
d
a
to

ry
. 

T
ra

v
e

l 
P

la
n

s
 a

id
 i
n
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 

m
o
re

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 t
ra

v
e
l 
c
h
o
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

, 
w

h
ile

 d
e
c
re

a
s
in

g
 r

e
lia

n
c
e

 o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 c
a
r.

  

 

3
.1

2
 

P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 w
h

ic
h
 e

n
te

r 
in

to
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 C

a
r 

C
lu

b
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 a

s
 a

 m
e
a
n
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 e

lim
in

a
te

 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d

 f
o
r 

o
n
s
it
e
 

p
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 m

in
im

is
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
tr

a
ff

ic
. 
 

W
a
s
te

 D
is

p
o
s
a
l 
F

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
  

3
.1

3
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 g

iv
e
n
 
a
t 

a
n
 e

a
rl

y
 s

ta
g
e
 
in

 t
h

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

w
a

s
te

 d
is

p
o
s
a

l 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 

w
a
s
te

 b
in

s
, 

o
rg

a
n
ic

 w
a
s
te

 b
in

s
 a

n
d
 m

ix
e
d
 d

ry
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 b

in
s
. 

T
h
is

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
v
e
n
ie

n
t 

a
n
d

 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 b

o
th

 f
o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 f

o
r 

w
a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 s

ta
ff

, 
id

e
a
lly

 a
t 

g
ro

u
n
d
 l

e
v
e
l.
 W

a
s
te

 s
to

ra
g
e
 a

re
a
s
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 w

it
h

in
 1

0
 m

e
tr

e
s
 o

f 

a
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 p

o
in

t 
fo

r 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
. 

V
e
h
ic

u
la

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 i

n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
v
e
h
ic

le
 w

e
ig

h
t,

 w
id

th
 e

tc
. 

n
e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 i

n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 

d
e
s
ig

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 m
u
s
t 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

w
a

s
te

 i
s
 d

is
p
o
s
e

d
 o

f 
in

 a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 w

a
s
te

 h
ie

ra
rc

h
y
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 P

o
lic

y
 R

6
 –

 W
a
s
te

 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

R
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

N
e

w
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t.

 

E
n
e
rg

y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
  

3
.1

4
 

P
u
rp

o
s
e
 
b

u
ilt

 
s
tu

d
e

n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 
(n

e
w

 
a
n
d
 
c
h
a

n
g
e
 
o
f 

u
s
e
) 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 
d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 
to

 
m

e
e
t 

B
u
ild

in
g
 
R

e
g
u

la
ti
o
n
s
 
e
n
e
rg

y
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
y
 m

u
s
t 

in
s
ta

ll 
lo

w
 a

n
d
 z

e
ro

-c
a
rb

o
n
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
n
g
 t

e
c
h
n

o
lo

g
y
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 p

re
d
ic

te
d
 c

a
rb

o
n
 d

io
x
id

e
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 a

s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 P

o
lic

y
 R

7
 –

 L
o

w
 a

n
d
 Z

e
ro

 C
a
rb

o
n
 B

u
ild

in
g
s
. 

 

Page 164



 

9
 

 C
o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 U

s
e
s
 i
n

 S
tu

d
e
n
t 

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o

n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
s
 

3
.1

5
 

 W
h
e
re

 o
th

e
r 

u
s
e
s
 a

re
 p

ro
p
o
s
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 b

u
ilt

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 g
y
m

s
, 

c
a
fé

s
 o

r 
re

s
ta

u
ra

n
ts

, 

th
e
s
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 s

o
 l

o
n
g
 a

s
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

 t
o

 t
h
e
 s

c
a
le

 o
f 

d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
. 

P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

s
u
c
h
 u

s
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
ll 

o
th

e
r 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

n
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
. 

F
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 m

ix
e
d
-u

s
e
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 

p
le

a
s
e
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 t
h
e
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 H

a
rm

o
n
y
 o

f 
U

s
e
s
 S

G
. 
 

F
le

x
ib

ili
ty

  

3
.1

6
 

P
u
rp

o
s
e
 b

u
ilt

 s
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i

s
 n

o
t 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
, 

a
n
d
 i

t 
is

 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
e
d

 t
o
 l
im

it
 o

c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
 t

o
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

. 
A

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
to

 r
e
m

o
v
e
 t

h
is

 c
o

n
d
it
io

n
 a

t 
a

 l
a
te

r 

d
a
te

 
w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
 a

t 
th

a
t 

ti
m

e
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll 

o
f 

th
e
 p

o
lic

y
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

g
e
n
e
ra

l 
n

e
e
d
s
 h

o
u
s
in

g
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

m
e
n
it
y
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
, 

c
a
n
 b

e
 m

e
t.
  

 

3
.1

7
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 s
h
o
u
ld

 a
im

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
n
e

w
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

s
 f

le
x
ib

le
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 b
y
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ri

n
g
 h

o
w

 t
h
e

 

p
ro

p
o
s
a

ls
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
c
o

n
fi
g
u
re

d
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 
g
e
n
e
ra

l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

u
tu

re
. 

 

 

E
: 

 T
h

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 h

a
s

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 p
la

c
e
, 

to
 m

in
im

is
e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

n
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 i

m
p

a
c
ts

 f
ro

m
 o

c
c
u

p
a
n

ts
 

a
n

d
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 a
 p

o
s
it

iv
e
 a

n
d

 s
a
fe

 l
iv

in
g

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
fo

r 
s
tu

d
e
n

ts
. 
 

M
a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 

3
.1

8
 

W
e
ll 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 s

tu
d
e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 c

a
n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 m

in
im

is
e
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i

m
p
a
c
ts

 o
n
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 a

re
a
s
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 e
x
p
e
c
t 

a
ll 

s
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 M
a

n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o

d
s
. 

A
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 a
re

 e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
d
 t

o
 p

re
p
a
re

 a
 M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 t

h
a
t 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
, 

s
it
e
 

a
n
d
 l
a
n

d
s
c
a
p
e
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
in

g
. 

  

Page 165



 

1
0

 

 5
: 

F
U

R
T

H
E

R
 I

N
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 

1
. 

A
b
e
rd

e
e

n
 L

o
c
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
, 

2
0
1
2
  

2
. 

S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e
 

3
. 

P
A

N
 7

8
: 

In
c
lu

s
iv

e
 D

e
s
ig

n
  

4
. 

B
R

E
E

A
M

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
: 
T

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
M

a
n
u
a

l 

5
. 

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
H

a
n
d
b

o
o
k
 -

 D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
  

6
. 

B
e
h
in

d
 t

h
e
 G

ra
n
it
e
, 

2
0
1

5
 

 

         

Page 166



E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
t 

Im
p

a
ct

 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t:

 T
h

e
 F

o
rm

 

     
 

A
b

e
r

d
e

e
n

 
C

i
t
y

 
C

o
u

n
c

i
l
     

E
H

R
IA

 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
e
p

a
ra

te
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e
 n

o
te

s
 t

o
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a

n
y
 t

h
is

 f
o
rm

 –
 

“E
q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 H
u
m

a
n
 R

ig
h
ts

 I
m

p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
–
 t

h
e
 G

u
id

e
.”

  

P
le

a
s
e

 u
s
e
 t
h

e
s
e

 g
u
id

a
n
c
e

 n
o

te
s
 a

s
 y

o
u
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
is

 f
o

rm
. 
 

T
h
ro

u
g
h

o
u
t 

th
e
 f
o

rm
, 

th
e

 w
o

rd
 “

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l”

 r
e
fe

rs
 t

o
 p

o
li

c
y
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

p
la

n
, 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
, 
re

p
o

rt
 o

r 
b

u
s
in

e
s

s
 c

a
s

e
. 

T
h
is

 t
h

e
n
, 

e
m

b
ra

c
e
s
 a

 r
a
n

g
e
 o

f 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 s

e
tt
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e
ts

, 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 

a
s
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g

. 
P

le
a
s
e
 a

ls
o

 r
e

fe
r 

to
 t

h
e
 “

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

T
e
rm

in
o
lo

g
y
” 

a
t 

th
e

 e
n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
rm

. 
 

 

Page 167



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

E
q

u
a
lit

y 
a

n
d

 H
u

m
an

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

  

 
1
:E

q
u

a
li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t-
 E

s
s
e
n

ti
a
l 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

  
 

N
a
m

e
 o

f 
P

ro
p

o
s

a
l:

 
 T

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 

A
d

v
ic

e
 N

o
te

: 
S

tu
d

e
n

t 
A

c
c

o
m

m
o

d
a
ti

o
n

 
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

A
s

s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t:
 2

4
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
5
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
: 

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t  

  

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

: 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
, 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 
In

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 N

a
m

e
 o

r 
d

e
le

g
a
te

d
 p

o
w

e
r 

re
fe

re
n

c
e
 (

W
h
e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

):
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

   

D
a
te

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 (

W
h
e
re

 a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
):

 

1
6
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1

5
 

 W
h

o
 d

o
e

s
 t

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 

a
ff

e
c

t?
  

 

 P
le

a
s
e

 T
ic

k
 a

 
 

  
E

m
p
lo

y
e

e
s
  

  
  J

o
b
 A

p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 
  S

e
rv

ic
e
 U

s
e
rs

  
  

 
 

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 P
u
b
lic

  
 

    

Page 168



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

E
q

u
a
lit

y 
a

n
d

 H
u

m
an

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

 

  O
th

e
r 

(L
is

t 
b

e
lo

w
) 

 
  

 
2
: 

E
q

u
a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 H
u

m
a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t-
 P

re
-s

c
re

e
n

in
g

 
 

 Is
 a

n
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
s

s
e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
?

 
  

 Y
e
s
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 N

 

 If
 N

o
, 
w

h
a

t 
is

 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

is
 d

e
c
is

io
n

?
 

(O
n
c
e
 t

h
is

 s
e
c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

, 
p
le

a
s
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 8

 o
f 

th
e
 

fo
rm

).
 

                  

 

 

 
 

Page 169



P
a

g
e

 |
 3

E
q

u
a
lit

y 
a

n
d

 H
u

m
an

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

  

3
: 

E
q

u
a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 H
u

m
a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
  a

- 
W

h
a

t 
a

re
 t

h
e

 a
im

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
n

d
e
d

 
e

ff
e

c
ts

 o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l?
 

    

 T
h

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 o
f 

th
is

 T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
A

d
v
ic

e
 N

o
te

: 
S

tu
d

e
n

t 
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 n

e
w

 p
u

rp
o

s
e

 b
u
ilt

 s
tu

d
e

n
t 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
n
g

e
 o

f 

u
s
e

 t
o

 s
tu

d
e

n
t 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
. 

It
 o

u
tl
in

e
s
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
n
e

e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

in
 t
h

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

h
e

n
 i
t 

c
o

m
e

s
 t

o
 s

tu
d

e
n
t 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
. 

T
h
is

 T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
A

d
v
ic

e
 N

o
te

 a
ls

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 c

la
ri
ty

 t
o

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
e

rs
, 

a
g

e
n

ts
, 

u
n

iv
e
rs

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 o
n

 h
o

w
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
s
tu

d
e

n
t 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
. 

 

 
 b

- 
W

h
a

t 
e
q

u
a

li
ty

 d
a

ta
 i
s

 a
v
a

il
a

b
le

 i
n

 
re

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l?

  
 

 (P
le

a
s
e
 s

e
e

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 n
o

te
s
) 

           

 T
h
is

 T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
A

d
v
ic

e
 N

o
te

 (
T

A
N

) 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
s
 t

h
e

 p
o
li
c
ie

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 L

o
c
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n
, 

w
h

ic
h

 u
n
d

e
rw

e
n

t 
e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 p

u
b
lic

 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
. 
T

h
e

 L
o

c
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 t
e

a
m

 o
rg

a
n

is
e
d

 n
in

e
 d

ro
p

-i
n

 

e
v
e

n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 C
it
y
 i
n

v
it
in

g
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b
li
c
 t

o
 p

u
t 

th
e
ir

 v
ie

w
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 M

a
in

 I
s
s
u

e
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 h
a

v
e

 h
e
lp

e
d

 d
ra

ft
 t
h

e
 P

ro
p
o

s
e

d
 

P
la

n
. 

 W
o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
 w

e
re

 a
ll 

h
e

ld
 i
n

 p
u
b

lic
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 

a
ll 

s
u

c
h
 a

s
 l
ib

ra
ri

e
s
, 

s
p
o

rt
s
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
, 
s
h

o
p

p
in

g
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
. 

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

, 
K

e
y
 A

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
s
e
 w

h
o

 h
a

d
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 

b
e

e
n

 i
n

v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n

 L
o

c
a
l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 w

e
re

 i
n

v
it
e

d
 

to
 t

h
e

 e
v
e
n

ts
. 

T
h

e
 e

v
e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

u
b
lic

 i
n

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
w

a
y
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 n

e
w

s
p

a
p

e
r 

a
rt

ic
le

s
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h

e
 e

v
e
n

ts
, 

a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 n
e

w
s
p

a
p

e
r 

a
d

v
e

rt
, 

a
 r

a
d
io

 a
d

v
e

rt
, 

p
o

s
te

rs
 i
n

 t
h
e

 l
o

c
a
l 
lib

ra
ri

e
s
, 

s
u

p
e
rm

a
rk

e
ts

, 
N

H
S

 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
, 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 a

n
d

 S
p

o
rt

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 f

a
c
il
it
ie

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
, 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
e

b
s
it
e

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 P
ill

a
rs

. 
  

 

Page 170



P
a

g
e

 |
 4

E
q

u
a
lit

y 
a

n
d

 H
u

m
an

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

  c
- 

L
is

t 
th

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

 f
ro

m
 a

n
y
 

c
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 t
h

a
t 

re
la

te
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s
 

a
n

d
/o

r 
h

u
m

a
n

 r
ig

h
ts

 i
s

s
u

e
s

 e
.g

. 
w

it
h

 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s

, 
s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s

e
rs

, 
U

n
io

n
s

 o
r 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 p
u

b
li
c

 t
h

a
t 

h
a

s
 t

a
k

e
n

 
p

la
c

e
 i

n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l.
  

 

 N
o
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

e
re

 r
a
is

e
d

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

 t
o

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 o
n

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 i
n

 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

 c
o
n

s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
. 
 

    

 d
- 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
 If

 a
p

p
lic

a
b
le

, 
s
ta

te
 a

n
y
 r

e
le

v
a
n

t 
c
o

s
t 

im
p

li
c
a
ti
o

n
s
 o

r 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 
p

ro
p

o
s
a
l.
  

 C
o

s
ts

 (
£

) 
 

  I
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 c

o
s
t 

  
  

 £
  

 0
 

    P
ro

je
c
te

d
 S

a
v
in

g
s
  
  

  
  

 £
  
 0

 
  

 e
- 

H
o

w
 d

o
e
s

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
li

c
 s

e
c

to
r 

e
q

u
a

li
ty

 d
u

ty
: 

to
 e

li
m

in
a

te
 d

is
c

ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
, 

h
a

ra
s

s
m

e
n

t 

a
n

d
 v

ic
ti

m
is

a
ti

o
n

; 
a
d

v
a

n
c

e
 e

q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
; 

a
n

d
 f

o
s

te
r 

g
o

o
d

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

s
?

 

 T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 
h

e
lp

s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
d
if
fe

re
n

t 
p

e
o

p
le

 g
ro

u
p

s
, 
in

 t
h
is

 c
a

s
e

, 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
ir

 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
. 

It
 t

a
k
e

s
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
o
f 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 i
m

p
a

ir
m

e
n

ts
 b

y
 a

d
v
o

c
a

ti
n

g
 f
o

r 
d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 i
n

 

a
n

 i
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 m

a
n

n
e

r.
 T

h
e

 T
A

N
 a

ls
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

s
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 f
o

r 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 g

ro
u
p

s
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

, 
a
g

e
n

ts
, 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 a
n

d
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
s
. 

  

Page 171



P
a

g
e

 |
 5

E
q

u
a
lit

y 
a

n
d

 H
u

m
an

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

 f-
 H

o
w

 d
o

e
s

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

li
n

k
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 E

q
u

a
li

ty
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

?
 

 T
h

e
 T

A
N

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 i
t 
a

d
v
o

c
a

te
s
 g

o
o
d

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

s
ta

k
e

h
o
ld

e
rs

 i
n

v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 b
u
ilt

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t.

 I
t 

a
ls

o
 h

e
lp

s
 t

o
 a

d
v
a

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 

fo
r 

s
tu

d
e
n

ts
 i
n

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 b

y
 e

n
s
u
ri

n
g

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 a

 b
u
ilt

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

th
a

t 
is

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 

a
n

d
 s

a
fe

, 
th

u
s
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
ir

 w
e

ll-
b

e
in

g
. 
 

 

Page 172



P
a

g
e

 |
 6

E
q

u
a
lit

y 
a

n
d

 H
u

m
an

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

 

 
4

: 
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

–
 T

e
s

t 

 W
h

a
t 

im
p

a
c

t 
w

il
l 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ti

n
g

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
h

a
v
e

 o
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

, 
s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s

e
rs

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 s
h

a
re

 c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 b

y
 T

h
e

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 A
c

t 
2

0
1

0
 ?

 

P
ro

te
c

te
d

  
C

h
a

ra
c

te
ri

s
ti

c
: 

 

N
e
u

tr
a

l 
Im

p
a

c
t:

 

P
le

a
s
e

 Ö
 

P
o

s
it

iv
e

 
Im

p
a

c
t:

 

P
le

a
s
e

 Ö
 

N
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 

Im
p

a
c

t:
 

P
le

a
s
e

 Ö
 

E
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

im
p

a
c

t 
a

n
d

 i
f 

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

, 
ju

s
ti

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

 w
h

e
re

 a
 

‘G
e

n
u

in
e

 D
e
te

rm
in

in
g

 R
e

a
s
o

n
’*

 e
x

is
ts

  

*(
 s

e
e

 c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 t

e
rm

in
o

lo
g

y
) 

A
g

e
 (

P
e

o
p

le
 o

f 
a
ll 

a
g
e

s
) 

 
 

 
 Ö

 
 

T
h

e
 T

A
N

 w
ill

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
ly

 o
n

 p
e

o
p
le

 o
f 

a
ll 

a
g

e
s
, 

e
s
p
e

c
ia

ll
y
 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
y
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 a
 l
iv

in
g

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

th
a

t 
is

 
p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d

 s
a

fe
. 

  

D
is

a
b

il
it

y
  

 
(M

e
n

ta
l,
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l,
 S

e
n

s
o

ry
 

a
n

d
 C

a
re

rs
 o

f 
D

is
a

b
le

d
 

p
e

o
p
le

) 
  

 

 
 Ö

 
 

T
h

e
 T

A
N

 p
ro

m
o

te
s
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
, 
in

c
lu

s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 w
e

ll
 p

la
n
n

e
d

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 f
it
 t

o
 u

s
e
 f

o
r 

e
v
e

ry
b
o

d
y
, 

in
 t
h
is

 c
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
s
tu

d
e

n
ts

. 
 

G
e

n
d

e
r 

R
e

a
s

s
ig

n
m

e
n

t 

 

 Ö
 

 
 

T
h

e
 T

A
N

 w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 g
e

n
d

e
r 

re
a

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

t 

M
a

ri
ta

l 
S

ta
tu

s
 

(M
a

rr
ia

g
e

 a
n

d
 C

iv
il 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
) 

 
  

  
Ö

  
 

T
h

e
 T

A
N

 w
ill

 g
iv

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

m
a

rr
ie

d
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
s
e
 

in
 c

iv
il 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r,

 a
s
 i
t 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
s
 s

tu
d

e
n

t 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
d
if
fe

re
n

t 
k
in

d
s
, 

a
s
 l
o

n
g
 a

s
 t
h

e
y
 a

d
h

e
re

 t
o

 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 c

ri
te

ri
a

. 
 

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 M
a

te
rn

it
y
  

   

 Ö
 

   

 
 

T
h

e
 T

A
N

 d
o
e

s
 n

o
t 
im

p
a

c
t 

n
e

g
a

ti
v
e
ly

 o
n

 p
re

g
n
a

n
c
y
 o

r 
m

a
te

rn
it
y
. 
 

 
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 I

m
p

a
c

t 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
T

e
s

t 

 W
h

a
t 

im
p

a
c

t 
w

il
l 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ti

n
g

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
h

a
v
e

 o
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

, 
s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s

e
rs

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 s
h

a
re

 c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 b

y
 T

h
e

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 A
c

t 
2

0
1

0
 ?

  

Page 173



P
a

g
e

 |
 7

E
q

u
a
lit

y 
a

n
d

 H
u

m
an

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

 P
ro

te
c

te
d

  
C

h
a

ra
c

te
ri

s
ti

c
: 

 

N
e
u

tr
a

l 
Im

p
a

c
t:

 

P
le

a
s
e

 Ö
 

P
o

s
it

iv
e

 
Im

p
a

c
t:

 

P
le

a
s
e

 Ö
 

N
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 

Im
p

a
c

t:
 

P
le

a
s
e

 Ö
 

E
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

im
p

a
c

t 
a

n
d

 i
f 

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

, 
ju

s
ti

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

 w
h

e
re

 a
 

‘G
e

n
u

in
e

 D
e
te

rm
in

in
g

 R
e

a
s
o

n
’*

 e
x

is
ts

  
*(

 s
e

e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 t

e
rm

in
o

lo
g

y
) 

R
a
c

e
  

(A
ll 

R
a

c
ia

l 
G

ro
u

p
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

G
y
p

s
y
/T

ra
v
e
lle

rs
) 

  
 

Ö
 

 
 

T
h

e
 T

A
N

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
h

a
v
e

 a
n
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 r
a

c
e

. 
 

R
e
li

g
io

n
 o

r 
B

e
li
e

f 
o

r 
N

o
n

-
b

e
li

e
f 

  

Ö
 

 
 

T
h

e
 T

A
N

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
h

a
v
e

 a
n
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 r
e

lig
io

u
s
-b

e
lie

fs
. 

S
e

x
 

(W
o

m
e

n
 a

n
d

 m
e

n
) 

 
 

Ö
 

 
 

T
h

e
 T

A
N

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
h

a
v
e

 a
n
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 s
e

x
. 

S
e

x
u

a
l 

O
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

  
 

(H
e
te

ro
s
e

x
u

a
l,
 L

e
s
b
ia

n
, 

G
a

y
 

A
n

d
 B

is
e

x
u

a
l)
 

 

Ö
 

 
 

T
h

e
 T

A
N

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
h

a
v
e

 a
n
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 s
e

x
u

a
l 
o

ri
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
. 

O
th

e
r 

 

(e
.g

: 
P

o
v
e

rt
y
) 

 

- 
- 

- 
N

/A
 

 

 

5
: 

H
u

m
a

n
 R

ig
h

ts
 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

T
e

s
t 

 D
o

e
s

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
to

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 a
n

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l’

s
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

?
  

E
v

id
e

n
c

e
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t 

a
n

d
 ,

 i
f 

a
p

p
li

c
a
b

le
, 

Page 174



P
a

g
e

 |
 8

E
q

u
a
lit

y 
a

n
d

 H
u

m
an

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

 ju
s

ti
fi

c
a

ti
o

n
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

is
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

 

  A
rt

ic
le

 2
 o

f 
p

ro
to

c
o

l 
1

: 
R

ig
h

t 
to

 e
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

 

 Y
e

s
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
 N

o
  

E
v
id

e
n

c
e

: 
 

 

 A
rt

ic
le

 3
: 

 R
ig

h
t 

n
o

t 
to

 b
e

 s
u

b
je

c
te

d
 t

o
 t

o
rt

u
re

, 
in

h
u

m
a

n
e

 o
r 

d
e

g
ra

d
in

g
 t

re
a

tm
e

n
t 

o
r 

p
u

n
is

h
m

e
n

t 

 Y
e

s
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
 N

o
  

E
v
id

e
n

c
e

: 

 

 A
rt

ic
le

 6
: 

 R
ig

h
t 

to
 a

 f
a
ir

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

li
c

 h
e

a
ri

n
g

 

 Y
e

s
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

 N
o

  

E
v
id

e
n

c
e

: 

 A
rt

ic
le

 8
: 

 R
ig

h
t 

to
 r

e
s

p
e

c
t 

fo
r 

p
ri

v
a

te
 a

n
d

 f
a

m
il

y
 l

if
e

, 
h

o
m

e
 a

n
d

 

c
o

rr
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
c

e
 

 Y
e

s
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

 N
o

  

E
v
id

e
n

c
e

: 
T

h
e

 T
A

N
 a

d
v
o

c
a

te
s
 f
o

r 
s
tu

d
e

n
t 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

th
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 

a
m

e
n

it
ie

s
 o

f 
s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
 a

re
a

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 h
a

v
e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 

 
X

 

 
X

 

 X
 

X
  

Page 175



P
a

g
e

 |
 9

E
q

u
a
lit

y 
a

n
d

 H
u

m
an

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

 

 
6

: 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
R

a
ti

n
g

: 
 

 P
le

a
s

e
 r

a
te

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll

 e
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 

h
u

m
a

n
 r

ig
h

t 
a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
(P

le
a

s
e
 s

e
e

 C
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 t
e

rm
in

o
lo

g
y
) 

 

 

R
e
a

s
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
a

t 
ra

ti
n

g
: 

 
T

h
e

 T
A

N
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e

 a
n

y
 n

e
g

a
ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 e
q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 h

u
m

a
n

 r
ig

h
ts

. 
It

 w
ill

 h
e
lp

 t
o

 
p

ro
m

o
te

 a
 b

u
ilt

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

th
a

t 
is

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
, 

in
c
lu

s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 s
a

fe
, 

n
o
t 

ju
s
t 

fo
r 

s
tu

d
e
n

ts
, 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 m
in

im
is

e
 a

n
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 f
ro

m
 o

c
c
u

p
a

n
ts

. 
 

 

 A
rt

ic
le

 1
0

: 
F

re
e

d
o

m
 o

f 
e
x

p
re

s
s

io
n

 

 Y
e

s
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
N

o
  

E
v
id

e
n

c
e

: 

 A
rt

ic
le

 1
4

: 
R

ig
h

t 
n

o
t 

to
 b

e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 d

is
c

ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
 

 Y
e

s
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

 N
o

  

E
v
id

e
n

c
e

: 

 O
th

e
r 

a
rt

ic
le

 n
o

t 
li

s
te

d
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
p

le
a

s
e

 s
ta

te
: 

 Y
e

s
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

 N
o

  

E
v
id

e
n

c
e

: 
 

 R
e
d

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
R

e
d

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

 A
m

b
e

r 
  

  
  

  
  
G

re
e

n
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 A
m

b
e

r 
 

 

 
X

 

 
X

 

 
X

 

X
 

 
 

 

Page 176



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

0
E

q
u

a
lit

y 
a

n
d

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

ig
h

ts
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

 1
8

/0
2

/1
4

  

    

b
u

t 
a
ls

o
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 c

it
iz

e
n

s
 o

f 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

. 
 

 

 
7

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
n

in
g

  
 

 A
s

 a
 r

e
s

u
lt

 o
f 

p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 t

h
is

 a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t,

 w
h

a
t 

a
c

ti
o

n
s

 a
re

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 t
o

 r
e

m
o

v
e

 o
r 

re
d

u
c

e
 a

n
y
 r

is
k

s
 o

f 
a
d

v
e

rs
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e
d

 o
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

, 
s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s

e
rs

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 s
h

a
re

 c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 p
ro

te
c

te
d

 b
y
 T

h
e

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 A
c

t 
2

0
1

0
 ?

  

  I
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 R
is

k
 a

n
d

 t
o

 w
h

o
m

: 
 

 

  R
e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 A
c

ti
o

n
s

: 
 

 R
e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 
L

e
a

d
: 

 C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 
D

a
te

: 
 

 R
e
v
ie

w
 

D
a
te

: 

N
o

n
-i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 

 
N

/A
 

 
 

 

 
8

: 
S

ig
n

 o
ff

 

  C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
  

(N
a
m

e
s

 a
n

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
) 

: 
S

a
n

d
ra

 N
g

’a
m

b
w

a
, 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 T
ra

in
e

e
, 
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d

 S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 D
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
 

 S
ig

n
e

d
 o

ff
 b

y
 (

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
) 

: 
 

 

 P
le

a
s
e

 s
e
n

d
 a

n
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 c
o

p
y
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 E

H
R

IA
 -

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
s
ig

n
a

tu
re

s
 -

 t
o

g
e

th
e
r 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 
d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
/o

r 
c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

: 
 E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 T

e
a

m
 

C
u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 

Page 177



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

1
E

q
u

a
lit

y 
a

n
d

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

ig
h

ts
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

 1
8

/0
2

/1
4

  

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 H

u
b

 1
3

 
S

e
c
o

n
d

 F
lo

o
r 

N
o

rt
h
 

M
a

ri
s
c
h

a
l 
C

o
lle

g
e
 

B
ro

a
d

 S
tr

e
e

t 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n
 

A
B

1
0

 1
A

B
 

 T
e
le

p
h

o
n

e
 0

1
2
2

4
 5

2
3

0
3

9
  

E
m

a
il
 s

a
n

d
ra

b
@

a
b

e
rd

e
e
n

c
it
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 
9

: 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 T

e
rm

in
o

lo
g

y
: 

 
 

 A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

P
re

-

s
c

re
e

n
in

g
 R

a
ti

n
g

: 

 

T
h
is

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 h

ig
h

lig
h

t 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 t

h
e

 o
b

v
io

u
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
n

d
 s

u
b
s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
ri

s
k
 o

f 
n

e
g
a

ti
v
e

 m
e

d
ia

 c
o

v
e
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

u
ta

ti
o
n

a
l 
d

a
m

a
g

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

 T
h

e
re

fo
re

, 
a

 f
u
ll 

im
p

a
c
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
is

 r
e

q
u
ir

e
d

, 
fo

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 a

ro
u

n
d
 s

e
n

s
it
iv

e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 m

a
rc

h
in

g
, 
G

y
p

s
y
/ 

T
ra

v
e

lle
r 

is
s
u

e
s
, 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 t
o

 s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 
It

 s
h

o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 t
o

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 w
h

y
 a

 f
u

ll 
im

p
a

c
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

, 
e

x
a
m

p
le

, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
n

e
g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 p
e

o
p
le

. 
 A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
R

a
ti

n
g

: 
 

 

A
ft

e
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 t

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t,

 r
a

te
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

 
R

e
d

: 
A

s
 a

 r
e

s
u
lt
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 t
h
is

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t,
 i
t 
is

 e
v
id

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

w
e

 w
ill

 d
is

c
ri

m
in

a
te

 (
d
ir

e
c
t,
 i
n
d

ir
e

c
t,

 
u

n
in

te
n

ti
o

n
a

l 
o

r 
o
th

e
rw

is
e

) 
a

g
a
in

s
t 

o
n

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 o
f 

th
e

 n
in

e
 g

ro
u

p
s
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 s

h
a

re
 P

ro
te

c
te

d
 

C
h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
. 

It
 i
s
 e

s
s
e
n

ti
a
l 
th

a
t 
th

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 
b

e
 s

u
s
p

e
n

d
e

d
 u

n
ti
l 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 o

r 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
is

 p
e

rf
o
rm

e
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 d
is

c
ri

m
in

a
ti
o
n

 i
s
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
. 

R
e
d

 A
m

b
e

r:
  

A
s
 a

 r
e

s
u
lt
 o

f 
p
e

rf
o
rm

in
g

 t
h
is

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t,
 i
t 

is
 e

v
id

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

a
 r

is
k
 o

f 
n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

e
x
is

ts
 t

o
 o

n
e

 o
r 

m
o

re
 o

f 
th

e
 n

in
e

 g
ro

u
p

s
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 s

h
a

re
 P

ro
te

c
te

d
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 a

 
g

e
n

u
in

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g

 r
e

a
s
o

n
 m

a
y
 e

x
is

t 
th

a
t 

c
o
u

ld
 l
e
g
it
im

is
e

 o
r 

ju
s
ti
fy

 t
h
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 
a

n
d

 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
a
d

v
ic

e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
. 

A
m

b
e

r:
 A

s
 a

 r
e

s
u
lt
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 t
h
is

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t,
 i
t 

is
 e

v
id

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

a
 r

is
k
 o

f 
n

e
g

a
ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

e
x
is

ts
 

a
n

d
 t

h
is

 r
is

k
 m

a
y
 b

e
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
 o

r 
re

d
u

c
e

d
 b

y
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 w
it
h
in

 t
h

e
 A

c
ti
o

n
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t.

  

Page 178



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

2
E

q
u

a
lit

y 
a

n
d

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

ig
h

ts
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

 1
8

/0
2

/1
4

  

 

G
re

e
n

: 
A

s
 a

 r
e

s
u
lt
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 t
h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 
d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 
a

p
p

e
a
r 

to
 h

a
v
e

 a
n

y
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 o
n

 

p
e

o
p
le

 w
h

o
 s

h
a

re
 P

ro
te

c
te

d
 C

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 a

n
d

 n
o

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 a

t 
th

is
 s

ta
g

e
. 

 
  E

q
u

a
li

ty
 D

a
ta

: 
 

 

E
q

u
a

lit
y
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
o
r 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 t
h

a
t 

m
a

y
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 
b

e
in

g
 a

n
a

ly
s
e

d
 

c
a

n
 a

ff
e

c
t 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
g

ro
u

p
s
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 s

h
a
re

 t
h

e
 n

in
e
 P

ro
te

c
te

d
 C

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 –

 r
e

fe
rr

e
d
 t

o
 

h
e

re
a

ft
e

r 
a

s
 ‘
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 G

ro
u

p
s
’.
 

 E
x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 D

a
ta

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 
(t

h
is

 l
is

t 
is

 n
o

t 
d

e
fi
n
it
iv

e
) 

  
 1

: 
A

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
 r

a
te

s
 b

y
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 G

ro
u

p
s
 

2
: 

C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 b
y
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 G

ro
u

p
s
 

3
: 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 w

it
h

d
ra

w
a

l 
o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 b

y
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 G

ro
u

p
s
 

4
: 

G
ri

e
v
a

n
c
e

s
 o

r 
d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 u

p
h

e
ld

 a
n
d

 d
is

m
is

s
e

d
 b

y
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 G

ro
u

p
s
 

 G
e

n
u

in
e

 
D

e
te

rm
in

in
g

 
R

e
a

s
o

n
  

 

C
e
rt

a
in

 d
is

c
ri

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 m

a
y
 b

e
 c

a
p

a
b
le

 o
f 

b
e
in

g
 j
u

s
ti
fi
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 g

ro
u

n
d

s
 t
h

a
t:

  
 

(i
) 

A
 g

e
n

u
in

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g

 r
e

a
s
o

n
 e

x
is

ts
  

(i
i)
 

T
h

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

 t
o
 t

h
e

 l
e
g

it
im

a
te

 a
im

s
 o

f 
th

e
 o

rg
a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 

 
W

h
e
re

 t
h
is

 i
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
, 
it
 i
s
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
a

n
d

 l
e
g

a
l 
a

d
v
ic

e
 i
s
 s

o
u

g
h

t 
p

ri
o
r 

to
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 a

n
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 

H
u

m
a

n
 R

ig
h

ts
 

T
h

e
 r

ig
h

ts
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h
e

 E
u

ro
p

e
a

n
 C

o
n

v
e
n

ti
o

n
 o

n
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

, 
a

s
 i
n

c
o

rp
o
ra

te
d
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 U
K

 L
a

w
 b

y
 

th
e

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

ig
h

ts
 A

c
t 

1
9

9
8

. 

 L
e

g
a

l 
S

ta
tu

s
: 

 
T

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

is
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t

o
 a

s
s
is

t 
u

s
 i
n

 “
Id

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 a
n

d
 e

lim
in

a
ti
n

g
 u

n
la

w
fu

l 
D

is
c
ri

m
in

a
ti
o

n
, 

H
a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 V

ic
ti
m

is
a

ti
o

n
” 

a
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 b
y
 T

h
e

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 A

c
t 

P
u

b
lic

 S
e

c
to

r 
D

u
ty

 2
0

1
1

. 
A

n
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
is

 n
o

t,
 i
n

 i
ts

e
lf
, 
le

g
a
lly

 b
in

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
h
o

u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e

 u
s
e

d
 a

s
 a

 s
u

b
s
ti
tu

te
 f

o
r 

le
g

a
l 
o

r 
o

th
e

r 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
a

d
v
ic

e
. 

 

 

Page 179



Page 180

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 

 
COMMITTEE  Planning Development Management 
 
DATE  16 July 2015 
 
DIRECTOR  Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Technical Advice Note: Planning and Aberdeen 

Airport 
 
REPORT NUMBER CHI/15/213 
 
CHECKLIST COMPLETED     Yes 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
The purpose of this report is to obtain Committee approval for a new 
Technical Advice Note (TAN) on ‘Planning and Aberdeen Airport’ to be 
issued for a six week period of public consultation. A copy of the draft 
is available as Appendix 1 to this report. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 
It is recommended that the Committee: 
 
(a) Approve the Planning and Aberdeen Airport TAN document for a 

six week public consultation period; 
 
(b) Agree that, following completion of the public consultation, any 

comments received and subsequent amendments to the draft 
advice be presented to a future committee. 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

3.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report with 
the exception of costs which may be incurred through the consultation 
and publicity of the proposed advice. Any such expenses can be met 
through existing budgets.  

 
3.2 The implication for the Priority Based Budgeting is positive. Detailed 

topic-based advice has value in reducing officer time spent on pre-
application discussions, and will therefore prove beneficial in reducing 
cost.  
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

Agenda Item 4.2

Page 181



 

2 
 

 
4.1 There are no known legal or equipment implications arising from this 

report. 
 
4.2 As a major landowner in the city, proposals for the development of land 

and assets owned by Aberdeen City Council will, where this is 
applicable, be subject to assessment in line with the guidance set out 
in the Technical Advice Note. 

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
5.1 The TAN has been prepared in support of the Aberdeen Local 

Development Plan (LDP) (2012), and provides additional guidance on 
the interpretation and implementation of the policies contained in the 
LDP, particularly Policy BI4 - Aberdeen Airport and Aberdeen Harbour. 

 
5.2 If approved, the TAN would form guidance to the current Local 

Development Plan (2012). It is also in general conformity with the 
Proposed Local Development Plan. However, when the next LDP is 
adopted, it will be updated as appropriate and reported back to 
Committee. 

 
5.3 The TAN provides guidance for applicants and officers on the issues 

that need to be considered when development proposals are in the 
vicinity of Aberdeen airport and Perwinnes Radar (operated by National 
Air Traffic Services (NATS)). It covers issues such as safeguarded 
areas, noise assessment, Public Safety Zones and consultation 
procedures. By ensuring that these issues are properly taken account 
of, the TAN will help to ensure that new development does not 
adversely affect the operational viability or safety of the airport, and 
that the amenity of new development is not compromised by aircraft 
noise or disturbance. 
 

5.4 TANs do not carry the same weight as Supplementary Guidance but 
are still treated as material considerations in the decision making 
process.  

 
6. IMPACT 
 
6.1 The TAN contributes to “Aberdeen – The Smarter City” Vision. It will 

help to ensure that Aberdeen continues to be an excellent place to live, 
invest, visit and do business, by helping to safeguard both the 
operation of the airport and the amenity of those living and working 
nearby. 

 
6.2 The proposal also contributes to the following Single Outcome 

Agreement priorities:  
 

• We live in Scotland that is the most attractive place for doing 
business in Europe; 

• We live in well-designed, sustainable places where we are 
able to access the amenities and services we need; 

Page 182



 

3 
 

• We value and enjoy our built and natural environment and 
protect and enhance it for future generations; 

• Our public services are high quality, continually improving, 
efficient and responsive to local people’s needs. 

 
6.3 The proposal is consistent with the Council’s Corporate Plan in 

particular delivering high levels of design from all development and 
maintaining an up-to-date planning framework. The TAN also meets 
the vision of the Community Plan in promoting a strong image of the 
City and a sense of civic pride.  
 

6.4 The proposal supports the Council’s 5 year Business Plan in terms of 
protecting and enhancing our high quality natural and built 
environment. 

 
6.5 The proposal is consistent with the Planning and Sustainable 

Development Service Plan, in particular promoting a customer focused 
service by engaging the community in the planning process. 

 
6.4 With regards to public interest, the TAN is likely to be of interest 

principally to those members of the public and key stakeholders who 
have an interest in the development of land within the vicinity of 
Aberdeen airport. 

 
6.6 An Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessment (EHRIA) has not 

been carried out in relation to the proposed TAN, because it was 
considered to have a neutral effect. A Privacy Impact Assessment was 
also considered to be unnecessary in this case. 

 
6.7 An SEA Screening Report has been prepared and submitted to the 

SEA Gateway and Consultation Authorities for comment.  The outcome 
of this will be reported back to Committee following the consultation 
period. 

 
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 
7.1 It is not considered that there are any risks associated with the 

recommendations made in this report. The TAN provides additional 
detail on the implementation of existing policies included in the Local 
Development Plan, bringing information together from disparate 
sources into one easy to reference document. This will enable 
applicants to be more informed and will make the evaluation process 
more efficient for officers but it does not introduce any new policy 
points or procedures that are not currently followed. 

 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
Background papers used in the preparation of the Technical Advice 
Note: 
Aberdeen International Airport Noise Action Plan: 
http://www.aberdeenairport.com/media/52428/Aberdeen-International-
Airport-Noise-Action-Plan.pdf 

Page 183



 

4 
 

 
Planning Advice Note 1/2011: Planning and Noise 
http://www.gov.scot/Resource/Doc/343210/0114180.pdf 
 
Circular 8/2002 Control of Development in Airport Public Safety Zones: 
http://www.gov.scot/Resource/Doc/46997/0026454.pdf 
 
AIA Safeguarding Guidance: 
http://www.aberdeenairport.com/media/47178/AIA_Safeguarding_Guid
ance-FULL.pdf 
 

• Appendix 1 – Technical Advice Note: Planning and Aberdeen 
 Airport 

 

• Appendix 2 – Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessment 
 

 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
Grace Harrison 

Planner 
Communities, Housing and Infrastructure 
T:  01224 523325 
E:  grharrison@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

Page 184



1
 

D
ra

ft
 T

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
A

d
v
ic

e
 N

o
te

 
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 A

b
e
rd

e
e

n
 A

ir
p
o
rt

 
 

D
a

te
: 
J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
5

 

   

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n

 L
o
c
a

l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 T

e
a
m

 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 H

u
b
 4

 

G
ro

u
n
d
 F

lo
o
r 

N
o
rt

h
 

M
a
ri
s
c
h
a

l 
C

o
lle

g
e

 

B
ro

a
d

 S
tr

e
e
t 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n

 

A
B

1
0
 1

A
B

  

T
e
l:
 0

1
2
2

4
 5

2
3
4

7
0

  

E
m

a
il:

 l
d
p

@
a
b

e
rd

e
e

n
c
it
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

Page 185



2
 

C
o
n

te
n

ts
 

1
. 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
 

2
. 
 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
 

2
.1

  
P

u
b

lic
 S

a
fe

ty
 Z

o
n
e

s
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
3

 

2
.2

  
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

4

2
.3

 
N

o
is

e
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
 5

2
.4

 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 A
IA

 o
n

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
6

 

2
.5

 
P

e
rm

it
te

d
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 A
IA

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
6

 

3
. 

P
E

R
W

IN
N

E
S

 R
A

D
A

R
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

8
 

3
.1

 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

8
 

4
. 

F
U

R
T

H
E

R
 I

N
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
9

 

5
. 

M
A

P
S

 
5

.1
 

M
a

p
 A

  
P

u
b

lic
 S

a
fe

ty
 Z

o
n
e

 N
o
rt

h
 

5
.2

 
M

a
p

 B
  

P
u

b
lic

 S
a
fe

ty
 Z

o
n
e

 S
o
u

th
 

5
.3

 
M

a
p

 C
  

N
o
is

e
 C

o
n

to
u

rs
 (

2
0
0

6
) 

5
.4

 
M

a
p

 D
  

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 A

ir
p

o
rt

 S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 
5

.5
 

M
a

p
 E

  
P

e
rw

in
n

e
s
 R

a
d

a
r 

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 

Page 186



3
 

1
. 

 
IN

T
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
 

1
.1

 
T

h
is

 T
e

c
h
n

ic
a
l 
A

d
v
ic

e
 N

o
te

 (
T

A
N

) 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 i
n
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p
o

lic
ie

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 

in
 t

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 (
2
0

1
2

),
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
P

o
lic

y
 B

I4
 –

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 A

ir
p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 A
b
e

rd
e

e
n

 H
a
rb

o
u

r.
 I

t 
th

e
re

fo
re

 s
h

o
u

ld
 

b
e

 r
e
a

d
 a

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 t

h
e

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
d

 i
n
 t

h
e

 L
D

P
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
p

ro
p
o

s
a

ls
. 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
A

d
v
ic

e
 N

o
te

s
 

d
o

 n
o

t 
c
a

rr
y
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
e
 w

e
ig

h
t 

a
s
 S

u
p

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e

, 
th

e
y
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

tr
e
a

te
d

 a
s
 m

a
te

ri
a
l 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

s
 i

n
 t

h
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n
 

m
a

k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

1
.2

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 v
ic

in
it
y
 o

f 
A

b
e

rd
e
e

n
 a

ir
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 P

e
rw

in
n

e
s
 R

a
d

a
r 

(o
p
e

ra
te

d
 b

y
 N

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
A

ir
 T

ra
ff

ic
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 (

N
A

T
S

))
 

m
u

s
t 

g
iv

e
 c

a
re

fu
l 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 t

o
 
h
o

w
 i

t 
w

ill
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

u
p
o

n
, 

a
n
d

 b
e

 
im

p
a

c
te

d
 b

y
, 

th
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 a
ir
p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 r
a
d

a
r 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
. 

T
h

is
 T

A
N

 o
u

tl
in

e
s
 t

h
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
e
d

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

th
e

s
e
. 

2
. 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

 

2
.1

 
P

U
B

L
IC

 S
A

F
E

T
Y

 Z
O

N
E

S
 

2
.1

.1
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
in

 P
u

b
li

c
 S

a
fe

ty
 Z

o
n

e
s

 

P
u

b
lic

 S
a
fe

ty
 Z

o
n

e
s
 (

P
S

Z
) 

a
re

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
la

n
d

 a
t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 a

ir
p

o
rt

 r
u
n

w
a

y
 w

it
h

in
 w

h
ic

h
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
is

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
, 

to
 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

th
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 o

n
 t

h
e

 g
ro

u
n

d
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 i

n
 t

h
e

 e
v
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
n

 a
ir
c
ra

ft
 a

c
c
id

e
n

t 
o
n
 t

a
k
e

-o
ff

 o
r 

la
n
d

in
g
. 

W
it
h

in
 t

h
e

s
e
 

z
o

n
e

s
, 

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

 g
e

n
e
ra

l 
p

re
s
u
m

p
ti
o

n
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

c
e

rt
a
in

 t
y
p

e
s
 o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
h

ic
h
 w

o
u

ld
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e

 n
u
m

b
e

r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 

liv
in

g
, 

w
o

rk
in

g
 

o
r 

c
o

n
g
re

g
a

ti
n

g
 

in
 

th
e

s
e

 
z
o

n
e

s
. 

In
 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
th

e
re

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 

b
e

 
n
o

 
n
e

w
 

o
r 

re
p

la
c
e
m

e
n

t 

d
w

e
lli

n
g
h

o
u

s
e

s
, 

m
o
b

ile
 h

o
m

e
s
, 

c
a

ra
v
a

n
 s

it
e
s
 o

r 
o

th
e

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
b
u

ild
in

g
s
. 

N
o
r 

s
h

o
u

ld
 n

e
w

 o
r 

re
p

la
c
e

m
e
n

t 
n

o
n

-r
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
b

e
 p

e
rm

it
te

d
. 

O
v
e

r 
ti
m

e
, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
d
u

c
e
d

 a
s
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 a

llo
w

. 
 

2
.1

.2
 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 
p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 
is

 
in

 
p

la
c
e

 
fo

r 
a

n
 
e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 
to

 
th

e
 
n

o
rt

h
e

rl
y
 
e

n
d

 
o
f 

th
e
 
ru

n
w

a
y
. 

O
n

c
e

 
th

is
 
e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 
h

a
s
 
b

e
e
n
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
, 

th
e

 
P

u
b

lic
 
S

a
fe

ty
 
Z

o
n

e
s
 
w

ill
 
re

q
u

ir
e

 
to

 
b

e
 
re

v
is

e
d

 
to

 
ta

k
e

 
in

to
 
a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
th

e
 
n
e

w
 
e

x
te

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
ru

n
w

a
y
. 

Page 187



4
 

C
o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
u

tu
re

 l
o
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
P

S
Z

’s
 i

n
 l

in
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 a

ir
p

o
rt

 m
a

s
te

r 
p

la
n

. 
P

S
Z

 a
re

 s
e

t 
b
y
 t

h
e

 C
iv

il 

A
v
ia

ti
o
n

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 (
C

A
A

) 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 u

lt
im

a
te

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
m

a
k
in

g
 a

m
e

n
d
m

e
n

ts
. 

2
.1

.3
 

P
u

b
li

c
 S

a
fe

ty
 Z

o
n

e
s

 M
a

p
s

 

P
S

Z
 a

re
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
ri
s
k
 c

o
n

to
u

rs
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 a
ir
p
o
rt

, 
u

p
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 a

 p
e

rs
o
n

 r
e
m

a
in

in
g
 i

n
 t

h
e

 s
a
m

e
 l

o
c
a

ti
o
n
 

fo
r 

a
 p

e
ri
o
d

 o
f 

a
 y

e
a

r 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

u
b

je
c
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 g
iv

e
n

 l
e
v
e

l 
o

f 
ri
s
k
 b

e
in

g
 k

ill
e
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
a

ir
c
ra

ft
 a

c
c
id

e
n

t.
  

P
u

b
lic

 S
a
fe

ty
 

Z
o
n

e
s
 f

o
r 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 a

ir
p
o

rt
 a

re
 s

h
o

w
n

 i
n
 M

a
p

s
 A

 a
n

d
 B

. 
T

h
e

 a
re

a
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 s

a
fe

ty
 z

o
n

e
 (

re
d

) 
c
o

rr
e

s
p
o

n
d

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 1

 i
n
 

1
0

0
,0

0
0

 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
ri
s
k
 c

o
n

to
u

r.
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
ri

s
k
 i
n

 s
o

m
e

 a
re

a
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 Z
o

n
e

 m
a
y
 b

e
 m

u
c
h

 h
ig

h
e

r.
 T

h
e

 m
a

x
im

u
m

 

to
le

ra
b

le
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
th

ir
d

 p
a

rt
y
 r

is
k
 o

f 
b

e
in

g
 k

ill
e

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
a
n

 a
ir
c
ra

ft
 a

c
c
id

e
n

t 
a

s
 o

n
e

 i
n

 1
0

,0
0

0
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

(b
lu

e
).

 

·
 

C
ir
c
u
la

r 
8

/2
0

0
2

 ‘
C

o
n

tr
o
l 

o
f 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
 A

ir
p

o
rt

 P
u

b
lic

 S
a

fe
ty

 Z
o
n

e
s
’ 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
ta

il 
o

n
 P

u
b

lic
 S

a
fe

ty
 Z

o
n

e
s
 a

n
d
 

s
e

ts
 o

u
t 

w
h

a
t 

ty
p

e
s
 o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

m
a

y
 b

e
 p

e
rm

is
s
ib

le
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

m
. 
h

tt
p
:/

/w
w

w
.g

o
v
.s

c
o

t/
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
/D

o
c
/4

6
9

9
7

/0
0
2

6
4
5

4
.p

d
f 

2
.1

.4
 

F
u

tu
re

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 P
u

b
li
c

 S
a

fe
ty

 Z
o

n
e

s
 

A
IA

 
h

a
s
 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 
p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 
fo

r 
a

n
 
e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 
to

 
th

e
 
n
o

rt
h
e

rl
y
 
e

n
d

 
o
f 

th
e

 
ru

n
w

a
y
. 

T
h

e
 
A

b
e

rd
e
e

n
 
In

te
rn

a
ti
o
n

a
l 

A
ir
p

o
rt

 

M
a

s
te

rp
la

n
 
a

ls
o
 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 

p
la

n
s
 
fo

r 
a

 
s
o

u
th

e
rl
y
 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 

w
h

ic
h

 
h

a
s
 

y
e

t 
to

 
re

c
e

iv
e

 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 

p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
. 

O
n

c
e

 
th

e
s
e
 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
, 

th
e

 P
u

b
lic

 S
a
fe

ty
 Z

o
n

e
s
 w

ill
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e
v
is

e
d

 t
o

 t
a
k
e

 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u

n
t 

th
e
 n

e
w

 e
x
te

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 r
u
n

w
a

y
. 

P
S

Z
 a

re
 s

e
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 C

iv
il 

A
v
ia

ti
o
n

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 (
C

A
A

) 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 u

lt
im

a
te

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
a
m

e
n
d

in
g
 t

h
e
m

. 

2
.2

 
S

A
F

E
G

U
A

R
D

IN
G

 

2
.2

.1
 

T
h

e
 R

o
le

 o
f 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o

n
 l
a
n

d
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g
 A

b
e

rd
e
e

n
 a

ir
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 ‘
s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 c

h
e

c
k
s
’ 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

it
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

in
fr

in
g
e
 

a
g
re

e
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 m

a
rg

in
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 a
ir
c
ra

ft
 f

lig
h

t 
p

a
th

s
, 

o
r 

in
te

rf
e

re
 w

it
h

 a
id

s
 t

o
 n

a
v
ig

a
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 g

u
id

e
 a

ir
c
ra

ft
 o

n
 t

h
o

s
e
 f

lig
h

t 

p
a

th
s
. 
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 c
h
e

c
k
e
d

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
: 

Page 188



5
 

·
 

P
ro

te
c
t 

th
e

 b
lo

c
k
s
 o

f 
a

ir
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 w

h
ic

h
 a

ir
c
ra

ft
 f

ly
, 

b
y
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
e

n
e

tr
a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

s
u

rf
a

c
e

s
 c

re
a

te
d

 t
o

 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 t
h

e
ir
 l

o
w

e
r 

lim
it
s
; 

·
 

P
ro

te
c
t 

th
e

 i
n
te

g
ri
ty

 o
f 

ra
d

a
r 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
e

le
c
tr

o
n

ic
 a

id
s
 t

o
 a

ir
 n

a
v
ig

a
ti
o
n

, 
b

y
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
n

g
 r

e
fl
e
c
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 d
if
fr

a
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 r
a
d

io
 

s
ig

n
a

ls
 i
n
v
o

lv
e

d
; 

·
 

P
re

v
e

n
t 

v
is

u
a

l 
a

id
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 a
n
d

 r
u
n
w

a
y
 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 f

ro
m

 b
e

in
g
 o

b
s
c
u

re
d

 o
r 

c
o

n
fu

s
e

d
; 

·
 

A
v
o

id
 a

n
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
 t

o
 a

ir
c
ra

ft
 o

f 
a

 b
ir
d

s
tr

ik
e

 b
y
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
n

g
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 h

a
z
a

rd
o

u
s
 b

ir
d

 s
p
e

c
ie

s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 v
ic

in
it
y
 o

f 

th
e

 a
ir
p

o
rt

; 
a

n
d

 

·
 

P
re

v
e

n
t 

lig
h

ts
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d

 w
h

ic
h
 a

re
 l
ia

b
le

 t
o

 e
n

d
a

n
g
e

r 
a

ir
c
ra

ft
 t

a
k
in

g
 o

ff
 o

r 
la

n
d

in
g
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 l
ia

b
le

 t
o

 b
e

 m
is

ta
k
e

n
 f

o
r 

a
n
 

a
e

ro
n
a

u
ti
c
a

l 
lig

h
t.

 

2
.2

.2
 

P
h

y
s

ic
a

l 
a

n
d

 T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 

S
a

fe
g

u
a
rd

in
g

 

‘P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

s
a

fe
g
u

a
rd

in
g

’ 
re

fe
rs

 t
o

 t
h
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 h
e

ig
h

t 
o
f 

a
 p

ro
p
o

s
e

d
 o

b
je

c
t,
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 o

r 
b
u

ild
in

g
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 i

t 
d

o
e
s
 

n
o

t 
p
h

y
s
ic

a
lly

 i
n
fr

in
g
e

 t
h

e
 a

ir
p

o
rt

’s
 O

b
s
ta

c
le

 L
im

it
a

ti
o

n
 S

u
rf

a
c
e

s
 (

O
L

S
).

 T
h
e

 O
L

S
 i

s
 a

 s
e

t 
o

f 
3

 d
im

e
n

s
io

n
a

l 
s
u

rf
a

c
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 

e
x
te

n
d

 u
p

w
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 o
u

tw
a

rd
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 r

u
n
w

a
y
 a

n
d

 a
re

 d
e

s
ig

n
e

d
 t

o
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 a
ir
s
p

a
c
e

 i
n
 a

n
d
 a

ro
u

n
d
 t

h
e

 a
ir
fi
e
ld

 f
ro

m
 

o
b

s
ta

c
le

s
 f

o
r 

fl
ig

h
t 

s
a
fe

ty
. 

‘T
e

c
h
n

ic
a
l 

s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

’ 
is

 t
h

e
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

ra
d

a
r 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 n

a
v
ig

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

id
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

in
te

rf
e

re
n

c
e

 o
r 

d
is

ru
p

ti
o

n
 b

y
 o

b
s
ta

c
le

s
 o

r 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 i

n
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
. 

T
h
e

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i

s
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 p

ro
te

c
t 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n

s
 

fr
o
m

 r
a

d
io

 f
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 i
n
te

rf
e

re
n

c
e

 f
ro

m
 o

th
e

r 
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
ra

d
io

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 o

r 
ra

d
io

 s
ig

n
a

l 
re

fl
e
c
ti
o
n

s
 o

r 
d

if
fr

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 c

a
u

s
e

d
 b

y
 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
o

b
je

c
ts

. 

2
.2

.3
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 M

a
p

 

N
e
w

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 m
u

s
t 

u
n

d
e

rg
o

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
a

n
d

 t
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 

s
a
fe

g
u
a

rd
in

g
 c

h
e

c
k
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

o
 a

d
v
e

rs
e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n
 

a
ir
c
ra

ft
 s

a
fe

ty
. 

M
a

p
 D

 i
n
d

ic
a
te

s
 w

h
ic

h
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 w
ill

 r
e
q
u

ir
e

 A
IA

 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
e
d

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
a

e
ro

d
ro

m
e
 

s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 b

re
a

c
h
e

s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 a
n

d
 i
f 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
, 

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 o

r 
re

je
c
te

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 s

a
fe

ty
 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
o
m

p
ro

m
is

e
d

. 

2
.3

 
N

O
IS

E
 

T
o

 a
v
o

id
 c

o
n
fl
ic

t 
w

it
h

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
ri
n

g
 u

s
e

s
, 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

in
 c

lo
s
e

 p
ro

x
im

it
y
 t

o
 t

h
e

 a
ir
p

o
rt

 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

. 
T

h
e
 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
N

o
is

e
 (

S
c
o

tl
a

n
d

) 
R

e
g
u

la
ti
o
n

s
 2

0
0
6

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t
h

e
 b

a
s
is

 f
o

r 
m

in
im

is
in

g
 n

o
is

e
 d

is
tu

rb
a

n
c
e

 a
t 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 a

ir
p
o

rt
. 

Page 189



6
 

2
.3

.1
 

N
o

is
e

 C
o

n
to

u
rs

 

T
h
e

 
C

iv
il 

A
v
ia

ti
o
n

 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
(C

A
A

) 
p

ro
d

u
c
e
s
 
c
o

n
to

u
rs

 
w

h
ic

h
 
e

s
ti
m

a
te

 
th

e
 
a

v
e

ra
g
e

 
a

ir
c
ra

ft
-r

e
la

te
d
 
n

o
is

e
 
e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e
d

 
b

y
 

p
e

o
p

le
 l
iv

in
g
 a

ro
u

n
d

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 a

ir
p

o
rt

. 
T

h
e

 E
q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
o

u
s
 S

o
u

n
d

 L
e

v
e

l 
(d

B
 L

A
e

q
) 

is
 u

s
e

d
, 

w
h

ic
h
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

v
e

ra
g
e
 

n
o

is
e
 l
e
v
e

ls
 f

o
r 

th
e

 b
u
s
ie

s
t 

1
6

-h
o
u

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 d

a
y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 0

7
0

0
 –

 2
3
0

0
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 b

u
s
ie

s
t 

th
re

e
 m

o
n

th
s
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r,
 m

id
-J

u
n

e
 t

o
 

m
id

-S
e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
(k

n
o

w
n

 a
s
 L

A
e

q
1

6
h

r)
 T

h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

c
o
m

m
o
n

 i
n
te

rn
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
m

e
a

s
u

re
 o

f 
a

ir
c
ra

ft
 n

o
is

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

v
e

n
ti
o

n
a

l 

u
n

it
 o

f 
m

e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
. 

T
h
e

 U
K

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
s
a

y
s
 t

h
a

t 
c
o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 a

n
n

o
y
e

d
 b

y
 a

ir
c
ra

ft
 n

o
is

e
 a

b
o

v
e

 5
7

 d
B

 L
A

e
q
. 

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

in
 a

re
a

s
 w

h
e

re
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 n
o

is
e
 l

e
v
e

ls
 (

a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
a

ir
c
ra

ft
 m

o
v
e

m
e

n
t)

 a
re

 i
n
 e

x
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
5

7
d

B
 

L
A

e
q
 (

u
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
u

m
m

e
r 

1
6

-h
o

u
r 

m
e

a
s
u

re
m

e
n

t)
 a

s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 a
ir
p

o
rt

 n
o

is
e
 c

o
n
to

u
r 

m
a

p
 (

M
a

p
 C

) 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
fu

s
e
d

, 
d

u
e
 

to
 t

h
e

 i
n
a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 c

re
a

te
 a

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 l
e
v
e

l 
o
f 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a
m

e
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 t
o

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 t
h

e
 f

u
tu

re
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

b
e
rd

e
e

n
 a

ir
p

o
rt

. 

F
o
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

w
h

ic
h
 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 l

o
c
a

te
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 r
e
m

a
in

in
g
 n

o
is

e
 c

o
n

to
u

rs
, 

a
p

p
lic

a
n
ts

 m
a

y
 b

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 

s
u

b
m

it
 a

 n
o

is
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
ti
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
a
n

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

m
e

n
it
y
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

 

2
.3

.2
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
v
e

s
 

W
h
e
re

 
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
, 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
v
e

s
 
w

ill
 
b

e
 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

 
in

 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 
n
o

ti
c
e

s
. 

T
h
e

s
e

 
w

ill
 
a

d
v
is

e
 
th

e
 
a
p

p
lic

a
n
t 

th
a

t 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 
th

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o

rd
a
n
c
e

 w
it
h

 p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d

 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o
n

, 
it
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

lik
e

ly
 t

o
 b

e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 n

o
is

e
 d

is
tu

rb
a

n
c

e
. 

S
u

c
h

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
v
e

s
 w

ill
 m

a
k
e

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

lic
a

n
t 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e

 i
s
s
u
e

s
, 

h
e

lp
in

g
 t

o
 a

v
o

id
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
b

o
u

t 
n
o

is
e
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

a
ir
p

o
rt

 a
t 
a

 l
a
te

r 
s
ta

g
e

. 

2
.4

 
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

 W
IT

H
 A

IA
 O

N
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 A
P

P
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

 

2
.4

.1
 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 

C
it
y
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
 

w
it
h

 
A

b
e

rd
e
e

n
 

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
A

ir
p

o
rt

 
L

td
 

a
b

o
u

t 
a
n

y
 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

w
it
h

in
 

a
 

s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

e
d

 a
re

a
 (

s
e
e
 M

a
p

 D
) 

in
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 c

a
s
e

s
: 

 

·
 

If
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
fa

lls
 w

it
h

in
 c

e
rt

a
in

 c
ri
te

ri
a

 r
e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 h
e

ig
h

t 
a

n
d
 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
; 

·
 

If
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
h

a
s
 b

ir
d

 a
tt

ra
c
ta

n
t 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 a

n
d
 f

a
lls

 w
it
h

in
 1

3
k
m

 o
f 

th
e

 a
e

ro
d

ro
m

e
; 

·
 

A
n

y
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 f
o

r 
w

in
d

 t
u

rb
in

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 3

0
k
m

 o
f 

th
e
 a

e
ro

d
ro

m
e

. 

Page 190



7
 

2
.4

.2
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

T
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 a

n
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

a
 p

ro
p
o

s
e

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t,
 w

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 t
h

e
 f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 t
o

 b
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 

ti
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
: 

·
 

O
S

 G
ri
d

 R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

·
 

T
h
e

 e
le

v
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 s
it
e

 t
o

 a
n

 a
c
c
u

ra
c
y
 o

f 
0

.2
5

m
 A

b
o

v
e

 O
rd

n
a

n
c
e

 D
a

tu
m

 (
A

O
D

) 

·
 

T
h
e

 l
a

y
o

u
t,

 d
im

e
n

s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 h

e
ig

h
t 
o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 

·
 

O
th

e
r 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
, 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 l
a
n
d

s
c
a

p
in

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 b

ir
d

s
tr

ik
e

 r
is

k
, 

o
r 

c
la

d
d

in
g
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 t

o
 m

o
d

e
l 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 

fo
r 

ra
d

a
r 

re
fl
e

c
ti
o

n
. 

T
h

is
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 w
it
h

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
 a

s
 a

 m
in

im
u
m

. 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 m

a
y
 b

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 a

n
d
 

a
p

p
lic

a
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
d

v
is

e
d

 o
f 

th
is

 a
s
 s

o
o

n
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

2
.4

.3
 

P
ro

c
e

s
s
 

W
h
e
n
 a

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

s
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 c

h
e

c
k
s
 i

s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
, 

th
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

w
ill

 s
e

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 A

IA
’s

 S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 T

e
a
m

. 
A

IA
 w

ill
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
a

n
d

 r
e
s
p
o

n
d

 b
a

c
k
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
it
h

 o
n

e
 o

f 
th

re
e
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
: 

1
. 

O
b

je
c
ti
o

n
 (

w
it
h

 r
e
a

s
o

n
s
 s

ta
te

d
) 

2
. 

N
o
 O

b
je

c
ti
o
n

; 
o

r 

3
. 

N
o
 O

b
je

c
ti
o

n
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 C

o
n
d

it
io

n
s
 –

 T
h
e
s
e

 m
a

y
 i

n
c
lu

d
e

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 t

o
 d

o
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

c
ra

n
e

s
, 

p
o
te

n
ti
a

l 
la

n
d

s
c
a

p
in

g
 

p
la

n
s
, 

c
re

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
 B

ir
d

 H
a

z
a

rd
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n

 o
r 

lig
h

ti
n

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
. 

2
.4

.4
 

C
ra

n
e

s
 

A
IA

 r
u
n

s
 a

 p
e

rm
it
 r

e
q
u
e

s
t 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

c
ra

n
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 a

 6
k
m

 r
a
d

iu
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

ir
p

o
rt

. 
 T

h
e

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

o
n

 t
h
e

 s
a
fe

 u
s
e

 o
f 

c
ra

n
e

s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

s
 o

p
e

ra
to

rs
 i
n
te

n
d

in
g
 t

o
 u

s
e

 a
 c

ra
n

e
 o

r 
o

th
e

r 
ta

ll 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 a

re
a

 u
p

 t
o
 

6
k
m

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 a
ir
p
o

rt
, 

a
n

d
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 1
0

m
 h

ig
h

, 
to

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
 t

h
e

 a
e

ro
d

ro
m

e
/a

ir
fi
e
ld

 m
a

n
a

g
e

r’
. 

 I
t 

is
 t

h
e

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

Page 191



8
 

th
e

 c
ra

n
e

 o
p

e
ra

to
r/

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
r 

to
 n

o
ti
fy

 t
h

e
 A

IA
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
n

y
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 c

ra
n

e
s
/t
a

ll 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 e
q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

tw
o

 w
e

e
k
s
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 w

o
rk

s
 t

a
k
e

 p
la

c
e

. 
 T

h
e

 S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
w

ill
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
ra

n
e

s
 

a
g
a

in
s
t 

a
n

y
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
in

fr
in

g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 O
b

s
ta

c
le

 L
im

it
a

ti
o
n

 S
u

rf
a

c
e
s
 a

n
d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
o

 N
A

T
S

 f
o

r 
te

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 

2
.4

.5
 

P
re

-a
p

p
li

c
a

ti
o

n
 E

n
q

u
ir

ie
s

 

A
p

p
lic

a
n
ts

 c
a

n
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

th
e

 A
IA

 S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 T

e
a

m
 t

o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 p

re
-a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

 e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
. 

N
o
te

 t
h
a

t 
a
n

y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 f
o

r 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 
o
n

ly
, 

a
n

d
 

th
e

 
a

ir
p

o
rt

 
re

s
e

rv
e

s
 

th
e

 
ri
g
h

t 
to

 
c
o
m

m
e

n
t 

fu
lly

 
a

t 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

s
ta

g
e

. 
E

m
a

il 

s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
@

a
ia

ir
p
o

rt
.c

o
m

 s
u

b
m

it
ti
n

g
 a

 s
u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

it
e

 p
la

n
s
, 

O
S

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a
te

s
, 

a
n

d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

re
g
a

rd
in

g
 h

e
ig

h
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t.
 

·
 

P
le

a
s
e
 s

e
e
 A

IA
’s

 A
e

ro
d

ro
m

e
 S

a
fe

g
u
a

rd
in

g
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e

 w
h

ic
h

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 d

e
ta

il 
o

n
 t

h
e

 f
a

c
to

rs
 t

h
e

y
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e

 i
n
to

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 a

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 (

h
tt
p

:/
/w

w
w

.a
b

e
rd

e
e

n
a

ir
p

o
rt

.c
o
m

/m
e
d

ia
/4

7
1
7

8
/A

IA
_
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
_

G
u

id
a

n
c
e

-F
U

L
L

.p
d
f)

 

2
.5

 
P

E
R

M
IT

T
E

D
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 R
IG

H
T

S
 A

T
 A

B
E

R
D

E
E

N
 A

IR
P

O
R

T
 

In
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 T

o
w

n
 a

n
d

 C
o
u
n

tr
y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 (

G
e
n
e

ra
l 

P
e

rm
it
te

d
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t)
 (

S
c
o

tl
a

n
d

) 
O

rd
e

r 
1

9
9

2
 a

s
 a

m
e

n
d
e

d
, 

A
IA

 a
n

d
 i

ts
 a

g
e
n

ts
 h

o
ld

 c
e

rt
a
in

 r
ig

h
ts

 w
h

ic
h
 a

llo
w

 t
h

e
m

 t
o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

w
o

rk
s
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

ir
p

o
rt

 

w
it
h

o
u

t 
re

q
u

ir
in

g
 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 P
e

rm
it
te

d
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

R
ig

h
ts

 
a

p
p

ly
 t

o
 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 a
ir
p

o
rt

, 
fo

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 t

e
rm

in
a

ls
, 

a
ir
lin

e
 o

ff
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
ir
c
ra

ft
 p

a
rk

in
g
 s

ta
n

d
s
. 

C
e
rt

a
in

 c
la

s
s
e

s
 o

f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
w

ill
 s

ti
ll 

re
q
u

ir
e
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a

m
p

le
 r

u
n

w
a

y
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
s
. 

3
. 
 

P
E

R
W

IN
N

E
S

 R
A

D
A

R
 

3
.1

  
S

A
F

E
G

U
A

R
D

IN
G

 

P
e

rw
in

n
e

s
 R

a
d

a
r,

 o
p
e
ra

te
d

 b
y
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
A

ir
 T

ra
ff

ic
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

N
A

T
S

),
 i

s
 l

o
c
a

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
B

ri
d

g
e

 o
f 

D
o
n

 a
t 

M
u

rc
a
r.

 A
s
 

w
e

ll 
a

s
 
s
e

rv
in

g
 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 
a

ir
p

o
rt

, 
it
 
a

ls
o

 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 
d

a
ta

 
to

 
e

n
-r

o
u

te
 
c
o

n
tr

o
lle

rs
 
a

t 
th

e
 
S

c
o

tt
is

h
 
A

re
a

 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 

C
e
n

tr
e
 
in

 

P
re

s
tw

ic
k
. 

In
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 s
e

c
u

re
 i

ts
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
c
a

p
a
b

ili
ty

, 
a

 s
a

fe
g
u

a
rd

in
g
 m

a
p

 (
M

a
p

 E
) 

h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 i
s
s
u
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

b
y
 i

ts
 

o
p

e
ra

to
r.

 
P

le
a

s
e

 
n

o
te

 
th

a
t 

A
b
e

rd
e
e

n
 
a

ir
p

o
rt

 
a

n
d

 
P

e
rw

in
n

e
s
 
R

a
d
a

r 
a

re
 
s
u
b

je
c
t 

to
 
s
e

p
a

ra
te

 
s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 
m

a
p

s
. 

W
h
e

re
 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
, 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

b
o

th
 m

a
p

s
 

Page 192



9
 

 A
n

y
 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

fa
lli

n
g
 
w

it
h

in
 
s
a

fe
g
u

a
rd

e
d

 
a

re
a

s
 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 
o

n
 
th

is
 
m

a
p

 
w

ill
 
b

e
 
s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 
w

it
h

 
N

A
T

S
 
to

 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

 i
f 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 a
n

 a
d

v
e

rs
e
 i

m
p
a

c
t 

u
p
o

n
 t

h
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

a
d

a
r,

 a
n

d
 i

f 
a
n

y
 

m
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

If
 a

n
 u

n
a

c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
n

d
 v

ia
b

le
 m

it
ig

a
ti
o
n

 i
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

, 
th

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
r 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 a

g
re

e
 

w
it
h

 N
A

T
S

 o
n

 a
 m

it
ig

a
ti
o
n

 p
a

c
k
a

g
e

, 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h
e

 d
e
te

rm
in

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
n
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
. 

 

Page 193



1
0

 

4
. 

F
U

R
T

H
E

R
 I

N
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
A

ir
p

o
rt

 N
o

is
e
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

: 
h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b

e
rd

e
e

n
a

ir
p

o
rt

.c
o
m

/m
e
d

ia
/5

2
4

2
8

/A
b
e

rd
e
e

n
-I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l-

A
ir
p

o
rt

-N
o
is

e
-A

c
ti
o

n
-P

la
n

.p
d
f 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 A

d
v
ic

e
 N

o
te

 1
/2

0
1

1
: 
P

la
n
n

in
g
 a

n
d

 N
o
is

e
 h

tt
p

:/
/w

w
w

.g
o

v
.s

c
o

t/
R

e
s
o
u

rc
e
/D

o
c
/3

4
3
2

1
0

/0
1

1
4

1
8

0
.p

d
f 

C
ir
c
u
la

r 
8
/2

0
0
2

 C
o
n

tr
o
l 
o
f 

D
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

in
 A

ir
p

o
rt

 P
u

b
lic

 S
a
fe

ty
 Z

o
n
e

s
: 

h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.g
o

v
.s

c
o

t/
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
/D

o
c
/4

6
9

9
7
/0

0
2
6

4
5
4

.p
d
f 

A
IA

 S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e

: 
h

tt
p

:/
/w

w
w

.a
b

e
rd

e
e

n
a

ir
p

o
rt

.c
o
m

/m
e
d

ia
/4

7
1
7

8
/A

IA
_
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
_

G
u

id
a
n

c
e

-F
U

L
L

.p
d
f 

5
. 
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 

5
.1

 
M

A
P

  
A

 –
 P

u
b

lic
 S

a
fe

ty
 Z

o
n

e
 N

o
rt

h
 

M
A

P
  

B
 –

 P
u
b

lic
 S

a
fe

ty
 Z

o
n

e
 S

o
u

th
 

5
.2

 
M

A
P

  
C

 –
 N

o
is

e
 C

o
n

to
u

rs
 (

2
0

0
6

) 

5
.3

 
M

A
P

  
D

 –
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 A
ir
p
o

rt
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 

5
.4

 
M

A
P

  
E

 –
 P

e
rw

in
n

e
s
 R

a
d

a
r 

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 

Page 194



Legend

Public Safety Zone

Area subject to individual risk of 1 in 10,000 per yr or greater

Page 195



Page 196

This page is intentionally left blank



Legend

Public Safety Zone

Area subject to individual risk of 1 in 10,000 per yr or greater

Page 197



Page 198

This page is intentionally left blank



5
7

6
0

6
3

6
6

7
2

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

Y
e

a
r 

2
0

0
6

 (
a

c
tu

a
l)

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 S

u
m

m
e

r 
D

a
y
 1

6
 H

o
u

r 
L

e
q
 N

o
is

e
 C

o
n
to

u
rs

A
c
tu

a
l 
M

o
d

a
l 
S

p
lit

 4
2
%

N
 /
 5

8
%

S

S
C

A
L

E
 1

:5
0

,0
0

0
@

A
3
  

  
  
A

B
Z

 -
 1

0
5
  

  
  

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
7

B
A

S
E

D
 O

N
 O

R
D

N
A

N
C

E
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
 M

A
P

P
IN

G
 B

Y
 P

E
R

M
IS

S
IO

N
 O

F
 O

R
D

N
A

N
C

E
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
®

 O
N

 B
E

H
A

L
F

 O
F

 T
H

E
 

C
O

N
T

R
O

L
L
E

R
 H

M
S

O
, 

C
R

O
W

N
 C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
©

 A
L
L

 R
IG

H
T

S
 R

E
S

E
R

V
E

D
, 

B
A

A
 L

IC
E

N
C

E
 N

o
. 

1
0

0
0

2
0
0
7
1

P
a
g

e
 1

9
9



P
a
g
e
 2

0
0

T
his page is intentionally left blank



B
A

A
 L

td
. 

G
ro

u
p
 A

ir
p
o
rt

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 &

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

 -
 V

:\
B

a
c
k
u
p
s
\N

 A
u
to

c
a

d
 B

a
c
k
u
p
 0

2
-1

2
-0

9
\A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
\G

ro
u
p
 A

ir
s
id

e
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
\8

0
2
1
\A

B
Z

G
A

O
8
0
2
1
K

0
0
1
P

1
.D

W
G

 -
 P

lo
tt

e
d
 o

n
 1

6
 J

u
ly

, 
2
0
1
3
 -

 2
:4

2
p
m

  
B

y
 C

A
C

•
••

••
•

•
••

•
•
•
••
•
•
••
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
••

••
•

•
••

•
•
•
••
•
•
••
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
••

••
•

•
••

•
•
•
••
•
•
••
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

R
e
p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
  

fr
o
m

 O
rd

n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 1

:1
2
5
0
 l
a
n
d
lin

e
, 

1
:1

0
k
 a

n
d
 1

:5
0
k
 R

a
s
te

r 
b
y
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
â

••
•
••

•
•
•
••
••

••
•

•
•
••

•
•
••

•
•••

••
•
••
•

•
••

•
•
••

•
••

••
••

••
••
•
•
•
••

••
••
••

•
••
•

••
••

•
•
••

•
•
•
••
•
•
••
••
•

•••
••
•
•
••

••
•
•
•
••

•
•
••
••

•
•

••
••

••
•

••
••
•
••

•
•
•
•
••

•
•

•
•
••

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
••
••
••

••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••

••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
••
•

A
E

R
O

D
R

O
M

E
 S

A
F

E
G

U
A

R
D

IN
G

 M
A

P

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 A
ir
p
o
rt

T
o

w
n

 a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
tr

y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 (

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
c
e
d

u
re

)

(S
c
o

tl
a
n

d
) 

O
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
2

T
o

w
n

 a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
tr

y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 (

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 A
e
ro

d
ro

m
e
s
,

T
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 

S
it

e
s
 a

n
d

 M
il

it
a
ry

 E
x
p

lo
s
iv

e
 S

to
ra

g
e
 A

re
a
s
)

(S
c
o

tl
a
n

d
) 

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 2
0
0
3

T
h
is

 m
a
p
 i
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 D

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
s

th
e
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 m

a
p
 f

o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 A

ir
p
o
rt

. 
R

e
q
u
ir
e
d

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
is

 m
a
p
 s

h
a
ll 

b
e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e

a
e
ro

d
ro

m
e
 o

w
n
e
r 

o
r 

o
p
e
ra

to
r 

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
w

h
o
 i
s
 t

h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

b
o
v
e
 D

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
.

S
ig

n
a
tu

re
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.
F

o
r 

th
e
 C

iv
il 

A
v
ia

ti
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

D
a
te

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
8

T
h
e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

s
u
c
h
 c

o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
c
e
 i
s
:

T
h

e
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n

 A
ir

p
o

rt
 L

im
it

e
d

c
/o

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 S

u
rf

a
c
e
 A

c
c
e
s
s

F
ir

s
t 

P
o

in
t

B
u

c
k
in

g
h

a
m

 G
a
te

G
a
tw

ic
k
 A

ir
p

o
rt

W
e
s
t 

S
u

s
s
e
x
 R

H
6
 0

N
T

.

3
7
0

3
7
5

3
8
0

3
8
5

3
9
0

3
9
5

4
0
0

4
0
5

7
9
5

8
0
0

8
0
5

8
1
0

8
1
5

8
2
0

8
2
5

8
3
0

7
9
5

8
0
0

8
0
5

8
1
0

8
1
5

8
2
0

8
2
5

8
3
0

3
7
0

3
7
5

3
8
0

3
8
5

3
9
0

3
9
5

4
0
0

4
0
5

7
9
5

A
ll 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

e
x
c
e
p
t 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
, 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
,

o
r 

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
u
p
 t

o
 3

 N
o
. 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
d
w

e
lli

n
g
s
 n

o
t

e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 t

w
o
 s

to
re

y
s
 i
n
 h

e
ig

h
t.

A
ll 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

lo

A
ll 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
, 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
, 

e
re

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d

 w
o
rk

s
n
g

re
io

o
r

e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 1

0
 m

e
tr

e
s
 i
n
 h

e
ig

h
t 

(3
2
.8

 f
e
e
t)

.
e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 1

0
 m

e
tr

e
s
 i
n
 h

e
ig

h
t 

(3
2
.8

 f
e
e
t)

.
g
 

g
 

s
 

s
 

(3(3

A
ll 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
, 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
, 

e
re

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d

 w
o
rk

s
n
g

re
io

o
r

e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 1

5
 m

e
tr

e
s
 i
n
 h

e
ig

h
t 

(4
9
.2

 f
e
e
t)

.
g
 

s
 

(4

A
ll 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
, 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
, 

e
re

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d

 w
o
rk

s
n
g

re
io

o
r

e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 4

5
 m

e
tr

e
s
 i
n
 h

e
ig

h
t 

(1
4
7

.6
 f

e
e
t)

.
g
 

s
 

(1
t)

A
ll 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
, 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
, 

e
re

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d

 w
o
rk

s
n
g

re
io

o
r

e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 9

0
 m

e
tr

e
s
 i
n
 h

e
ig

h
t 

(2
9
5

.3
 f

e
e
t)

.
e
d
in

9
0

e
t

in
 h

e
ig

h
t 

(2
9
5

.3
 f

t)
g
 

s
 

(2(2
t)t)

A
ll 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 a

tt
ra

c
t

a
t

 d
e
v

n
t

a
t

b
ir
d
s
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
n

n
e
c
te

d
 w

it
h
 a

n
a
t

n
e

a
n

a
v
ia

ti
o
n
 u

s
e
. 

S
e
e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

ir
c
u

la
r 

2
 2

0
0
3

.
n
g

 u
a
n

c
u

0
3

N
o
te

: 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

lik
e
ly

 t
o
 a

tt
ra

c
t 

b
ir
d
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 r

e
fu

s
e
 t

ip
s
,

s
e
w

a
g
e
 d

is
p
o
s
a
l 
w

o
rk

s
, 

m
in

e
ra

l 
w

o
rk

in
g
s
, 

n
a
tu

re
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
,

w
a
te

r 
b
o
d
ie

s
, 

la
rg

e
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 f

la
t 

ro
o
fs

. 
F

o
r

fu
th

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

e
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 C

ir
c
u
la

r 
2
-2

0
0
3

2
5
0
0

M
e
tr

e
s
 -

 1
:5

0
,0

0
0

M
e
tr

e
s
 -

 1
:5

0
,0

0
0

M
e
tr

e
s
 -

 1
:5

0
,0

0
0

5
0
0
0

5
0
0
0

0

Page 201



Page 202

This page is intentionally left blank



N
A

T
S

 -
 P

e
rw

in
e

s
s

 R
a

d
a

r 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

N
o

ti
fi

a
b

le
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
H

e
ig

h
ts

A
ll 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n
t 
A

G
L

A
ll 

B
u
ild

in
g
s
, 
S

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
, 

E
re

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 W

o
rk

s
 e

x
c
e

e
d
in

g
 1

0
 M

e
tr

e
s
 i
n

 H
e
ig

h
t 
(3

2
.8

 F
e

e
t)

 A
G

L

A
ll 

B
u
ild

in
g
s
, 
S

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
, 

E
re

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 W

o
rk

s
 e

x
c
e

e
d
in

g
 1

5
 M

e
tr

e
s
 i
n

 H
e
ig

h
t 
(4

9
.2

 F
e

e
t)

 A
G

L

A
ll 

B
u
ild

in
g
s
, 
S

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
, 

E
re

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 W

o
rk

s
 e

x
c
e

e
d
in

g
 4

5
 M

e
tr

e
s
 i
n

 H
e
ig

h
t 
(1

4
7
.6

 F
e
e

t)
 A

G
L

A
ll 

B
u
ild

in
g
s
, 
S

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
, 

E
re

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 W

o
rk

s
 e

x
c
e

e
d
in

g
 9

0
 M

e
tr

e
s
 i
n

 H
e
ig

h
t 
(2

9
5
.3

 F
e
e

t)
 A

G
L

Page 203



Page 204

This page is intentionally left blank



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 
COMMITTEE    Planning Development Management  
 
DATE      16 July 2015 
  
DIRECTOR     Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT   Planning Performance Framework 2014-15 
  
REPORT NUMBER   CHI/15/240 
 
CHECKLIST COMPLETED      Yes 
 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

This report provides an introduction to the Council’s draft Planning 
Performance Framework (PPF) 2014-15 which is included as Appendix 
1 to this report and is also available via this weblink: 
PPF 2014-15 

 
Last year’s report is available on the Council’s website at 
PPF 2012-13 

 
All Scottish Councils are required to submit their annual PPF reports to 
the Scottish Government by 31st July 2015. The PPF reports on the 
performance of the entire planning service of the Council across a 
range of qualitative and qualitative performance indicators for the 
period 31 March 2014 to 1 April 2015. It is designed to be a focus for 
the continuous improvement of the service as a whole. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

It is recommended that the Committee note, and take the opportunity 
to comment on, performance levels and service improvements that 
have taken place during 2014-15 and approve PPF and action plan that 
is proposed for the coming year for submission to the Scottish 
Government. 

 
 
 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

The production of an annual PPF report is an integral part of the 
planning service function and, as such, is accounted for in budgets and 
work programmes. 

Agenda Item 4.3

Page 205



2 
 

 
In 2014 the Scottish Government increased planning application fees 
whilst making it clear that a condition of that increase was that planning 
authorities demonstrated a sustained improvement in performance.  

 
Planning fee income has increased slightly from £1.41 million in 2013-
14 to £1.44 million in 2014-15. 

 
Whilst the PPF takes a holistic approach to measuring performance the 
Government’s key focus is on the average timescales for determining 
planning applications. Legislation was passed in 2013 that gives the 
Scottish Government the ability to reduce the fee levels of local 
authorities that are not demonstrating an improved performance - the 
so called “penalty clause”. 

 
The Scottish Government has recently confirmed that the penalty 
clause will not be invoked this year – with planning authorities to be 
assessed on their performance for 2015-16. This is because  Scottish 
Government wants the  administration of the penalty clause to be as 
transparent as possible and the delay will give it time to communicate 
the final assessment process to authorities and allow them further time 
to make any necessary improvements. 

 
The content of the attached PPF (Appendix 1) shows that there has 
been a significant improvement in the determination times for major 
applications, with average times halving this last year compared with 
the previous one. However, here has been slight slippage in 
performance levels associated with the speed of processing and 
determining local and householder planning applications and it is 
imperative that these are a priority focus of attention over the coming 
year.   

 
Since May 2015 the Development Management Team has been fully 
staffed for the first time, but a strong case can be made for additional 
staff resource if required during the course of the coming year. 
Furthermore procedures are being put in place to improve performance 
as detailed in the attached PPF report. On 9 June 2015 Finance Policy 
and Resources Committee gave approval for funding of a new 
application casework management system and electronic document 
management system that will enable considerable efficiencies to be 
made in procedures and processes, not least be enabling full electronic 
workflow. 

 
With the foregoing in mind it is expected that performance will improve 
this year and that the penalty clause can be avoided.  

 
The production of the next Local Development Plan remains on target, 
with the Proposed Plan being published for a 10-week public 
consultation between March and June 2015. Therefore the next LDP 
remains on course to be adopted in 2016. The established housing 

Page 206



3 
 

land supply has remained broadly similar to the figure for 2013-14, as 
has the 5-year effective land supply which continues to show a healthy 
land supply in the Aberdeen Housing Market Area. In Aberdeen City, 
only a small number of new housing sites (of five units and over) have 
come forward this year. Progress has been made as expected on most 
existing sites with completions remaining broadly in line with figures 
from the last five years. There have been no significant changes to the 
proportion of effective and constrained sites. 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Continuous improvements are required by the Scottish Government, 
particularly in those areas identified above and annual feedback is 
provided on the submitted PPF documents.  The PPF process records 
year on year areas where progress is being made or where actions are 
required.  These matters will be reviewed at regular intervals such that 
areas requiring action are identified and service improvements 
undertaken.  Clearly action is required to address the performance 
issues set out within the PPF. 

. 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

Performance 
The focus of effort in the last year has been to prioritise improvements 

to the speed and efficiency of dealing with major development 
applications in response to average determination times that were 
below the Scottish average in 2013-14 and the consequent 
identification of this as being in the now “red” category in the Scottish 
Government’s Annual Planning Performance Report. Determination 
times have improved from 88.6 weeks in 2013-14 to 47.6 weeks in 
2014-15 – a figure that, whilst still very much a focus for further 
attention, is now better than the Scottish average for 2013-14. It is 
considered that the recruitment of additional senior level staff (including 
two experienced Senior Planners) and more of a focus on project 
management by case officers, systematically monitored by Team 
Leaders, has had a significant bearing on this improvement which is 
expected to continue as recently recruited staff gain workload and 
experience. 

 
Conversely, there has been a small increase in the average 
determination time for local and Householder development 
applications. Factors that contributed to this decline in performance 
include:  

- clearing of legacy cases – 48 in the year 
- a period of unprecedented turnover of staff in the Application Support 

Team which has significantly slowed down the validation process  
- a very significant increase in the number of Local Review Body cases 

(from 7 to 25) combined with the introduction of pre-application forum 
meetings (27 proposals considered in the year) in line with a Scottish 

Page 207



4 
 

Government requirement/best practice:  both of which have demanded 
considerable staff resource.  

- planning officer level vacancies in the applications team which have 
only recently been filled  

- in common with previous years the time taken to determine the legal 
agreements, whilst improving, had a significant impact on the figures 
and is a factor over which the planning service has limited control. It 
should be noted, however, that the average time from “willingness to 
approve” to decision on an application subject to a legal agreement has 
halved from 53.94 weeks (2013-14) to 26.75 weeks (2014-15). 

 
Improvement actions 
In the coming year it is expected that several factors will result in 
improved performance and a reduction in average determination times 
as detailed in the body of this report including:  

- introduction of Stop the Clock Procedure for the first time  - as of April 
2015 

- implementation of new ICT processes and restructuring of  the 
administration team, including the appointment of a Support Manager 

- fully staffed Applications Team – as of May 2015 
- Recruitment of additional staff into the Applications Support Team 
- Contracting out of the majority of legal agreements  

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is expected that the projected 
implementation of a new computerised applications system, which will 
ultimately provide an improved and more efficient application 
management, is likely to have an unavoidable short-term negative 
impact on processing times for a period of 2 or 3 months. Measures will 
be put in place to mitigate this impact as far as possible and the impact 
will be compensated for by long term permanent improvements in the 
speed of decision making in forthcoming years. 

 
It is recommended that the Committee approves the draft PPF for the 
City Council’s Planning Service for submission to the Scottish 
Government. This includes an action plan of service improvements 
planned for the coming year that included separately for information 
below – grouped under the performance criteria in the PPF and with 
the lead team in P&SD in brackets where appropriate: 

 

TABLE 1 
 
PPF Action Plan 
 

 
Open for business 
 

 

• Reconfigure the DM Team to facilitate the processing of 
major applications including consideration of a Major Projects 
Team (Development Management Applications - DM) 

Page 208



5 
 

 

 
High quality development on the ground 
 

• Actively input and participate in wider Council projects, such 
as the Strategic Infrastructure Plan, City Centre Masterplan 
and City Region Deal to support the delivery of the 
Development Plan. 

• Complete the Nigg Development Framework and Harbour 
Masterplan as outlined in National Planning Framework 3 
(Masterplanning Design and Conservation) 

• Develop detailed phased masterplans to support adopted 
development frameworks as arising, including specifically 
Craibstone, Rowett South, Rowett North, Bridge of Don 
(former AECC site) and Grandhome (part of the Scottish 
Sustainable Communities Initiative programme) (MPDC) 

• Develop a Streetscape Manual for Aberdeen to provide clear 
guidance and certainty in the delivery of masterplans and 
support the Scottish Government’s Aligned Consents Project 
(MPDC) 

• Develop and deliver a programme of 6 conservation and 
urban design CPD events (MPDC) 

• Carry out a full review of the Local Design Review Panel to 
ensure relevance and improve efficiency, impact and 
outcomes (MPDC) 

• Develop and publish an Historic Environment Strategy for 
Aberdeen (MPDC) 

• Develop and publish Conservation Area Guidance for 
residents (MPDC) 

 

 
Certainty 
 

 

• Implement a robust Consultation Protocol between Development 
Management and Environmental Policy (Environmental Policy 
(EP) and DM) 

• Progress alignment of Planning and Roads Construction 
Consent Processes (DM) 

• Introduce procedure for reconsideration of legal agreements 
within 6 months of “resolving to grant” (DM) 

 
 

 
Communications, engagement and customer service 
 

Page 209



6 
 

 

• Maintain Customer Service Excellence accreditation for the 
Development Management Team and achieve and 
implement accreditation for Local Development and 
Environmental Policy Teams 

• Make innovative improvements to how The Service monitors 
the ALDP and make this information available to the public, 
by producing a comprehensive and easy-to-use bulletin 
about new developments being approved and built in the city 
(Local Development Plan) 

• Review and amend processing agreement guidelines and 
template and actively promote to applicants and agents (DM) 

 

 
 
Culture of continuous improvement 
 

• Continue to encourage and enable staff training in more 
detailed knowledge of specific topic areas, planning-related 
competencies and transferable skills. Support staff towards 
gaining Chartered Membership of the RTPI, and support 
secondments to other teams to gain a broader experience 

• Reconfigure and redesign the planning pages of website 
including a pre-application enquiry facility 

• Bringing tree protection orders up to date and implement 
high hedges legislation (EP) 

• Review the Open Space Audit to ensure it is current, relevant 
and appropriate to underpin a review of the City’s Open 
Space Strategy in 2016/17 (EP)  

• Review the Core Paths Plan to ensure it is current, relevant 
and appropriate (EP).  

• Implement a new application and electronic document 
management  system and reconfigure administrative support 
to facilitate and enable electronic workflow (DM) 

 

 
 
6. IMPACT 
 

Community Plan – The themes of the PPF fit well with the two main 
aims of Community Planning which are described as: making sure 
people and communities are genuinely engaged in the decisions made 
on public services which affect them; allied to a commitment from 
organisations to work together, not apart, in providing better public 
services. 

 
Single Outcome Agreement – The improvement of planning 
performance will support the aims of outcomes 1, 2, 10, 12, 14, and in 

Page 210



7 
 

particular 15 which relates to high quality, continually improving and 
efficient public services which are responsive to local people’s needs. 

    
5 year Corporate Business Plan – The PPF recognises the priorities of 
Aberdeen City Council and takes account of budgets.  It also 
recognises the skills, expertise and experience the Council needs, and 
that staff are our most important asset. In terms of business planning, 
long term planning and review of past years means that planning can 
occur in anticipation of external pressures on service delivery. In terms 
of the priorities stated for 2015-16 the PPF particularly supports 
Aberdeen’s ‘Smarter Economy’, which works towards ensuring the 
economic future of the city. Additionally it assists in maintaining 
financial stability through the elements identified in the business plan: 
achieving financial targets; using priority based budgeting to guide 
service delivery; engaging with staff, the public, businesses, local 
communities, the voluntary sector and partners in service delivery; 
seeking more ways to work with the community; and working with the 
Scottish Government and COSLA to achieve funding which affects the 
contribution the city makes to the Scottish and UK economy. 

 
Interest to the Public – The PPF aims to facilitate a high quality service 
that meets peoples’ needs and makes a visible difference to the quality 
of the city’s urban and natural environment by promoting high quality 
development and providing an effective infrastructure to make 
Aberdeen a world class strategic location. 

 
This report is seeking agreement to undertake further work to improve 
performance and there is no impact on equalities and human rights 
resulting from this report.  

. 
 

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

Failure to address the decision making timescales on planning 
applications could lead to the slowing of delivery of development 
across the City and a reduced level of quality both in decision making 
and development on the ground; additionally it is likely that the Scottish 
Government will provide negative feedback in relation to the lack of 
progress in this particular area. There is the risk of a reduction in fee 
levels in subsequent years. These factors represent a Hazard and 
Control Risk to the Council but are being managed through the actions 
set out in the PPF. In contrast, increased resources will facilitate a high 
quality service that meets people’s needs and makes a visible 
difference to the quality of the city’s urban and natural environment by 
promoting high quality development and providing an effective 
infrastructure to make Aberdeen a world class strategic location. 

 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Page 211



8 
 

Planning Performance Framework - Scottish Government Guidance 
Notes 2014-15 

 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 

Daniel Lewis 
Development Management Manager 
dlewis@aberdeencity.gov.uk  
(01224) 522250 
 

 

Page 212



PLANNING PERFORMANCE 
FRAMEWORK

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015

w
w

w
.a

b
e
rd

e
e
n
c
it
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
/p

la
n
n
in

g

Page 213



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning2

Reproduced from Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s 

Stationery Offi ce. © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may 

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Aberdeen City Council - Licence No. 100023401 (2015)

The Ordnance Survey mapping within this publication is provided by Aberdeen City Council under licence 

from Ordnance Survey in order to fulfi l its public function as a planning authority. Persons viewing this 

mapping should contact Ordnance Survey Copyright for advice where they wish to licence Ordnance 

Survey mapping for their own use.

Front Cover:  New construction, North Esplanade West.

Page 214



contents page

1 National Headline Indicators (NHIs) 4

2 Defi ning and measuring a high-quality planning service

Open for business

High quality development on the ground

Certainty

Communications, engagement and customer service

Effi cient and effective decision-making

Effective management structures

Financial management and local governance

Culture of continous improvement

7

3 Supporting Evidence 23

4 Service Improvements 2015-16 26

5 Offi cial Statistics 33

6 Workforce and fi nancial information 36

Appendix One - Performance Markers 38

Vision

The vision for Aberdeen is to be a city which is vibrant, dynamic, forward looking, 
where people can expect high-quality services that meet their needs. This means 
making a visible difference to the quality of the city’s urban and natural environment 
by promoting high quality development and providing an effective infrastructure to 
make us a world class strategic location.

To do this we must think strategically, facilitate development, engage positively with 
communities and the business sector and be open and transparent in our decision 
making. We also have a key role in delivering the vision for the City and Shire as 
expressed through regional plans and strategies. We are tasked with seeing that 
Aberdeen stays at the forefront of planning for the future.

THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning 3

Page 215



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning4

 1 National Headline Indicators (NHIs)

Key Outcomes 2014-2015 2013-2014

Development Planning

• Age of local/strategic development plan(s) 
(years and months) at end of reporting 
period. Requirement: less than 5 years

• Will the local/strategic development plan(s) 
be replaced by their 5th anniversary 
according to the current development plan 
scheme?

• Has the expected date of submission 
of the plan to Scottish Ministers in the 
development plan scheme changed over 
the past year? 

• Were development plan scheme 
engagement/consultation commitments 
met during the year?

3 Years 

Y

N

Y

2 Years 

Y

N

Y

Effective Land Supply and Delivery 
of Outputs

• Established housing land supply

• 5-year effective housing land supply

• 5-year housing supply target

• 5-year effective housing land supply 
(to one decimal place)

• Housing approvals**

• Housing completions over the last 5 years

• Marketable employment land supply

• Employment land take-up during reporting 
year

21,406 units 
(City)

6,575 units 
(City)

7,827 units 
(AHMA*)

7.7 years
(AHMA)

 5805 units

3208 units 
(to 1/1/14)

140 ha

26 ha

21,948 units 
(City)

6,287 units 
(City)

9,459 units 
(AHMA)

6.2 years
(AHMA)

2126 units

2874 units 
(to 1/1/13)

166ha

26ha

Page 216



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning 5

Notes : 

*     AHMA = Aberdeen Housing Market Area.
**   Housing Approvals total includes Planning Permission in Principle.
*** Planning Enforcement Charter (Revised May 2013).

Key Outcomes 2014-2015 2013-2014

Development Management

Project Planning

• Percentage of applications subject to pre-
application advice

• Number of major applications subject to 
processing agreement or other project plan

• Percentage planned timescales met

36%

3

0%

38%

3

100%

Decision-making

• Application approval rate

• Delegation rate

94.0%

96.2%

95.8%

94.3%

Decision-making timescales

Average number of weeks to decision:

• Major developments

• Local developments (non-householder)

• Householder developments

47.6

16.6

12.8

88.6

15.9

10.0

Legacy Cases

• Number cleared during reporting period

• Number remaining

48

57

N/A

N/A

Enforcement

• Time since enforcement charter published/    
reviewed (months) Requirement: review 
every 2 years

• Number of breaches identifi ed/resolved

2***

175/121

1

160/121

Short Contextual Statement 

times have improved from 88.6 weeks 
in 2013-14 to 47.6 weeks in 2014-15 
– a fi gure that, whilst still very much a 
focus for further attention, is now better 
than the Scottish average for 2013-14 
(Performance Marker 1). The recruitment 
of additional senior level staff (including 
two experienced Senior Planners) and 
more of a focus on project management 
by case offi cers, systematically monitored 

The focus of effort in the last year has 
been to prioritise improvements to the 
speed and effi ciency of dealing with major 
development applications in response to 
average determination times that were 
below the Scottish average in 2013-14 
and the consequent identifi cation of this 
as being in the “red” category in the 
Scottish Government’s Annual Planning 
Performance Report. Determination 

Page 217



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning6
team, including the appointment of a 
Support Manager – from July 2015

• fully staffed Applications Team – as of 
May 2015

• recruitment of additional staff into the 
Applications Support Team

• contracting out of the majority of legal 
agreements.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
it is expected that the projected 
implementation of a new computerised 
applications system, which will ultimately 
provide an improved and more effi cient 
application management, is likely to have 
an unavoidable short-term negative impact 
on processing times for a period of 2 or 
3 months. Measures will be put in place 
to mitigate this impact as far as possible 
and the impact will be compensated for by 
long term permanent improvements in the 
speed of decision making in forthcoming 
years.

The production of the next Local 
Development Plan remains on target, with 
the Proposed Plan being published for 
a 10-week public consultation between 
March and June 2015. Therefore the next 
LDP remains on course to be adopted in 
2016. The established housing land supply 
has remained broadly similar to the fi gure 
for 2013-14, as has the 5-year effective 
land supply which continues to show 
a healthy land supply in the Aberdeen 
Housing Market Area. In Aberdeen City, 
only a small number of new housing 
sites (of fi ve units and over) have come 
forward this year. Progress has been made 
as expected on most existing sites with 
completions remaining broadly in line with 
fi gures from the last fi ve years. There 
have been no signifi cant changes to the 
proportion of effective and constrained 
sites.

by Team Leaders, has had a signifi cant 
bearing on this improvement which is 
expected to continue as recently recruited 
staff gain workload and experience.

Conversely, there has been a small 
increase in the average determination time 
for local and householder development 
applications. Factors that contributed to 
this decline in performance include:-

• clearing of legacy cases – 48 in the year

• a period of unprecedented turnover of 
staff in the Application Support Team 
which has signifi cantly slowed down 
the validation process (see supporting 
information1)

• a very signifi cant increase in the 
number of Local Review Body cases 
(from 7 to 25), combined with the 
introduction of pre-application forum 
meetings (27 proposals considered 
in the year) in line with a Scottish 
Government requirement/best 
practice: both of which have demanded 
considerable staff resource 

• planning offi cer level vacancies in the 
applications team which have only 
recently been fi lled (including maternity 
leave)

• in common with previous years, the 
time taken to determine the legal 
agreements, whilst improving, had a 
signifi cant impact on the fi gures and 
is a factor over which the planning 
service has limited control. It should 
be noted, however, that the average 
time from “willingness to approve” to 
decision on an application subject to 
a legal agreement has halved from 
53.94 weeks (2013-14) to 26.75 weeks 
(2014-15)2

In the coming year it is expected that 
several factors will result in improved 
performance and a reduction in average 
determination times as detailed in the 
body of this report including:- 

• introduction of Stop the Clock Procedure 
for the fi rst time  - as of April 2015

• implementation of new ICT processes 
and restructuring of administration 

Page 218



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning 7

 2 Defi ning and measuring a high-quality planning service

Local Development Plan

The Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
(ALDP)1 was adopted in 2012 (PM7). It 
has a very strong focus on development 
delivery, providing the development 
industry and the general public with clear 
guidelines on the likely infrastructure 
requirements that are needed to support 
development. This level of transparency 
helps to promote certainty, trust and 
confi dence that necessary infrastructure, 
such as new schools and medical facilities, 
will be delivered alongside development. 

The ALDP identifi es a number of 
masterplan areas within which developers 
are being expected to work together to 
prepare Masterplans for each zone and 
co-ordinate the delivery of associated 
infrastructure requirements. The 
requirements for each masterplan area 
have been set out in the ALDP Action 
Programme2, a live document which is 
updated quarterly to refl ect changes and 
to identify any new actions, keeping the 
development industry, Elected Members 
and the public as up to date as possible on 
the likely infrastructure requirements for 
development within masterplanned areas 
(PM9).

Since the ALDP’s adoption in 2012, the 
Council has worked closely with developers 
to bring forward area-based Development 
Frameworks and masterplans. There 
are currently 34 such documents which 
provide clear and specifi c guidelines for 
the development of sites on the ground 
(PM10).

The report focuses on the improvements and new developments in the planning service 
since the submission of PPF 2013-14. Unless otherwise indicated it should be taken as 
read that all the activities and service actions detailed the PPF 2013-14 are still being 
undertaken. In accordance with the request from the Planning Minister, Appendix 1 – 
Performance Markers cross references to relevant evidence in the main PPF report and 
service actions (e.g. PM1, 2, 3 etc.) to show how the planning service is specifi cally 
addressing each of the Performance Markers produced by the Heads of Planning 
Scotland High Level Group and, if not met, the steps being taken to meet the marker.

Open for Business

During the last year, a Proposed Plan and 
comprehensively revised Supplementary 
Guidance (SG)3 has also been prepared, 
and was subject to public consultation 
between 20th March and 1st June 2015. 
This means that the Proposed Plan is 
on course for adoption in accordance 
with the planned timescales (PM8). The 
Proposed Plan includes a comprehensively 
reviewed and revised Infrastructure and 
Developer Contributions SG (PM11) which 
will facilitate reasonable and proportionate 
developer contributions to ensure that 
appropriate levels of infrastructure 
(schools, healthcare, community facilities, 
affordable housing etc) will be provided for 
all new development (PM15).

The Council is making progress on 
implementing the Strategic Infrastructure 
Plan (SIP)4, which focuses on developing 
and enabling infrastructure to maximise 
growth and diversify Aberdeen’s economy. 
The SIP brings together the work that 
is being delivered through a variety of 
plans and strategies and will help act as a 
mechanism for ensuring that the City has 
the infrastructure in place to support the 
delivery of the Development Plan. The SIP 
was an award winner in the 2014 Scottish 
Awards for Quality in Planning.

Offi cers in the Planning Service are also 
actively involved in putting together 
Aberdeen and Aberdeenshire Council’s 
bid for a City Region Deal5 which will 
potentially deliver up to £2.9 billion of 
investment in the region, again supporting 
the delivery of the Development Plan.
.

Page 219



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning8
Development Management

Offi cers have continued to work closely 
with colleagues from Asset Management, 
Education, Housing, Legal and other 
services to help deliver the sustainable 
economic development of the City. In the 
last year procedures have been put in 
place to consult Asset Management on all 
applications with a Council land ownership 
interest and with the new Head of 
Economic Development on all applications 
with potentially signifi cant economic 
benefi t to the City as a whole6 (PM12).

In terms of prioritisation of workload it has 
been agreed at service-level that priority 
will normally be given to the following:-

• developments that are considered to 
have a signifi cant City-wide economic 
benefi t and that are in accordance with 
Development Plan policy as identifi ed 
by Head of Planning and Sustainable 
Development in tandem with the Head 
of Economic Development

• developments that would make a 
signifi cant contribution to achieving 
corporate strategic objectives 
including the objectives and aims of 
the Development Plan (Strategic and 
Local Development Plans), Strategic 
Infrastructure Plan, Smarter Aberdeen, 
Single Outcome Agreement and City 
Centre Masterplan etc. (eg affordable 
housing).

One example case study of collaborative 
working to deliver the sustainable physical 
development of the City is provided by 
the Countesswells Place Group which has 
been established to develop a partnership 
approach to placemaking on a signifi cant 
site of 3,000 new homes, employment 
land and community facilities.7,8 The 
Group includes the Planning Service, the 
Development Consortium, NHS Grampian, 
Scottish Enterprise, Education, Asset 
Management and other service providers 
as required.  The remit of the Group is 
to explore new ways of public service 
delivery through the implementation of 
the framework and masterplan for the 
forthcoming mixed use community of 
Countesswells to the west of the City.  

The Group has a strong focus on quality 
of place, as well as effi ciencies in public 
and private sector delivery. The successful 
outcomes from the Group will be applied 
to other masterplanned areas of the city 
(PM3).

This year Team Leaders in the Applications 
Team have introduced scheduled workload 
meetings (every two or three weeks) 
with every case offi cer. These facilitate 
the active monitoring of performance 
and determination timescales and enable 
advice and instruction to be given to 
resolve any application related issues. All 
major and signifi cant applications have 
not just an allocated case offi cer, but also 
a support case offi cer and a management 
contact9. The more important of these 
are included as part of a standing agenda 
item at the weekly Management Team 
meetings so that the management team 
has an overview of progress and can act to 
intervene or chase if required (PM6). 

The more project managed approach 
to application handling facilitated by 
processing agreements continues to be 
actively promoted and developed (see 
Certainty section below) (PM2).

The Council (offi cers and elected 
members) has continued its active 
involvement in the Trinity Group: a high 
level partnership panel that provides
a forum for public and private sector 
leaders to help facilitate the delivery 
of development in and around the City. 
Activity has included engagement with 
Scottish Water resulting in improvements 
to communication and customer service 
for the development sector in the City, 
and input into the Scottish Government’s 
discussion paper on Planning Permission 
in Principle and Section 42 applications10

(PM10).

As an example of partnership working - 
a joint workshop on Sustainable Urban 
Drainage Systems was held between 
SEPA, SNH, Scottish Water and offi cers 
from the Council’s Roads Projects, Flooding 
and Planning Teams, resulting in a jointly 
agreed action plan11 (PM12 and 13). 

Page 220



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning 9
High quality development on the ground

are explicit and ensure consistency.  The 
masterplanning work has also provided an 
effective conduit for public engagement in 
the pre-application process4 (PM3).

The Aberdeen City Centre Masterplan and 
Delivery Programme is nearing completion 
following extensive public engagement, 
key agency and stakeholder participation.  
The current draft masterplan contains a 
variety of projects that focus on quality 
of outcomes for the physical, economic 
and social regeneration of the city 
centre. The draft masterplan is supported 
by a business case and development 
programme that will ensure practical 
delivery and quality outcomes in a 25 year 
framework5.

The Service continues to foster relations 
with the Scott Sutherland School of 
Architecture at the Robert Gordon 
University, this year jointly procuring a 
3D city centre virtual model to support 
the development and delivery of the City 
Centre Masterplan.

The Nigg Development Framework has 
been developed in partnership with 
Aberdeen Harbour Board to facilitate 
the planned implementation of a new 
harbour for the City and deliver critical 
infrastructure identifi ed by National 
Planning Framework 36. A detailed Harbour 

The Planning Service has a 
Masterplanning, Design and Conservation 
(MDC) team that provides expertise on 
those matters to support the development 
management process and in developing 
policies in the ALDP (PM11).

Masterplanning

Development Frameworks are now 
adopted for all major allocated greenfi eld 
sites in the ALDP.  Each of these is 
currently progressing through detailed 
phased masterplanning, planning 
permission in principle or detailed planning 
applications. All major development 
frameworks and masterplans are now 
adopted as supplementary guidance, 
providing certainty of quality in 
streetscape, townscape and landscape. 
The most recent are highlighted below:

Masterplan Adoption

Persley Den, Woodside 
Masterplan1

May 2014

Countesswells Development 
Framework and Phase 1 
Masterplan2

July 2014

Newhills Development 
Framework3

January
2015

In the last year the adopted 
masterplanning process has been refi ned 
to ensure that design quality parameters 

Illustration of proposed Nigg Bay harbour

Page 221



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning10
Masterplan will be prepared following the 
completion of the development framework.

Craibstone and Rowett South Masterplans 
are nearing completion to support the 
Newhills Development Framework. 
Masterplans are also being co-ordinated 
for both the new and existing AECC sites 
at Rowett North and AECC Site, Bridge of 
Don respectively.  Rowett North7 presents 
proposals for relocation of the AECC.
The existing AECC Site, Bridge of Don8

is also masterplanned to co-ordinate its 
redevelopment once vacated. 

Early engagement in the masterplanning 
process with key stakeholders, including 
Elected Members, SEPA, SNH, Historic 
Scotland, Scottish Water, Transport 
Scotland and Sportscotland, is facilitated 
through workshops (PM3 and 9).

Planning Briefs

There have been challenges to the 
development of quality places in the last 
year where design input has led to positive 
outcomes. One case study exemplar is the 
redevelopment of Cornhill Hospital9. The 
Service has used the skillset in the MDC 
team to generate a positive design quality 
outcome for the proposed development, 
helping to negotiate improvements to 
scale, massing, architectural detail, 
retention and refurbishment. Figure 1 
shows the layout as fi rst submitted and 
Figure 2 shows the fi nal approved layout 
illustrating changes to improve the quality 
of the layout, including the introduction 
of a central avenue of open space, strong 
urban form with street facing blocks 
etc.  Although a successful outcome, the 
protracted negotiation in this instance has 
highlighted the need to provide clearer 
guidance up front on the redevelopment 
of similar sites.  With that in mind a 
programme of site specifi c planning briefs 
has been identifi ed to ensure effi ciencies 
in the development management process.

Placemaking

The Service has drafted the brief and co-
ordinated procurement of the Aberdeen 
City Centre Masterplan, including PQQ, 
ITT, industry day, workshops with the City 
Centre Regeneration Working Group and 
inception.  The procurement was evaluated 
on 70% quality against 30% cost and 
endorsed by Council.

The Countesswells Placemaking Group 
has been set up – see Open for Business 
section above.

Design Quality

The Service has developed a protocol 
for engagement between the MDC and 
Development Management (Applications) 
Teams and others in dealing with 
listed buildings, conservation areas, 
masterplanning and design quality in 
development (PM12).  The team are 
actively involved in pre-application 
discussions to front-load design and 
placemaking advice to speed up the 
planning process (PM3).  In an effort 
to develop this service further a weekly 
“design surgery” is being trialled with a 
senior urban designer10.

A Local Design Review Panel is run jointly 
with Aberdeenshire Council and has 
considered 9 applications in Aberdeen 
City in terms of design and placemaking 
(PM13).  In 4 of these, design 
improvements were negotiated through 
peer review.  The quality in a further 4 
projects presented was confi rmed11.  The 
Service is committed to carrying out a full 
review of the Local Design Review Panel to 
ensure relevance and improve effi ciency, 
impact and outcomes.

The Service has provided specialist design 
advice to applicants, agents and Council 
colleagues, and in the procurement 
stages of Council projects, such as the 
development of Marischal Square, the new 
AECC and the City Centre Masterplan, 
as well as on planning applications and 
design policies and technical advice notes.

Page 222



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning 11
Figure 1: Cornhill Hospital, original proposed layout

Figure 2: Cornhill Hospital, revised urban layout

Page 223



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning12
The Service is currently developing a 
streetscape manual to provide clear 
guidance and certainty in the delivery of 
masterplans.  Led by MDC and involving 
the Roads Development Management and 
Construction Consent teams, this initiative 
supports the Scottish Government’s 
Aligned Consents Project (PM11).

Conservation

Responding to the economic climate 
and in direct response to the volume 
and complexity of applications, Historic 
Scotland has this year commenced 
monthly visits to the City, similar to 
Edinburgh and Glasgow.  Building on the 
“removal of duty to notify” procedure 
previously agreed with Historic Scotland 
the internal protocol adopted this year 
means that applications for listed building 
or conservation area consent are “signed 
off” by conservation accredited offi cers 
– with Aberdeen appearing to be the 
only authority in Scotland to have such a 
quality control system in place12.

An additional planner has now been 
recruited in to the Service to provide a 
more effective link between development 
management and conservation functions, 
in an effort to address previously identifi ed 
issues of a lack of capacity to process. 

The Service will continue to support the 
IHBC accreditation of planning staff and 
deliver a programme of conservation and 
urban design CPD events to enable a 
broader understanding of specialist issues.

Building on the 6 Conservation Area 
Character Appraisals fi nished last year, 
Appraisals and Management Plans have 
been completed for a further 2 of 11 of 
the City’s conservation areas to assist 
in decision making13,14,15 (PM11). Two of 
the remaining three are programmed 
for completion by the end of 2015 with 
the fi nal (Union Street) appraisal to 
be reviewed in conjunction with the 
delivery of City Centre Masterplan. 
The appraisals have developed early 
engagement protocols which have resulted 
in effective communication. For example, 

in Old Aberdeen engagement on the 
draft appraisal led to early designation 
of extensions to the conservation area 
to prevent inappropriate development. 
Completed appraisals have also been cited 
in reporters’ decisions, including in some 
detail 55 Carden Place (LBA-100-2002).

As the character appraisals near 
completion, the Service will develop and 
publish an historic environment strategy.  
To support this the Service will develop 
a series of Technical Advice Notes and 
develop and publish conservation area 
guidance for residents.

MDC participated in 2 national workshops 
on Historic Environment Scotland Act 
2014: Secondary Legislation initiated by 
Historic Scotland.  A consultation response 
on Secondary Legislation was approved by 
the Planning Development Management 
Committee on 19 March 2015.

The Service continues to support the 
Aberdeen City Heritage Trust to deliver 
conservation grant schemes in the City 
Centre and over the last year has been 
working with the Trust to apply for a 
Conservation Area Regeneration Scheme 
for the east end of the City Centre16, 17.

Page 224



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning 13
Certainty

Aberdeen Local Development Plan

The ALDP is up to date and is robustly 
and consistently applied. In 2014-15 
only 8 applications were recommended 
for approval by offi cers that were initially 
identifi ed and advertised as being contrary 
to the adopted LDP. All were justifi ed 
on grounds that they were no longer 
considered to be departures or that other 
material considerations outweighed the 
provisions of the Plan. In accordance with 
the up to date Development Plan Scheme, 
the review of the ALDP is on course to 
produce a revised document within the 
5-year statutory time frame and involves 
collaborative working across the Planning 
and Sustainable Development Service as 
well as other Council Services (PM12). 
The Proposed Plan1 was published for 
public consultation in March 2015. The 
ten week consultation began on Friday 
20th March and is due to end on Monday 
1st June 2015. Thereafter the Service will 
make formal responses to representations 
received and submit the Proposed Plan 
to the Scottish Government in late 2015 
(PM7 and 8).

The Department for Planning and 
Environmental Appeals is updated on the 
progress of the Proposed Plan so that the 
Examination may proceed as smoothly and 
effi ciently as possible. A meeting has been 
arranged to discuss requirements for the 
Examination, which is due to begin at the 
end of 2015.

Environmental Policy

A review of Tree Preservation Orders has 
been carried out in the last year and is 
ongoing, to ensure that all historic TPOs 
have been confi rmed and that they are 
valid, accurate and relevant.

Development Management

Service protocols are in place with all key 
internal and external consultees to ensure 
consistency and reliability of application 
advice (MDC, Roads, Environmental 
Health, Legal Services, Planning 
Obligations Team and Key Agencies). 
Regular scheduled liaison meetings 
are held between the Development 
Management Manager and the legal, asset 
management and environmental health 
team leaders (PM12). 

Action has been taken to address the 
concerns identifi ed in last year’s PPF and 
PPF report about the time taken to deal 
with legal agreements due to resource 
constraints within the Council’s Legal 
Service (PM6). As of March 2015 a major 
Scottish law practice (Brodies) has been 
contracted to handle legal agreements 
on the Council’s behalf - post willingness 
to approve. Brodies is also to fi nalise the 
Council’s draft legal agreement template 
and provide legal agreement training 
to planning staff. These measures are 
expected to help ensure consistency and 
overcome current delays in fi nalising legal 
agreements. In the next year a process 
will be put in place for reconsideration 
of legal agreements within 6 months of 
resolving to grant (PM4).

An audit (by PWC) of the Council’s process 
for dealing with Section 75 Agreements 
found that “generally the process for the 
management of S75 agreements was 
good”. It identifi ed a number of points of 
good practice, including the integration 
of the process into the LDP, alignment 
with relevant Circular 3/2012, recording 
of S75s on a central database and 
appointment of a single responsible offi cer 
to run the process. Actions identifi ed to 
be addressed over the next year were 
the documentation and mitigation of risk 
of non-payment of developer obligations 
and more effective reconciliation of data 
to ensure that payments are not missed. 
Although these are not the responsibility 
of the Planning Service they do impact 
upon it.

Page 225



North Esplanade West

THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning14
Processing agreements continue to be 
actively promoted in pre-application 
discussions, on the website and in 
writing upon submission of all proposal 
of application notices2 (PM2 and 3). Five 
applications with processing agreements 
have been approved - up from 3 last year 
but, disappointingly, only 3 of 17 major 
applications had processing agreements. 
One of the main factors affecting take 
up has been applicants’ unwillingness 
to provide all the necessary supporting 
information up front at the time an 
application is lodged – an essential 
prerequisite of any processing agreement 
(PM15). It is acknowledged that more 
work is required from the planning 
authority to streamline and simplify the 
processing agreement template along with 
guidance and education to promote to 
offi cers, applicants and agents. This will be 
a priority of the fi rst few months of 2015-
16 (see DM Team Plan).

Progress has been made on the alignment 
of the Roads Construction Consent (RCC) 
and the planning process. The Council 
is now actively promoting a Stage 1 and 
Stage 2 RCC Process. The level of detail 
expected at each stage is documented 
and agents have been actively involved in 

developing the process. The management 
of the RCC process within the Roads 
Projects Team has been reconfi gured 
under two team leaders responsible for 
the two stages. Planning applications are 
expected to be submitted at the same 
time as the associated Stage 1 RCC 
Process.  The Roads offi cer responsible for 
the Stage 1 RCC is the same as the offi cer 
commenting on the associated planning 
application so that the two consenting 
processes run in parallel and inform one 
another. In tandem, the Council has 
continued to work collaboratively with 
the Scottish Government on its Aligning 
Consents project3.

Customer satisfaction feedback obtained 
through questionnaires has identifi ed the 
need to improve consistency of advice 
between pre-application and application 
stages as being paramount. With this 
in mind, an online pre-application form 
(with drag and drop functionality for 
sites without a street address) is in the 
latter stages of development. This should 
facilitate and improve customer service at 
the pre-application stage and help ensure 
consistency of advice throughout the 
planning process (PM3 and 6).

Page 226



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning 15
Communications, engagement and customer service

Customer Service Excellence Award 
(CSE)1

Development Management attained 
CSE accreditation in June 2013 and this 
was externally audited and reconfi rmed 
this year with the number of partial 
compliances remaining at two.   However, 
two compliance pluses were noted for the 
customer consultation strategy and action 
plan and the corporate social responsibility 
programme.  CSE has been adopted as 
it provides a practical tool for driving 
customer-focused change and assesses 
areas that research has indicated is a 
priority for customers:

• Delivery

• Timeliness

• Information

• Professionalism

• Staff attitude

CSE also provides an effective 
management system by:

• Developing a framework for continuous 
improvement

• Providing a skills and assessment 
development tool

• Creating a benchmark via independent 
validation by which to assess if the 
services are meeting customers’ needs 
and requirements.

Customer Service Charter and 
standards

Customer service targets in the
Development Management and 
Enforcement Charters were reviewed in 
2013 and will be reviewed in 2015/16 as 
Aberdeen City Council moves to develop a 
corporate customer charter. Performance 
has been monitored via mystery shopping 
using our library service and internal 
monitoring.  The performance results have 
been publicised online (PM5).  Examples 
of associated service improvements due to 
performance monitoring are as follows:

• Updated customer contact protocol2,

• Smarter working protocol3 designed to 
implement effective mobile working

• Introduction of smart phones.

• Shared access to staff voicemail

Translation and hard of hearing services 
are now available and if a customer is 
unable to visit the offi ce, arrangements 
can be made for a home visit.

Page 227



D2 Offi ces, Dyce. From Newhills.

THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning16
Customer feedback

The customer consultation strategy 
and action plan ensures that an 
annual programme of questionnaires, 
consultations, focus groups, workshops 
and feedback are scheduled with customer 
groupings.

The annual customer satisfaction fi gures 
for Development Management are high 
with 95% satisfaction for 2014 and 92% 
for 2015.  Key areas of feedback are 
detailed in table 1 along with service 
improvements.

Customer feedback Service improvements

Improve staff contact • Updated customer contact protocol and smarter working
protocol for mobile working

• All staff have mobile  / smart phones

• Second point of contact for major applications

• Team code of voicemail access if member off staff is 
unavailable

Consistency of advice • Developing web based pre-application forms which will 
ensure consistency of advice recorded and accessible to 
all planning staff

• Updating supplementary guidance, site briefs and 
masterplans in order to provide more certainty / 
consistency of advice

Improve response times • Quarterly response times online

• Improved internal monitoring for tracking applications

• Admin review initiated Dec 2014 to streamline processes 
and procure a more fi t for purpose IT system

Redesign website • A planning web developer has been employed to redesign 
and implement work programme developed by customers

Page 228



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning 17
Web site redesign

It has been acknowledged via customer 
satisfaction questionnaires and focus 
groups that the Council’s planning web 
pages require to be redesigned.  An 
Agent’s workshop was held to assist with 
developing the web design brief and work 
programme.  Community Councils have 
also been consulted and their suggested 
improvements have also been included in 
the work programme.  In order to progress 
the project a planning web developer has 
been appointed and improvements to 
date include dynamic links between the 
planning register and committee reports 
along with a pre-application form system.  
The next stage will be to develop a ‘Do 
I need planning permission?’ interactive 
section.  The aim is to encourage more 
customers to be able to self-serve on the 
website with a community and business 
portal (PM6).

It should be noted that the percentage 
of valid Development Management 
applications submitted online continues to 
increase (48% for 2014-15 – up from 36% 
for 2013-14) and there is a continuing 
trend for online submission of larger 
scale applications (online applications 
accounting 64% of all fees for 2014-15 
compared with 44% in 2013-14).

Community involvement 

A Community Council Processing 
Agreement has been developed and a 
liaison group established to ensure the 
development of productive partnership 
working and service improvements.

Learning from complaints

Planning and Sustainable Development 
collect level 1 complaints via a 
compliments, comments and complaints 
card available in all meetings rooms and 
main reception.  Customer feedback 
can also be provided via a planning 
suggestions email address if customers 
would prefer to send in comments / 
complaints digitally.  Staff are also 
encouraged to make suggestions to 
improve services through a corporate 
initiative, employee voice.  

Page 229



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning18
Communicating with customers

The Aberdeen Local Development Plan has 
a Facebook page4, which is used to provide 
up-to-date information to a wide range of 
customer groups on consultation events 
and developments.  A newsletter is also 
circulated to all customer groups and is 
available online.

The regular liaison meetings with the 
Community Council Forum have continued 
during the year and this relationship 
is now better than it has been since 
the Community Council Forum was 
fi rst established. A major achievement 
resulting from this dialogue has been the 
agreement by both the Planning Service 
and the Community Council Forum of a 
Processing Agreement on the Planning 
Process – establishing mutually agreed 
procedures, expectations and terms of 
engagement.

Local Development Plan

Through consultation, community and 
business bodies are fully engaged in 
the Local Development Plan process, in 
accordance with the Development Plan 
Scheme Participation Statement. 

Interested parties are kept informed 
of the process at all key stages, for 
example through the improved ALDP 
e-mail newsletter which continues to 
be an effi cient and effective means of 
reaching stakeholders. The Service has 
also publicised public consultation events 
using social media, including Facebook and 
Twitter4, which are regularly updated. The 
Service also make use of the Aberdeen 
City Council website, and placed a half-
page colour advert in a local newspaper 
advertising events5.

Statutory key agencies and internal 
stakeholders have been actively engaged 
in the production of the Proposed Plan. 
Three workshops6 have been held in 
2014/15, at key milestones in the Local 
Development Plan process. A presentation 
was given, followed by a roundtable 
discussion of the content of the emerging 

ALDP. Issues discussed included major 
developments, specifi c sites and cross-
boundary issues. Feedback was then 
used to update and amend the plan as 
appropriate.

Elected Members are also engaged 
regularly, at key milestones for the Local 
Development Plan. The Service has held 
two Members’ Drop-in sessions where all 
Members’ were invited to come and ask 
questions or discuss concerns about the 
progress and content of the Proposed 
ALDP (PM9). This ‘drop in’ format was 
arrived at as a result of direct feedback 
from Elected Members on how they wished 
to be involved in plan preparation. In 
addition, all Members were sent a hard 
copy of the Proposed Plan and given full 
details of consultation events being held 
around the city.

The Proposed Plan consultation involved 
9 drop in sessions held around the city 
where members of the public could ask 
questions, discuss the ALDP, get advice 
on how to respond to the Proposed Plan 
and also hear about the next stages in the 
Plan process. The Service also produced 
an advice leafl et and easy-to-use response 
form to aid people in making responses. 
The LDP Team has also pioneered a pro-
active engagement programme with 
schools for engaging young people in the 
local development plan process that was 
a winner in the 2014 Scottish awards for 
Quality in Planning7 (PM10).

The results of all consultation exercises 
that are undertaken as part of the 
production of the Proposed ALDP will be 
reported to Committee later in 2015 and 
will be published online.

Page 230



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning 19

Aberdeen City Council is one of, if not the 
only, Scottish Council to fully implement 
all the key provisions of the Scottish 
Government “Guidance on Role of 
Councillors in Pre-Application Discussions” 
(February 2014) (PM3).  A Pre-Application 
Forum was established this year as a 
separate committee of the Council to 
consider all major applications at the pre-
application stage. The Forum constitutes 
members of the Planning Development 
Management Committee and relevant 
ward Members and operates according 
to clearly defi ned procedures1. Feedback 
indicates that the Forum is considered by 
offi cers, Members and applicants to be an 
effective mechanism for enabling members 
to raise concerns or make comment at 
the pre-application stage which inform the 
subsequent application (PM6). 

The number of Local Review Body 
meetings has increased very signifi cantly 
compared with last year from 7 to 25 with 
72 percent of offi cer decisions upheld. 
LRBs are programmed to a frequent fi xed 
schedule – but fl exibility is also used 
to arrange these on an ad hoc basis in 
response to determination timescales.

Further systematic action has been taken 
this year to clear legacy applications with 
48 cleared during the reporting period. 
Further effort will occur in the forthcoming 
year to determine, or prompt withdrawal, 
of the 57 remaining legacy cases that will 
have a positive impact on performance 
fi gures (PM14).

Ongoing action on review of the 
Administration and ICT Systems and 
reconfi guration of the validation function 
in relation to applications is reported in 
“Continuous Improvement” Section below. 

Stop the Clock processes (based on HOPS 
draft guidance) were introduced for the 
fi rst time late in the year and are expected 

Effi cient and effective 
decision-making

to contribute towards improvements in 
average application determination times in 
the next reporting period2.

The Scheme of Delegation has proven to 
be effective in streamlining the decision 
making process with 3.8 percent of all 
applications reported to Committee in the 
year (compared with 5.7 percent in 2013-
14).

The percentage of valid Development 
Management applications submitted 
online continues to increase (48% 
for 2014-15 against 36% for 2013-
14) and the continuing trend of larger 
scale applications (online applications 
accounting 64% of all fees for 2014-15 
against 44% in 2013-14). Implementation 
of credit and debit card phone payment 
has been actively progressed and likely to 
go live in the next few months.

Over the coming year the Environmental 
Policy Team will be establishing regular 
open surgeries for Development 
Management professionals, to support 
effective decision making. 

Reviews of the City’s Open Space Audit 
and Core Paths Plan will take place to 
ensure planning decisions are informed 
with robust and relevant up to date 
information.

Page 231



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning20
Effective management 
structures

Planning and Sustainable Development 
has now become part of a wider 
Communities Housing and Infrastructure 
Service providing new opportunities for 
joint working and integration with related 
services (eg Environmental Health)1

(PM12).

At least 3 “Town Hall” Meetings are held 
every year involving all staff in P&SD to 
promote and facilitate staff engagement in 
service planning and partnership working2.

All Team Plans are up to date and 
continuously reviewed with actions and 
timescale focussed on key priorities that 
are explicitly linked to the objectives of 
the Council’s Five Year Business Plan and 
the Council’s Vision of “Aberdeen – The 
Smarter City”, as well as the main criteria 
of a high performing planning service 
laid down in the Planning Performance 
Framework.

For example the Development 
Management Team Plan reviewed and 
updated in March, has a suite of actions 
(and associated designated lead offi cers 
and timescales) that focus on three 
key priorities of speed, effi ciency and 
consistency of decision making, customer 
service and improving the design quality 
of the built environment5.

In response to the identifi ed shortfall 
in staff resource identifi ed last year, 
and utilising the additional fee income 
generated, additional posts have been 
created and fi lled, including two Senior 
Planners, a Planner and fi ve administrative 
support staff in the DM Applications, MDC 
and Application Support teams. 

All managers are the subject of ‘360 
degree’ feedback from their direct reports 
and other colleagues. Results from the 
process show a high level of confi dence in 
the managers’ leadership abilities. 

Staff are encouraged to move within the 
service and the organisation to make best 
use of skill sets and tailor resources to 
workload priorities. As an example, staff 
from the LDP team are currently seconded 
to both the Development Management 
team and the Regeneration and Housing 
Investment Teams (PM12).

Some examples of collaboration with 
other business areas in the Council and 
other public bodies are detailed in the 
preceding sections of this report. In 
terms of collaboration with neighbouring 
authorities, joint working and liaison 
has continued to increase and become 
more integrated over the last year. A 
shared archaeological service has now 
been added to the existing shared 
service for developer obligations and 
strategic environmental assessment. 
Preliminary discussions have started on 
shared planning administration and ICT 
functions.  A jointly agreed planning 
protocol for dealing with development 
proposals related to the Aberdeen Western 
Peripheral Route (AWPR) has been agreed 
and both Councils resolve shared issues 
through a regular AWPR liaison group6

(PM13).

Page 232



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning 21

Culture of continuous 

improvement

At corporate level the way that the 
Council operates is now based on 
“Shaping Aberdeen”1 that includes 
fi ve key objectives identifi ed in the 
Strategic Infrastructure Plan and three 
key improvement drivers (customer 
experience, staff experience and the use 
of resources). The objectives and drivers 
have been used as the basis for service 
planning and improvements, including 
informing the new service structure, plans 
on a page and key priorities for Team 
Plans.

A newly created Support Manger is 
about to take up post in the Service 
and is expected to play an important 

Income from planning fees (£1.43M) in 
the fi nancial year 2013-14 was £50K 
more than last year and this increased 
fee income has been reinvested in the 
additional staffi ng in planning service (see 
above) to cater for workload stemming 
from Aberdeen’s still relatively buoyant 
development industry.

As part of the Smarter Working initiative 
that is being rolled out Council wide, all 
development management case offi cers 
now have laptops and smart phones, 
enabling them to work from home or from 
any workstation in Marischal College. 
The use of Microsoft Lync has been 
rolled out in parallel to facilitate rapid 
communication and track location of staff, 
as well as enabling document sharing and 
video communication/conferencing.

Both planning managers have regular 
monthly meetings with the service 
accountant to ensure that budgets are on 
track and fee income is monitored and 
spend targeted and tailored accordingly.

Financial management and 
local governance

role in terms of supporting change and 
continuous improvement and embedding 
culture change.

Further tailor made training in planning 
decision making, local review body 
procedures and the new pre-application 
forum procedures has been offered to all 
Councillors and delivered to all those who 
were able to attend - both in large groups 
and on a one-to-one basis – constituting 
the majority of all elected members. In the 
coming year the intention is to inaugurate 
a joint training/workshop session involving 
both Community Councils and Elected 
Members to promote dialogue as well as 
learning.

Offi cers across the planning service 
provide a series of in-house CPD talks and 
discussion groups throughout the year on 
topics relevant to Aberdeen.  
As examples:

• a focussed workshop, led by the 
MDC Team, was held with the whole 
Development Management Team to 
explore the way in which the services 
can ensure design quality and refl ect on 
Aberdeen’s recent “Plook on an Plinth” 
Award2

• The Environmental Policy Team held 
a workshop with the DM team on 
using Green Space Network Tool in 
the planning application assessment 
process. This was part of the package 
of work for the SAQP shortlisted 
Sustainable Urban Fringes Project.

The Service has continued its active 
participation in the SOLACE Benchmarking 
Groups for both Development 
Management and Development Planning, 
as well as the relevant HOPS parent and 
sub-committees - with representatives 
attending all meetings. One example of 
an improvement that has been made as 
a result is the formulation and adoption 
of Validation Guidance and a Validation 
Checklist in line with HOPS draft guidance 
(see earlier) (PM13).

Page 233



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning22
A comprehensive review of the 
administrative and ICT provision for 
the entire Planning and Sustainable 
Development Service is well underway 
with an emphasis, in the fi rst phase, 
on the ICT system and administrative 
structure for application support (Planning 
and Building Standards applications)3,4.
A new application and integrated 
document management system is to be 
tendered for and implemented this coming 
year and the Application Support Team 
will subsequently be restructured under 
a newly appointed Support Manager who 
takes up post in July (PM3 and PM11).

As an initial step in the restructure the 
phased incorporation of the validation 
function into the Application Support 
Team has started and will continue over 
the next few months: giving a single 
point of responsibility for validation 
for all applications and helping to 
eliminate delays due to hand offs and 
ensure consistency of application and 
interpretation of validation criteria. 
Validation checklists based on the HOPS 
Development Management Sub Group 
draft document have been produced to 

facilitate this process and will be promoted 
on the website and via a workshop with 
the Agents’ Focus Group. 

An action in this year’s Development 
Management Team Plan is to develop 
“Added value” indicators to assess the 
development on the ground by the 
development management process. 

In the coming year the Environmental 
Policy Team will develop and deliver a 
series of Environmental Policy talks / 
seminars to Development Management 
to disseminate information and build 
understanding of effective Policy to 
implementation.

An internal consultations protocol is being 
developed within the Environmental 
Policy Team. This aims to ensure more 
streamlined consultation within the team 
and with other teams, especially the 
Development Management Team, for 
input into masterplans and applications, 
speeding up the time of responses, as well 
as offering skills development / sharing 
across team members to ensure business 
continuity.

Aberdeen beach and City lights

Page 234



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning 23

 3 Suporting Evidence

Part 1:National Headline Indicators

1 Application Support Team
Leavers = 6 permanent + 4 temps = 10
New starts = 9 permanent + 4 temps = 13
Hours spent on recruitment process (including temps) 227 hrs = 6.1 weeks
Hours spent on training = 1165.5 hours= 31.5 weeks 
7 permanent staff still having on-going training. 

2 See attached electronic document “Applications with legal agreement (timescales)”

Part 2 Defi ning and measuring a high-quality planning service

• Open for Business

1 Aberdeen Local Development Plan

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning_environment/planning/local_development_plan/
pla_local_development_plan.asp

2 Action Programme

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning_environment/planning/local_development_plan/
pla_aldp_action_programme.asp

3 Supplementary Guidance

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning_environment/planning/local_development_plan/
pla_aldp_supplementary_guides.asp

4 Strategic Infrastructure Plan

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=54562&sID=17090

5 City Region Deal

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=63430&sID=26262

6 See attached electronic document “Consultation with Asset Management”

7 See electronic attachment “Countesswells PLACE action note 1”

8 See electronic attachment “Countesswells PLACE action note 2”

9 See attached electronic documents “Large Developments case offi cers and 
contacts”

10 See attached electronic documents “Trinity Group Meeting – 3 November 2014”

11 See attached electronic documents “SUDS Workshop” 16 January 2015

• High Quality Development on the Ground

1 Persley Den, Woodside Masterplan

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=56138&sID=2991

2 Countesswells Development Framework and Phase 1 Masterplan 

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=59292&sID=14394

3 Newhills Development Framework

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=60798&sID=14394

Page 235



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning24
4 Aberdeen Masterplanning Process

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning_environment/planning/planning_sustainable_
development/pla_masterplan_process.asp

5 Aberdeen City Centre Masterplan

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/council_government/shaping_aberdeen/City_Centre_
Masterplan.asp

6 Nigg Development Framework and Masterplan

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=64864&sID=2991

7 Draft Rowett North Masterplan

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=64936&sID=2991

8 Draft AECC Site, Bridge of Don

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=64900&sID=2991

9 Cornhill Hospital planning application

http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=120241#

10 MDC Protocol - see attached electronic document

11 Local Design Review Panel

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning_environment/planning/planning_sustainable_
development/pla_design_review_panel.asp

12 Aberdeen Local Development Plan: Proposed Plan 2016

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning_environment/planning/local_development_plan/
pla_2016_proposed_plan.asp

13 Draft Old Aberdeen Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management Plan

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=61708&sID=2991

14 Cove Bay Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management Plan

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning_environment/planning/conservation/pla_
conservation_area_08.asp

15 Pitfodels Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management Plan

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning_environment/planning/conservation/pla_
conservation_area_10.asp

16 Aberdeen City Heritage Trust Business Plan 

http://www.aberdeenheritage.org.uk/uploads/downloads/acht_business_plan_201215.pdf

17 Aberdeen City Heritage Trust Annual Report 

http://www.aberdeenheritage.org.uk/uploads/downloads/acht_annual_report_201314.pdf

• Certainty

1 Aberdeen Local Development Plan: Proposed Plan 2016 

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning_environment/planning/local_development_plan/
pla_2016_proposed_plan.asp

2 Processing Agreements Guidance 

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=53630&sID=15040

3 See attached electronic documents “Aligned Consents (SG Project)”

Page 236



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning 25
• Communications, engagement and customer service

1 See attached electronic document “CSE Customer consultation strategy and action 
plan”

2 See attached electronic document “Customer Contact Protocol”

3 See attached electronic document “Smarter Working Guidance”

4 Facebook 

https://www.facebook.com/pages/Aberdeen-Local-Development-Plan/121238731367123;
Twitter: @AberdeenLDP

5 See electronic document  “Colour advertisement in Press and Journal Friday 17th 
April 2015”

6 See electronic document  “Key Agency Workshops”

7 Scottish Awards for Quality in Planning 2014 

http://scotgovplanningarchitecture.com/2014/08/08/engaging-young-people/

• Effi cient and Effective Decision Making

1 Pre-application Forum Guidance and minutes 

http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/g3554/Public%20reports%20pack%20
06th-Nov-2014%2014.00%20Pre-Application%20Forum.pdf?T=10

2 See electronic document “Stop the Clock Guidance”

3 Organisational Structure 

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=65420&sID=2050

4 See electronic attachment “Staff Town Hall Meeting – 11 November 2014”

5 See electronic attachment “DM Team Plan”

6 See electronic attachment “AWPR Liaison Action List”

• Culture of Continuous Improvement

1 Shaping Aberdeen 

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/council_government/shaping_aberdeen/
shapingaberdeen_home.asp

2 See attached electronic documents “Design Workshop”

3 See attached electronic document “ICT and Admin Review Project Bulletin”

4 See attached electronic document Admin and ICT review – project governance 
document”

Page 237



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning26

In the coming year the Service will make 
the following improvements:- 
(Lead Team in brackets where applicable) 

Open for Business

• Reconfi gure the DM Team to facilitate 
the processing of major applications, 
including consideration of a Major 
Projects Team (DM)

High Quality Development on the 
Ground

• Actively input and participate in wider 
Council projects, such as the Strategic 
Infrastructure Plan, City Centre 
Masterplan and City Region Deal to 
support the delivery of the Development 
Plan

• Complete the Nigg Development 
Framework and Harbour Masterplan as 
outlined in National Planning Framework 
3 (MDC)

• Develop detailed phased masterplans 
to support adopted development 
frameworks as arising, including 
specifi cally Craibstone, Rowett South, 
Rowett North, Bridge of Don (former 
AECC site) and Grandhome (part of 
the Scottish Sustainable Communities 
Initiative programme) (MDC)

• Develop a Streetscape Manual for 
Aberdeen to provide clear guidance and 
certainty in the delivery of masterplans 
and support the Scottish Government’s 
Aligned Consents Project (MDC)

• Develop and deliver a programme of 
6 conservation and urban design CPD 
events (MDC)

• Carry out a full review of the Local 
Design Review Panel to ensure 
relevance and improve effi ciency, 
impact and outcomes (MDC)

• Develop and publish an Historic 
Environment Strategy for Aberdeen 
(MDC)

• Develop and publish Conservation Area 
Guidance for residents (MDC)

 4 Service Improvements 2015-16 

Certainty

• Implement a robust Consultation 
Protocol between Development 
Management and Environmental Policy 
(EP/DM)

• Progress alignment of Planning and 
Roads Construction Consent Processes 
(DM)

• Introduce procedure for reconsideration 
of legal agreements within 6 months of 
“resolving to grant” (DM)

Communications, Engagement and 
Customer Service

• Maintain Customer Service Excellence 
accreditation for the Development 
Management Team and achieve and 
implement accreditation for Local 
Development Plan and Environmental 
Policy Teams

• Make innovative improvements to how 
the Service monitors the ALDP and 
make this information available to the 
public, by producing a comprehensive 
and easy-to-use bulletin about new 
developments being approved and built 
in the city (LDP)

• Review and amend processing 
agreement guidelines and template 
and actively promote to applicants and 
agents (DM)

Culture of Continuous Improvement

• Continue to encourage and enable staff 
training in more detailed knowledge of 
specifi c topic areas, planning-related 
competencies and transferable skills 

• Support staff towards gaining Chartered 
Membership of the RTPI, and support 
secondments to other teams to gain a 
broader experience

• Reconfi gure and redesign the planning 
pages of the website, including a pre-
application enquiry facility

• Bring tree protection orders up to date 
and implement high hedges legislation 
(EP)

Page 238



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning 27

Committed improvements and actions Complete?

Local Development Plan Team

• Committed Improvements and Actions
Monitor the infrastructure constraints to the delivery of development 
through the LDP Action Programme and, where appropriate, instigate 
Action Programme Delivery Days with developers and relevant key 
agencies to overcome barriers.

• Action Taken
Two Delivery Day workshops held with key agencies which have 
included developers, representatives from across the Planning 
Service, other Council Services and relevant Key Agencies.

• Evidence
See ‘Open for Business’ section of PPF report.

Yes

Environmental Policy Team

• Committed Improvements and Actions
Ensure that computerised application system can accommodate 
environmental consultations. 

• Action Taken
Members of the Environmental Policy Team have been enabled to 
provide responses to planning consultations via this method. Need to 
roll this out for entire Team. 

• Evidence
Draft consultation protocol.

Ongoing

• Committed Improvements and Actions
Ensure that tree protection measures arising from planning conditions 
are more effective by specifying more rigorous protection in the 
conditions and by monitoring that the measures are in place before 
development commences.

• Action Taken
More rigorous conditions are now specifi ed. Ongoing monitoring of 
tree work by arboricultural planner.

Ongoing

 Delivery of service improvements actions in 2014-15

• Review the Open Space Audit to ensure 
it is current, relevant and appropriate 
to underpin a review of the City’s Open 
Space Strategy in 2016/17 (EP) 

• Review the Core Paths Plan to ensure 
it is current, relevant and appropriate 
(EP)

• Implement a new application and 
electronic document management
system and reconfi gure administrative 
support to facilitate and enable 
electronic workfl ow (DM)

Page 239



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning28
Development Management (Applications) Team

• Committed Improvements and Actions
Carry out a comprehensive project managed review of resourcing, 
procedures and information systems in relation to the application 
administration and consider and implement any recommendations of 
the review.

• Action Taken
Project manager appointed and review carried out overseen by 
a project board. Approval given and funding made available to 
purchase a new integrated  casework and electronic document 
management system. Mini completion to progress over next two 
months.

• Evidence
See Culture of Continuous Improvement Section.

Ongoing

• Committed Improvements and Actions
Consider reconfi guring team structure/ new ways of working in 
accordance with new structure of P&SD and to address current staff 
resource, including recruitment of new staff and introduction of Major 
Projects team.

• Action Taken
City Development Services Manager post in new structure to be re-
advertised. New Support Manger appointed but yet to take up post. 
Review on hold until both managers are in post.

• Evidence
To be provided on completion in next year’s PPF.

Ongoing

• Committed Improvements and Actions
Introduce a Pre-application Forum for Councillors to discuss major 
development proposals at the  pre-application stage in line with 
Scottish Government guidance.

• Action Taken
Forum established and procedures put in place. Operating effectively. 

• Evidence
See Effi cient and Effective Decision Making Section above.

Completed

Page 240



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning 29
• Committed Improvements and Actions

Continue the programme of continuous improvement of the 
information systems with the aim of improving effi ciency, 
effectiveness and customer service focussing on:

   (i)   web site improvements implemented through an inter–
service focus group and assisted by a newly recruited web 
developer to enable amongst other things real time tracking of 
application progress and a map based application search and 
planning alerts facility

   (ii) recording of pre-application enquiries/discussions

   (iii) electronic workfl ow and mail monitoring

   (iv) fully implement electronic payment (phone payment by credit/
debit card)

• Action Taken

   (i) Web developer recruited and a programme of improvements 
underway

   (ii) Pre-application enquiry web form being trialled

   (iii) New casework and electronic document management system 
about to be tendered for

   (iv) Electronic payment system in latter stages of development

• Evidence

   See Communications, Engagement and Customer Service Section 
above.

Ongoing

• Committed Improvements and Actions
Implement a programme of measures to address application 
determination speed including 

   (i) an update and streamlining of the Processing Agreement 
template and guidance

   (ii) a procedure for reconsideration of applications with legal 
agreements within 6 months of “willingness to approve”

• Action Taken
Outstanding actions - priority actions in Team Plan for fi rst few 
months of 2015-16

Ongoing

• Committed Improvements and Actions
Continue to work together with the Community Council Forum to 
fi nalise a Processing Agreement and planning training.

• Action Taken
Liaison meetings have continued and a Processing Agreement has 
been agreed.

• Evidence
See Communications, Engagement and Customer Service section 
above.

Complete

Page 241



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning30
Masterplanning, Design and Conservation Team

• Committed Improvements and Actions
Develop a City Centre Masterplan and Delivery Programme including:

   -    Co-ordinating procurement of multi-disciplinary team

   -    Working with key partners and external agencies

   -    Ensuring effective public engagement and ownership of the 
masterplan

• Action Taken
Multi-disciplinary consultancy team led by BDP appointed May 2014. 
Final Draft Masterplan and Delivery Programme to be reported to 
Council in June 2015 for approval.

• Evidence
Series of public engagement workshops, exhibitions and consultations 
taken place in September and November 2014, March 2015, City 
Centre Working Group established with key partners from Scottish 
Enterprise, Aberdeen Chamber of Commerce, Robert Gordon 
University, University of Aberdeen, Aberdeen City and Shire Economic 
Futures, Visit Aberdeen and Aberdeen City Council. See High Quality 
Development on the Ground Section above.

Complete

• Committed Improvements and Actions
Co-ordinate the preparation of detailed phased masterplans 
supporting development frameworks for Countesswells, Newhills and 
Grandhome.

• Action Taken
Phase 1 Masterplan for Countesswells approved with development 
framework; Craibstone and Rowett South Masterplans presented 
as draft masterplans June 2015 to support respective applications 
for Planning Permission in Principle to deliver Newhills Development 
Framework; detailed roads and design workshops in preparation for 
Grandhome Phase 1 Masterplan undertaken.

• Evidence
See High Quality Development on the Ground Section above ref 
Countesswells and Newhills.

Ongoing

• Committed Improvements and Actions
Develop a masterplan for a new harbour at Nigg Bay with Aberdeen 
Harbour Board.

• Action Taken
Work in partnership with Aberdeen Harbour and Scottish Enterprise 
Grampian to prepare a draft development framework.  Consultants 
team appointed, extensive stakeholder engagement undertaken.

• Evidence
Draft Development Framework (target committee August 2015)

Ongoing

Page 242



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning 31
• Committed Improvements and Actions

Introduce a design surgery to support development management 
application assessment.

• Action Taken
Trial undertaken in Spring 2015 with a view to rolling out 
permanently.

• Evidence
MDC protocol established and included in DM portal.

Complete

• Committed Improvements and Actions
Review the Design Review Panel remit, membership and operations.

• Action Taken
Internal review underway with a detailed panel member review due 
to take place in summer 2015.  Updates including refresh of process 
and panel membership to be complete by September 2015.

• Evidence
Evidence in next year’s PPF.

Ongoing

• Committed Improvements and Actions
Develop detailed design policy to support the ALDP.

• Action Taken
Team workshops to test, update existing and develop new design and 
conservation policies.

• Evidence
Proposed ALDP published February 2015, consultation completed 
June 2015.

Ongoing

• Committed Improvements and Actions
Complete appraisals for 4 conservation areas

- Old Aberdeen, Pitfodels, Cove and Footdee

• Action Taken
Draft Old Aberdeen CA Appraisal complete, including extensive liaison 
with Heritage Society and Community Council. 
Draft Footdee CA Appraisal due to be reported by October 2015 
(consultation due August 2015), Pitfodels and Cove CAs complete.

• Evidence
See High Quality Development on the Ground Section Old Aberdeen, 
Cove Bay, Pitfodels 

Ongoing

• Committed Improvements and Actions
Continue IHBC accreditation training.  3 candidates programmed for 
application submission 2015, 4 for 2016. 

• Action Taken
Tailored training plans for each of the 7 candidates, mentored by 
senior conservation offi cer.  Liaison and support from IHBC as 
pioneering pilot scheme.

• Evidence
Individual professional development training plans. See High Quality 
Development on the Ground Section.

Ongoing

Page 243



Prime Four Business Park, Kingswells

THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning32
• Committed Improvements and Actions

Continue to support the Aberdeen City Heritage Trust.

• Action Taken
Funding secured from Historic Scotland to 2018. ACHT Business 
Plan approved, Project Offi cer part of MDC team and co-located in 
Marischal College.

• Evidence
See High Quality Development on the Ground Section ACHT Business 
Plan: ACHT Annual Report.

Ongoing

Page 244



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning 33

A: Decision-making timescales (based on ‘all applications’ timescales)

Average timescale
(weeks)

Category
Total number of 

decisions
2014-2015 2014-2015 2013-2014

Major Developments 17 47.6 88.6

Local developments (non-householder)

• Local: less than 2 months

• Local: more than 2 months

494

177 (35.8%)

317 (64.2%)

16.6

6.9

22.0

15.9

6.6

22.6

Householder developments

• Local: less than 2 months

• Local: more than 2 months

676

248 (36.7%)

428 (63.3%)

12.8

7.2

16.0

10.0

7.4

13.9

Housing developments

Major

Local housing developments

• Local: less than 2 months

• Local: more than 2 months

2

86

16 (18.6%)

70 (81.4%)

70.1

22.2

7.1

25.7

110

-

8.5

35.5

Business and industry

Major

Local business and industry

• Local: less than 2 months

• Local: more than 2 months

4

68

18 (26.5%)

50 (73.5%)

62.1

15.5

7.1

18.6

38

16

7.6

24.2

EIA developments 0 0 12.3

Other consents* 270 17.1 17.3

Planning/legal agreements**

• Major: average time

• Local: average time

14

3

11

45.8

63.4

41.0

82.3

-

-

Local reviews 25 5.8 5

 5 Offi cial Statistics

Notes :

* Consents and certifi cates: Listed buildings and Conservation area consents, Control of 
Advertisement consents, Hazardous Substances consents, Established Use Certifi cates, 
certifi cates of lawfulness of existing use or development, notifi cation on overhead electricity 
lines, notifi cations and directions under GPDO Parts 6 & 7 relating to agricultural and forestry 
development and applications for prior approval by Coal Authority or licensed operator under 
classes 60 & 62 of the GPDO. 

** Legal obligations associated with a planning permission; concluded under section 75 of 
the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 or section 69 of the Local Government 
(Scotland) Act 1973.

Page 245



Townhouses, Stoneywood

THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning34
B: Decision-making: local reviews and appeals

C: Enforcement activity

Type

Original decision upheld

Total number 
of decisions

2014-2015 2013-2014

Number % Number %

Local reviews 25 18 72% 3 42.8%

Appeals to Scottish Ministers 10 4 40% 5 55.5%

2014-2015 2013-2014

Cases taken up 175 198

Breaches identifi ed 216 160

Cases resolved 121 121

Notices served*** 7 11

Reports to Procurator Fiscal 0 0

Prosecutions 0 0

*** Enforcement notices; breach of condition notices; planning contravention notices; 
  stop notices; temporary stop notices; fi xed penalty notices, and Section 33 notices.

Page 246



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning 35
D: Context

The focus of effort in the last year has 
been to prioritise improvements to the 
speed and effi ciency of dealing with major 
development applications in response to 
average determination times that were 
below the Scottish average in 2013-
14 and the consequent identifi cation 
of this as “red” category in the 
Scottish Government’s Annual Planning 
Performance Report. Determination 
times have improved from 88.6 weeks 
in 2013-14 to 47.6 weeks in 2014-15 
– a fi gure that, whilst still very much a 
focus for further attention, is better than 
the Scottish average for the 2013-14. 
It is considered that the recruitment of 
additional senior level staff (including two 
experienced Senior Planners) and more of 
a focus on project management by case 
offi cers, systematically monitored by Team 
Leaders, has had a signifi cant bearing on 
this improvement which is expected to 
continue as recently recruited staff gain 
workload and experience.

Conversely there has been a small 
increase in the average determination time 
for local and householder development 
applications. Factors that contributed to 
this decline in performance include:-

• clearing of legacy cases – 48 in the year

• a period of unprecedented turnover of 
staff in the Application Support Team 
which has signifi cantly slowed down 
the validation process (see  ref for 
evidence)

• a very signifi cant increase in the 
number of Local Review Body cases 
(from 7 to 25) combined with the 
introduction of pre-application forum 
meetings (27 pre-application proposals 
considered in the year) in line with a 
Scottish Government requirement/
best practice:-  both of which have 
demanded considerable staff resource 

• planning offi cer level vacancies in the 
applications team which have only 
recently been fi lled (including maternity 
leave

• In common with previous years the 
time taken to determine the legal 
agreements had a signifi cant impact on 
the fi gures and is a factor over which 
the planning service has limited control.

In the coming year it is expected that 
several factors will result in improved 
performance and a reduction in average 
determination times as detailed in the 
body of this report including:- 

• introduction of Stop the Clock Procedure 
for the fi rst time  - as of April 2015

• implementation of new processes and 
restructuring of administration team 
including the appointment of a Business 
Support Manager

• fully staffed Applications Team – as of 
May 2015

• recruitment of additional staff into the 
Applications Support Team

• contracting out of the majority of legal 
agreements

Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
it is expected that the projected 
implementation of a new computerised 
applications system, which will ultimately 
provide an improved and more effi cient 
application management, is likely to have 
an unavoidable short-term negative impact 
on processing times for a period of 2 or 
3 months. Measures will be put in place 
to mitigate this impact as far as possible 
and the impact will be compensated for by 
long term permanent improvements in the 
speed of decision making in forthcoming 
years.

Page 247



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning36

6 Workforce and Financial Information

Staffi ng Age Profi le Number (approx.)

Under 30 18

30-39 22

40-49 10

50 and Over 8

Committees and site visits* No. per year

Full Council committees  9

Planning Committees 13

Area Committees (where relevant)  N/A

Committee site visits  4

LRB**  27

LRB site visits  2

Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4

Head of Planning and Sustainable 
Development

1

Note : Staff in the Masterplanning,Design and Conservation Team which is part of the larger 
DM team but who do not handle applications and staff in Environmental strategy with more than 
50 percent planning related workload are now both recorded as Other. The Application Support 
team is split 50/50 in terms of work between Development Management and Building Standards 
so the total number of posts has been halved to indicate the resource exclusive to the planning 
function.

DM DP Enforcement Other

Manager
No. Posts 3 1.86 - 2.5

Vacant - 0.14 - -

Main grade posts
No. Posts 15.5 9 2.5 9.5

Vacant - - - -

Technician
No. Posts 4 - - 2

Vacant - - - -

Offi ce Support/Clerical
No. Posts 7.5 - - -

Vacant 0.5 - - -

Total 31 11 2.5 14

Notes :

*    References to committees also include National Park Authority Boards.  Number of
      site visits is those cases where visits were carried out by committees/boards.
**  this relates to the number of meetings of the LRB.  The number of applications going 
      to LRB are reported elsewhere.

Note :  Tier 1= Chief Executive, Tier 2= Directors, Tier 3= Heads of Service, Tier 4= Managers

Page 248



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning 37

Notes:

*     Direct staff costs covers gross par (including overtime, national insurance and 
       superannuation contribution).  The appropriate proportion of the direct cost of 
       any staff member within the planning authority spending 30% of more of their 
       time on planning should be included in costs, irrespective of what department 
       they are allocated to (for example, legal advice, administration, typing).  Exclude 
       staff spending less that 30% of their time on planning.
**   Indirect costs include all other costs attributable to the planning service.  Examples 
       (not exhaustive) include accommodation, IT, stationery, offi ce equipment, 
       telephone charges, printing, advertising, travel & subsistence, apportionment of 
       support service costs.
*** Include fees from planning applications and deemed applications, and recharges for 
       advertising costs etc.  Exclude income from property and planning searches.

Total Budget Costs Income***

Direct* Indirect**

Development 
management

500,735 1,523,137 131,166 1,438,669

Development 
planning

586,651 322,983 99,876 0

Enforcement
Subsumed in DM and DP Budgets

Other

Total 1,087,386 1,846,121 231,043 1,438,669

Justice Mill Lane

Page 249



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning38

 Appendix 1   Performance Markers

Driving Improved Performance

Performance Marker Measure Source/
Evidence

Policy
Support

PPF

PM1 Decision making: authorities 
demonstrating continuous 
evidence of reducing 
average timescales for all 
development types

Evidence of 
continuous
improvement

Statistics
and
National
Headline
Indicators

Offi cial 
Statistics and 
PPF reports

NHIs

PM2 Project management: offer 
of processing agreements 
(or other agreed project 
plan) made to prospective 
applicants in advance of 
all major applications and 
availability publicised on 
planning authority website

YES/NO PA to 
provide

Modernising
the Planning 
System (Audit 
Scotland);
SG website/
template

NHIs;
Certainty

PM3 Early collaboration with 
applicants and consultees 

on planning applications:

- availability and promotion 
of pre-application 
discussions for all 
prospective applications

- clear and  proportionate 
requests for supporting 
information

YES/NO

Examples

PA to 
provide

White Paper, 
Delivering 
Planning
Reform; 
Planning
Reform Next 
Steps

NHIs; Open 
for Business; 
Certainty

PM4 Legal agreements: conclude 
(or reconsider) applications 
within 6 months of 
‘resolving to grant’*

* this will require 
production of supporting 
guidance, following wider 
stakeholder input

Reducing 
number
of live 
applications
more than 6 
months after 
resolution to 
grant (from 
same time 
last year)

PA to 
provide

Offi cial 
statistics;
PPF reports; 
evidence
of delays 
to major 
developments

Certainty;
Effi cient and 
Effective 
Decision-
Making

PM5 Enforcement charter 
updated/re-published

Within 2 
years

PPF Report Planning Act 
(s158A)

NHIs

PM6 Continuous improvement:

- show progress/
improvement in relation 
to PPF National Headline 
Indicators

- progress ambitious 
and relevant service 
improvement 
commitments identifi ed 
through PPF report

Progress
on all 
commitments

PPF Report Delivering 
Planning
Reform; PPF 
Report

Culture of 
Continuous
Improvement; 
Service
Improvement

The performance markers are set out below.  Progress and performance in terms of 
these markers is evidenced at the relevant in the body of the PPF report (eg. PM1).

Page 250



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning 39
Promoting the Plan-led System

Performance Marker Measure Source/
Evidence

Policy
Support

PPF

PM7 LDP (or LP) less than 5 
years since adoption

YES/NO PPF report Planning 
Act (s16); 
Scottish
Planning
Policy

NHIs;
Certainty;
High Quality 
Development 
on the Ground

PM8 Development plan scheme 
demonstrates next LDP:

- on course for adoption 
within 5-year cycle

- project planned and 
expected to be delivered 
to planned timescale

YES/NO

YES/NO

PPF report Planning 
Act (s16); 
Scottish
Planning
Policy

NHIs;
Certainty;
High Quality 
Development 
on the Ground

PM9 Elected members 
engaged early (pre-MIR) 
in development plan 
preparation

Evidence of 
activity

PA to 
provide

Certainty;
Effi cient and 
Effective 
Decision-
Making

PM10 Cross-sector stakeholders, 
including industry, agencies 
and Scottish Government, 
engaged early (pre-MIR) 
in development plan 
preparation

Evidence of 
activity

PA to 
provide

Certainty;
Effi cient and 
Effective 
Decision-
Making

PM11 Production of regular 
and proportionate policy 
advice, for example through 
supplementary guidance, on 

(i) information required to 
support applications and

(ii) expected developer 
contributions

Evidence of 
activity

PA to 
provide

Open for 
Business;
Certainty

Simplifying and Streamlining

Performance Marker Measure Source/
Evidence

Policy
Support

PPF

PM12 Corporate working across 
services to improve outputs 
and services for customer 
benefi t (e.g. protocols; 
joined-up services; 
single contact; joint pre-
application advice)

Examples
from the 
year

PA to 
provide

PM13 Sharing good practice, skills 
and knowledge between 
authorities

Evidence of 
activity to 
pass on and 
adopt good 
practice

PPF report Delivering 
Planning
Reform; 
Planning
Reform Next 
Steps

Page 251



THE PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2014-2015

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning40
Delivering Development

Performance Marker Measure Source/
Evidence

Policy
Support

PPF

PM14 Stalled sites/legacy cases: 
conclusion/withdrawal of 
planning applications more 
than one year old

Reducing 
number of 
applications
more than 
1 year old 
(from same 
time last 
year)

Statistics
from SG 
Analytical
Services

PM15 Developer contributions: 
clear and proportionate 
expectations

- set out in development 
plan (and/or emerging 
plan,) and
 - in pre-application 
discussions

Y/N
Examples

LDP
PA to 
provice 

Page 252



Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
Aberdeen City Council
Business Hub 4
Marischal College
Broad Street
Aberdeen
AB10 1AB

Telephone: 01224 523470
Fax: 01224 523180

Email: pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Lighting column,
Aberdeen International Business Park
Dyce

Page 253



Page 254

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Planning Development Management 

Committee 
 
DATE  16 July 2015 
 
DIRECTOR  Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Confirmation with modification of Tree 

Preservation Order number 195 
 
REPORT NUMBER: CHI/15/215 
 
CHECKLIST RECEIVED Yes 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
To confirm. with modification, one provisional Tree Preservation Order 
(TPO) made by the Head of Planning and Sustainable Development 
under delegated powers.  The Order currently provides temporary 
protection for the trees, but is required to be confirmed by the Planning 
Development Management Committee to provide long term protection.   
 
In response to serving the provisional Tree Preservation Order two 
representations where received, copies are attached to this report.  
Both representations highlighted procedural issues with the serving of 
the orders.  Legal advice has been sought in relation to these issues 
and, where appropriate, action taken.  This has resulted in the order 
being renamed.   The representations also offered opinion on the 
merits of the order.  These points were considered and resulted in the 
removal of Area 2 and the amendment of the original statement of 
reasons.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
It is recommended that Members: 
 
1) confirm the making of Tree Preservation Order 195 with the 

following modifications:  
 

a) removal of the area annotated as A2; see attached plan.  An 
outstanding planning consent will result in the removal of this 
group of trees to facilitate development. 

 
b) to amend the Statement of Reasons to read:  
 

Agenda Item 4.4

Page 255



A (i) The trees add to the character and amenity value of the 
area and a Tree Preservation Order will allow the Council to 
input into the future management of these trees to ensure 
long-term retention of tree cover. 
 

c) to amend the title to Tree Preservation Order 195 Kingswells 
House 2015 to make it legally distinct 
 
 

and; 
 

2) instruct the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to attend the 
requisite procedures.   

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The cost of confirming the Orders will be met through existing budgets. 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

The making of a Tree Preservation Order generally results in further 
demands on staff time to deal with any applications submitted for 
consent to carry out tree work and to provide advice and assistance to 
owners and others regarding protected trees.  This is undertaken within 
existing staffing resources. 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
A TPO gives statutory protection to trees that contribute to the amenity, 
natural heritage or attractiveness and character of a locality.  As 
outlined in the Local Development Plan Policy NE5: Trees and 
Woodland, the Council will take the necessary steps to ensure that 
trees are protected in the longer term.  Protecting trees has the further 
benefit of contributing to the Council’s policies on improving air quality 
and helping combat climate change. Promoting the improvement and 
maintenance of environmental quality and townscapes in turn supports 
investment and economic competitiveness. 

 
The process of applying for work to protected trees allows for Elected 
Members, Community Councils and members of the public to have an 
opportunity to comment on work to protected trees.  
 
The trees in the following Tree Preservation Orders contribute to the 
local character of the area. The loss of these trees would have an 
adverse effect on this character. A Tree Preservation Order would 
ensure that trees could not be removed without the consent of the 
Council who would have an opportunity to have regard to the 
environmental implications of any proposals.  
 
• Tree Preservation Order Number 195, Kingswells House 

 

Page 256



6. IMPACT 
 
There are no anticipated impacts on equalities with this proposal hence 
an Equalities and Human Right Impact Assessment is not required. As 
outlined in Policy NE5: Trees and Woodland, the Council will take the 
necessary steps to ensure that trees are protected in the longer term 
thus the need to confirm the aforementioned Tree Preservation Orders. 

 
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

There is a risk of loss of the trees if the recommendations are not 
accepted which would impact on people and the environment. If 
recommendations are accepted the Orders will ensure the long term 
protection of the trees on each of the sites by ensuring the trees could 
not be cut down or otherwise damaged without the express permission 
of the Council, hence securing the public amenity and environmental 
value of each site.   

 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS  

 
Provisional order is available to view on request; the unmodified 
boundary map for TPO 195 is attached. 
 
 

9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 
Kevin Wright 
Environmental Planner 
kewright@aberdeencity.gov.uk  
(01224) 522440 

  

Page 257



 
 

 

Page 258


	Agenda
	1.1 Minute of Meeting of the Planning Development Management Committee of 18 June 2015 - for approval
	2.1 Engineering Science Facility,Queens Road, Aberdeen - Erection of Facility
	Letters of Representation Engineering Science Facility Queens Road

	2.2 32 Rosebery Street - Change of use of existing residential property to form a House of Multiple Occupancy to accommodate six unrelated persons
	Letters of Representation 32 Roseberry Street

	2.3 13 Manor Place - Erection of Two Storey Extension to side of existing Dwelling House
	Letters of Objection 13 Manor Place

	2.4 7 St Machar Place - External alterations and formation of driveway to front of existing property
	Letters of Representation 7 St Machar Place

	3.1 Jesmond Drive - Erection of 19 Affordable Housing Units with Associated Car Parking and Landscaping
	Letters of Representation Jesmond Drive

	3.2 Nether Anguston - Formation of Riding School with associated buildings, car parking and landscaping
	Letters of Objection Nether Anguston
	Letters of Support Nether Anguston

	4.1 Technical Advice Note - Student Accommodation
	Technical Advice Note- Student Accomodation-CHI-15-214 Appendix
	Technical Advice Note- Student Accomodation- CHI-15-214 EHRIA

	4.2 Technical Advice Note - Planning and Aberdeen Airport
	TEchnical Advice Note- Planning and Aberdeen Airport - CHI-15-213  Appendix
	Map A Public Safety Zone North
	Map B Public Safety Zones South
	Map C 2006 Noise Contours
	Map D AIA Safeguarding Map
	Map E - Perwinnes Radar Safeguarding

	4.3 Planning Performance Framework Report 2014-15
	Planning Performance Framework 2014-15 Colour Appendix

	4.4 Confirmation with Modification of Tree Preservation Order Number 195

